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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 10 FEBRUARY 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Se leka,  good morn ing  

everybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s  ten  o ’c lock  we shou ld  s ta r t  a t  ten  

o ’c lock .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Whoever  needs to  go  to  wherever  they m  

must  go  be fo re  ten .   Ten o ’ c lock  we must  s ta r t .   Okay le t  

us  s ta r t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Cha i rpe rson we have 

Dr  Na idoo Pat  Na idoo who w i l l  be  the  f i rs t  w i tness today.   

Dr  Pat  Na idoo is  ready to  take  the  oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease admin is te r  the  oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   Mr  Na idoo w i l l  you  be tak ing  the  oa th  or  the  

a f f i rmat ion?  Which  one o f  the  two w i l l  you  be tak ing?  The 

oath?  

DR NAIDOO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The microphone is  o f f .  20 

DR NAIDOO:   Oh  sor ry.   Thank you.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

DR NAIDOO:   Pa thmanathan Na idoo.  

REGISTRAR:   Do  you have any… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry.   I  am not  sure  tha t  we can  
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hea r  you might  have to  take  your  mask o f f .  

DR NAIDOO:   Thank you Cha i r.   I  w i l l  take  i t  o f f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay.  

DR NAIDOO:   My fu l l  name fo r  the  record  Pathmanathan  

Na idoo.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

DR NAIDOO:   No  Ma’am.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  10 

DR NAIDOO:   Yes Ma’am.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and  say,  so  

he lp  me God.  

DR NAIDOO:   So  he lp  me God.   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you;  you may be seated Dr  

Na idoo.  

DR NAIDOO:   Thank you Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i rperson.   Cha i rperson 20 

Mr  Na idoo w i l l  tes t i f y  ma in ly  on  the  t ransact ions e ish  and  

w i l l  g ive  the  Cha i rperson a  background in  regard  to  h is  

appo in tment  on  the  board  and the  t ransact ion  is  ma in ly  the  

R1.6  b i l l i on  submiss ion  tha t  was made to  the  board  in  

December  2015.    
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Dr  Na idoo thank you fo r  

ass is t ing  the  commiss ion .  

DR NAIDOO:   Thank you.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cha i rperson  we w i l l  use  Bund le  –  

Eskom Bund le  16  Exh ib i t  U36.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you I  have  got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You have i t  as  we l l  Dr  Na idoo?  Dr  

Na idoo has prov ided the  commiss ion  w i th  th ree  a f f idav i t s  

Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Huh-uh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The f i rs t  o f  wh ich  is  found on page 3  o f  

the  Eskom Bund le  16 .   Dr  Na idoo we fo l low the  b lack  

pag ina t ion  on  the  le f t  hand co rne r  –  top  le f t  hand co rne r.  

DR NAIDOO:   Top le f t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  one  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And I  –  once I  have ident i f ied  them 

Cha i r  I  w i l l  then ask  leave to  have them admi t ted .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  w i l l  take  them one by  one.  Dr  Na idoo 

on page 3  I  th ink  you are  now on page 4 .  

DR NAIDOO:   Page 3  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Go back.   Jus t  go  back.   Ja .    
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DR NAIDOO:   Page 3 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I s  tha t  page 3?  

DR NAIDOO:   Th i s  i s  page 1  –  bu t  th is  page 3  on  page 1 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The –  no .   R igh t  a t  the  top .  

DR NAIDOO:   Use the  le f t  o r  r igh t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  the  le f t .  

DR NAIDOO:   The le f t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The b lack  pag ina t ion .  

DR NAIDOO:   Eskom 16.3  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  i s  r igh t .  10 

DR NAIDOO:   R igh t  I  have got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    

DR NAIDOO:   Thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Forget  fo r  a  moment  the  003.  

DR NAIDOO:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Jus t  concent ra te  on  the  number  3 .  

DR NAIDOO:   Thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  tha t  i s  the  one a f f idav i t  o f  

Pathmanathan Na idoo tha t  a f f idav i t  goes unt i l  page 27 Dr  

Na idoo.  20 

DR NAIDOO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And there  is  a  s ignature  there  by  the  

deponent .  

DR NAIDOO:   Conf i rmed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I s  tha t  your  s ignature?  
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DR NAIDOO:   Yes S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   On the  30 t h  November  2020 the  da te  i s  

r igh t  next  to  the  s ignature .   Go back to  the  s ignature  page  

wh ich  is  page 27.  

DR NAIDOO:   Ja .   26 ,  27  go t  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You conf i rm tha t?  

DR NAIDOO:   Conf i rm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Dr  Na idoo.   Cha i rperson I  

w i l l  beg l eave to  have th is  a f f idav i t  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  

U36.1 .  10 

DR NAIDOO:   Okay I  have got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   36 .1  

CHAIRPERSON:   The a f f idav i t  o f  Dr  Pathmanathan  Na idoo 

s tar t ing  a t  page 3  w i l l  be  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  U36.1 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Then Dr  Na idoo on page 

28.  

DR NAIDOO:   Thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   There  is  another  a f f idav i t  i t  runs up  to  

page 47.  

DR NAIDOO:   Cor rec t  I  have got  i t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   You see the  s ignature  there ;  you  

conf i rm tha t  to  be  your  s ignature?  

DR NAIDOO:   Yes S i r  conf i rm i t  i s  my s ignature .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The a f f idav i t  da ted  6  October  2020.  

DR NAIDOO:   Conf i rmed.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Cha i rperson I  beg leave to  

have th is  a f f idav i t  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  U36.2 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   The a f f idav i t  o f  Dr  Pathmanathan  Na idoo 

s tar t ing  a t  page 38 is  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  U36.2 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Las t ly  Dr  Na idoo the  

a f f idav i t  on  page 47.1 .  

DR NAIDOO:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You see tha t?  

DR NAIDOO:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  a f f idav i t  ends on page 47.22.  10 

DR NAIDOO:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You conf i rm the  s ignature  the re  to  be  

yours?  

DR NAIDOO:   Conf i rm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The a f f idav i t  i s  da ted  7  September  

2020.  

DR NAIDOO:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You conf i rm the  contents  thereof .  

DR NAIDOO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.    20 

DR NAIDOO:   Thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cha i rperson  I  beg leave to  have i t  

admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  U36.3 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   The a f f idav i t  o f  Dr  Pathmanathan  Na idoo 

s tar t ing  a t  page 47.1  i s  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  U36.3 .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.    Dr  Na idoo the  issues 

o f  suspens ions have been ex tens ive l y  t rave rsed be fore  the  

commiss ion .   What  we wou ld  l i ke  you to  focus on  i f  rea l l y  

on  the  issues o f  t ransact ions wh ich  is  the  pre-payments  

dec is ions tha t  were  made by  the  board  re la t i ve  t o  e i ther  

OCM Opt imum or  re la t i ve  to  Tegeta .  

DR NAIDOO:   Thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So jus t  by  way o f  in t roduc t ion  we 

have seen f rom your  a f f idav i t  tha t  you conf i rm your  

appo in tment  o f  the  board  o f  Eskom in  December  2014.  10 

DR NAIDOO:   Cor rec t  so .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   That  –  cou ld  you te l l  the  

Cha i rperson whe ther  tha t  was your  f i rs t  serv ice  on  the 

board  o f  Eskom?  Were  you –  was tha t  your  f i rs t  

appo in tment  to  serve  on  the  board  o f  Eskom? 

DR NAIDOO:   Yes S i r  tha t  i s  the  appo in tment  to  serve  on  

the  board  o f  Eskom.   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And when as  you speak yes face  to  the 

Cha i rperson.   Had you sa t  on  any o ther  board  be fore  tha t?  

DR NAIDOO:   Yes S i r.   Cha i rman my caree r  w i th  Eskom 20 

commenced in  the  –  w i th  the  E lec t r i c i t y  Supp ly  

Commiss ion .   Th i s  was in  the  ea r ly  ‘80 ’s  and I  conc luded  

my career  w i th  Eskom in  2010 as  an  employee.  

 Dur ing  tha t  pe r iod  I  served on the  boards as  Eskom 

rep resenta t i ve ,  on  the  board  o f  Mot raco the  Mozambique  
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Transmiss ion  Company,  on  Wesco as  the  Western  Power  

Cor r idor  Company and I  a lso  served in  the  capac i ty  as  

o f f i c ia l  on  the  Eskom Hold ings board .  Thank you Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Dr  Na idoo.   Dr  Na idoo d id  

you have any re la t ions  or  in te rac t ions w i th  your  board  

members  –  any  o f  your  board  members  pr io r  to  your  

appo in tment  on  the  Eskom board?  

DR NAIDOO:   Cer ta in ly  no t  –  no  one.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No one.    

DR NAIDOO:   No  one.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wi th  Mr  Sa l im Essa?  

DR NAIDOO:   No  S i r.   I  do  no t  even know the  gent leman.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You do not  even know h im.   Wi th  any o f  

the  Gupta  bro thers?  

DR NAIDOO:   Yes S i r.   A tu l  Gupta .   Some –  a t  a lmost  two 

decades ago 2003 I  was a  member  o f  the  Eskom 

Delegat ion  tha t  accompan ied then  Pres ident  Mbek i  on  h is  

inaugura l  s ta te  v i s i t  to  Ind ia .     

 In  Ind ia  Mr  A tu l  Gupta  In te rnat iona l  in t roduced  

h imse l f  to  us  as  an  investo r  in  South  A f r i ca .   He was in  – 20 

coming to  invest  in  ICT and he had then a t  tha t  s tage 

launched Sahara  Computers .   And he inv i ted  us  the 

bus iness de legat ion  to  come and  have a  fac tory  v is i t  –  

Sahara  Compute rs  in  Midrand.  

 When we re turned to  South  A f r i ca  he  had schedu led  



10 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 341 
 

Page 11 of 294 
 

a  v is i t  fo r  us  to  v is i t  h is  fac tory.   We a t tended tha t  v is i t  and 

he conducted tha t  v is i t  persona l ly.   So tha t  was the  second 

t ime I  met  h im.   That  was in  2003  as  I  documented  in  the 

a f f idav i t .   Thank you Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   D id  you have any 

in te rac t ion  w i th  h im dur ing  your  appo in tment  –  I  mean 

dur ing  your  se rv i ce  on  the  Eskom Board .  

DR NAIDOO:   Cer ta in l y  no t  –  cer ta in ly  no t .   Even dur ing  

2003 I  had no in te rac t ion .   I t  was in  a  pub l i c  se t t ing  he  had 

in t roduced h imse l f  and even a t  the  factory  v i s i t  i t  was in  a  10 

pub l i c  se t t ing .   We had no in te rac t i on .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Any p r io r  in te rac t ion  or  re la t ions w i th  

Min is te r  Lynn Brown?  

DR NAIDOO:   Cer ta in ly  none.  I  met  Min is te r  Brown f i rs t  t ie  

when I  a t tended the  –  when I  was i nducted in to  the  board .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wi th  the  fo rmer  Pres ident  Jacob Zuma? 

DR NAIDOO:   Cer ta in ly  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.  

DR NAIDOO:   Thank you Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Le t  me jus t  g ive  you a  sequence  o f  how 20 

I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  lead your  ev idence.   There  is  what  has 

been re fer red  to  as  the  Coopera t ion  Agreement  conc luded 

between Eskom and OCM in  2014 w i th  the  Four th  

Addendum pav ing  the  way th rough emend ing the i r  

agreement  be tween the  two ent i t ies .    
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 That  i s  on  the  one hand.   On the  o ther  then i t  w i l l  

be  the  submiss ion  tha t  i s  made in  December  2015  

regard ing  a  p re-payment  dec i s ion .  

 Le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  the  Coopera t ion  Agreement  

because the  Coopera t ion  Agreement  as  you wou ld  reca l l  i t  

was an endeavour  be tween Eskom and OCM to  rev ise  the  

te rms o f  the i r  agreement  an  ex i s t ing .  

 That  Coopera t ion  Agreement  came to  the  BTC on  

the  15 t h  o f  Apr i l  2015.   The BTC d id  no t  dec ide  i t ;  i t  

re fe r red  the  mat te r  to  the  board .  10 

 Were  you a  member  o f  the  BTC a t  the  t ime – Apr i l  

2015?  

DR NAIDOO:   No  S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You were  no t?  

DR NAIDOO:   No .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The mat te r  then came to  the  board  on  

the  23 r d  o f  Apr i l  2015.   You reca l l  tha t?   You reca l l  tha t?  

DR NAIDOO:   Yes S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   The board  too  d id  no t  dec ide  the  

mat te r  and I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  b r i e f l y  te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson  20 

why d id  the  board  no t  dec ide  the  mat te r  and what  i t  d id  –  

what  d id  the  board  ins tead do w i th  the  mat te r  in  the  

meet ing  o f  the  23 r d  o f  Apr i l  2015.  

DR NAIDOO:   Thank you.   Thank you Advocate .   Cha i r  

Advocate  i s  re fe r r ing  to  an  opera t iona l  document  be tween 
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Eskom as the  company and OCM as the  supp l ie r.   I  had no 

deta i l s  o f  the  opera t iona l  content  o f  tha t  –  o r  no  par t  in  i t s  

s t ruc ture  or  in  i t s  p romot ion .  

 Cha i r  I  want  to  re f lec t  a  l i t t le  b i t  on  Opt imum Coa l  

Mine,  on  Hendr ina  Power  S ta t ion  and g i ve  you a  l i t t le  b i t  o f  

a  background i f  I  may?  Thank you.    

 Cha i r  Hendr ina  Power  S ta t ion  and  as  you w i l l  Cha i r  

sor ry  I  was an employee o f  Eskom so I  have been to  

Hendr ina  many t imes.   Hendr ina  Power  S ta t ion  in  the  

ca tegory  o f  lowes t  cos t  p roducers  o f  e lec t r i ca l  energy.   I t  i s  10 

in  the  company  o f  Koeberg  the  Nuc lea r  S ta t ion  in  the 

company o f  Cahora  Bassa the  Hydroe lec t r i c  S ta t ion  tha t  

b r ings us  power  f rom Mozanb ique.  

 Very,  very  low cost  power.   The s ta t ion  was bu i l t  in  

the  70 ’s  and i t s  coa l  supp ly  ag reement  then commenced 

w i th  the  m iners .   And the  coa l  a t  Hendr ina  S i r  i s  on  the  

ground.   You l i te ra l l y  scoop up  the  ground and you feed i t  

in to  the  00 :14:24 tha t  i s  how s imple  i t  i s .  

 I t  i s  cont inuous  opera t ion  24 /7  365 fo r  many  

decades.   And over  the  t ime  pe r iod  a lmost  50  years  i t  has 20 

genera ted  a  lo t  o f  e lec t r i c i t y  fo r  South  A f r i ca  –  lowest  cos t  

e lec t r i c i t y  and tha t  i s  what  gave Eskom tha t  sor t  o f  lowest  

cos t  pos i t ion .    

 And i t  was very  much an ag reement  tha t  benef i ted  

a l l  par t ies  Eskom,  a  m ine,  the  communi ty.   Everyone was a  
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w in -w in  type agree.   The des ign  o f  the  power  s ta t ion  o f  

Hendr ina  was such tha t  i t  cons is ted  o f  ten  mach ines o f  200  

megawat ts .   So smal l  capac i ty  bu t  lo ts  o f  i t .   So  tha t  i t  can  

take  in  the  sor t  o f  very,  very  low qua l i t y  coa l ,  v i r tua l l y  the  

ground and make  e lec t r i c i t y.  

 And du r ing  the  te rm o f  i t s  agreement  there  were  

one or  two addendums a t tached to  tha t  agreement  and one  

o f  the  addendums I  reca l l  was  the  addendum around  

hardsh ip .   A supp l ie r  can say to  Eskom I  have got  hardsh ip  

and he can dec lare  ha rdsh ip .  Because the  pr ice  i s  very,  10 

very  low.  

 And then Eskom in  i t s  –  in  i t s  methodo logy o f  

se t t ing  up  the  m ine a t  a l l  in i t ia l l y  p repa id  fo r  a l l  the  cap i ta l  

in f ras t ruc tu re .   So tha t  i s  where  tha t  who le  pre -payment  

concept  comes in .  

 So the  m ine supp l ies  the  coa l ,  the  cap i ta l  

in f ras t ruc tu re  i s  a l l  p repa id  and in  a l l  o f  those addendums 

Cha i r  Eskom a l lowed the  m ine to  expor t  the  h igher  g rade 

coa l  to  in te rna t iona l  o r  to  00 :15 :55 so  tha t  they cou ld  make  

more  cash.  20 

 And tha t  gave Hendr ina  the  pos i t ion  o f  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   And i f  I  can  ask… 

DR NAIDOO:   P lease do Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was i t  l i ke  par t  o f  the  dea l  tha t  you w i l l  

charge us  low p r ices  bu t  in  re tu rn  we w i l l  a l low  you to  
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make money.  

DR NAIDOO:   Ag reed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wi th  the  expor t  sec t ion  o f  the  m ine?  

DR NAIDOO:   Ag reed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  to  make up fo r  whatever  losses you  

may su f fe r  on  the  domest ic  s ide .  

DR NAIDOO:   Ag reed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

DR NAIDOO:   Bu t  –  and tha t  gave the  m ine an  expor t  

a l loca t ion  quota  a t  R ichards Bay.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

DR NAIDOO:   On  the  MLO Richards Bay coa l  l ine  tha t  h igh  

grade coa l  w i l l  then go in to  the  expor t .   Eskom made tha t  

a l lowance and tha t  i s  par t  o f  the-  one o f  the  addendums 

Cha i r.    

 Bu t  aga in  the  pr i ce  was kept  low.   And then Cha i r  

as  the  –  the  agreement  was com ing towards a  c losure  I  

reca l l  the  agreement  was schedu led  to  end December  

2018.   So th is  is  a  deve lopment  now in  2015 and the  

Opt imum Coa l  Mine then sa id  I  need a  h igher  p r ice  o f  coa l .  20 

They want  to  reset  the  base pr i ce  because the re  is  a  

po ten t ia l  tha t  i s  a  new agreement  cou ld  be  reached post  

2018 fo r  another  ten  years ,  twenty  years ,  th i r t y  yea rs  a t  a  

h igher  p r i ce .  

 And I  was pa r t  o f  tha t  d iscuss ion  a t  the  investment  
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and f inance commi t tee  and I  knew a  l i t t le  b i t  o f  the  h is to ry  

o f  th is  a l l  and I  sa id  no  ways  we cannot  ad jus t  tha t  

because then we are  chang ing  the  des ign  o f  the  power  

s ta t ion ,  we chang ing  the  who le  mode l  tha t  we put  on  the  … 

 When 2018 conc ludes you w i l l  have an oppor tun i t y  

fo r  bo th  par t ies  to  dec ide  on  a  new cont rac t  go ing  fo rward .   

And Eskom can dec ide  whether  i t  s t i l l  wants  to  opera te  

Hendr ina  o r  do  no t  opera te .   

 That  was bas ic  where  the  push came and where  the  

res i s tance f rom Eskom came in  te rms o f  no t  a l low ing the 10 

h igher  00 :17 :50.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  the  hardsh ip  c lause  as  you  

unders tand i t  o r  as  you unders tood i t  a t  the  t ime was i t  

meant  to  ca ter  fo r  a  s i tua t ion  where  i t  wou ld  appear  fo r  

example  tha t  G lencore  d id  no t  do  a  due d i l igence  before  

tak ing  th i s  cont rac t  over  and i t  looks  l i ke  la te r  on  when i t  

was compla in ing  about  the  coa l  p r ice  be ing  too  l ow and 

su f fe r i ng  hardsh ip  tha t  seems to  be  a t  leas t  in  par t  

because i t  d id  no t  do  what  i t  i s  supposed to  have done 

f rom the  beg inn ing  because one wou ld  have though t  tha t  i f  20 

you want  to  take  over  somebody e lse ’s  cont rac t  such as  

th is  one o f  the  th ings you wou ld  look a t  par t i cu la r ly  when 

you ta lk  about  the  –  such a  long te rm cont rac t  i s  –  i s  there  

a  prov i s ion  i n  the  cont rac t  fo r  the  esca la t ion  or  the  

increase o f  the  pr ice  annua l l y  o r  a t  whatever  in te rva ls  
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because the  prob lem seems to  have been tha t  the  par t ies  

were  locked in to  th is  p r ice  tha t  had  been dete rmined  a  long 

t ime before .  

DR NAIDOO:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then when i t  compla ined about  

hardsh ip  one gets  the  impress ion  bu t  i f  you  had done your  

–  your  homework  and you had ra i sed th is  i ssue you wou ld  

no t  be  in  th is  s i tua t ion .  

DR NAIDOO:   Cer ta in ly  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  you can en l i gh ten  me maybe there  is  10 

someth ing  I  –  I  do  no t  unders tand  but  tha t  was one o f  my 

quer ies  about  G lencore ’s  OCM’s  so  ca l led  hardsh ip .  

DR NAIDOO:   Yes Cha i r.   Cha i r  i f  we re f lec t  i t  was  a  very  

long te rm cont rac t .   I f  i t  i s  2018 bu i l t  in  the  70 ’s  i t  i s  

a lmost  a  f i f t y  yea r  t ype cont rac t .   I t  i s  coming towards the  

end now 2018 i t  i s  a lmost  so r t  o f  days to  end ing .    

 The bo i le rs  a t  Hendr ina  as  I  sa id  ear l ie r  Cha i r  they  

were  des igned to  burn  th is  g round  l i te ra l l y  no t  coa l  ca l l  i t  

the  ground here  or  there .   And –  and tha t  who le  mode l  was 

packaged a round  i t .   I f  you  changed –  change tha t  mode l  20 

then the  who le  th ing  fa l l s  apar t .   And aga in  Hendr ina  was – 

was a  cash mach ine  –  a  cash mach ine  fo r  Eskom.   I t  made 

a  lo t  o f  cash fo r  Eskom.   A lo t  o f  e lec t r i c i t y  sa les .   And you 

do not  want  to  d is tu rb  tha t  mode l  Cha i r  tha t  i s  bas ica l l y  

what  i t  was and tha t  i s  why tha t  p r ice  was f i xed  long te rm.  
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 And aga in  th i s  hardsh ip  c lause was in t roduced and 

an addendum to  tha t  e f fec t  was  in t roduced to  g ive  the  

supp l ie r  re l ie f  expor t  on  the  coa l  m ine.  

 And around 2015 Cha i r  the  ex terna l  coa l  market  

a lso  co l lapsed so  you cou ld  see where  G lencore ’s  pos i t ion  

was or  the  shareho lder  o f  OCM pos i t ion  was.   He was not  

mak ing  money on  the  expor t  marke t  and not  mak ing  money  

on the  domest ic  market  incur r i ng  costs .  

 And aga in  say ing  to  Eskom I  need more  cash,  I  

need more  cash.   That  se ts  the  bas is  fo r  tha t  p re -payment ,  10 

tha t  then ar r i ved thereaf te r.   So tha t  i s  i t  the  founda t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes bu t  i s  your  answer  tha t  the  hardsh ip  

tha t  OCM whi le  i t  was under  G lencore  compla ined about  

was not  la rge l y  due to  i t  no t  hav ing  done i t s  homework?  

DR NAIDOO:   Ag reed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:   That  i s  very  c lea r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:   That  i s  very  c lea r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  ja .  20 

DR NAIDOO:   I  fu l l y  agree.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay a l r igh t .  

DR NAIDOO:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Dr  –  Dr  Na idoo so  
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you  say ing  tha t  hardsh ip  exper ienced by  OCM and the  

request  by  OCM for  an  increase  in  the  purchase pr ice  

wou ld  have se t  the  ground work  fo r  the  pre-payment?  

DR NAIDOO:   Cor rec t .   Cor rec t  Cha i r.   In  fac t  there  an  –  

another  deve lopment  be fore  pre -payment  tha t  was  

bus iness rescue.  The shareho lde rs  o f  OCM then put  the  

company in to  bus iness rescue and now we are  dea l i ng  w i th  

bus iness rescue prac t i t ioners  and aga in  the  –  the  message  

conveyed to  Eskom jobs w i l l  be  a t  s take.   We are  go ing  to  

s top  the  product ion ;  peop le  are  go ing  to  lose  jobs .   And 10 

aga in  when I  re f lec ted  on tha t  pa r t i cu la r  pos i t ion  o f  the  job  

Cha i r  I  sa id  power  s ta t ions  has been the re  fo r  f i f t y  odd  

years  i t  has  crea ted jobs fo r  the  communi ty.   I t  i s  a  mat te r  

o f  days be fore  i t  i s  go ing  to  s top  work ing  and aga in  i t  has  

done i t s  sha re  fo r  the  communi ty  so  le t  us  no t  make jobs a  

par t i cu la r  i ssue to  focus on .   Le t  us  focus on  the  –  on  the  

na t iona l  g r id  secur i t y  and make  sure  the  mach ines are  

work ing ,  make su re  there  is  cont inu i t y  o f  opera t ions .  

 And aga in  Cha i r  dur ing  tha t  bus iness rescue  

opera t ions unknown to  the  bus iness rescue p rac t i t ioners  20 

Eskom had been in  deep d i s t ress ,  load shedd ing  was a t  i t s  

a l l  t ime h igh  –  there  was –  there  was a  lo t  o f  d is tu rbance  

w i th in  the  opera t iona l  end o f  Eskom.   But  unknown to  them 

we had a l ready  commenced the  recovery  o f  Eskom 

Genera t ion .  And  Eskom Genera t ion  Energy ava i lab i l i t y  
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fac tor  was a l ready on the  recovery.   We cou ld  

accommodate  one or  two mach ines be ing  d is tu rbed  

because remember  these are  smal l  un i t s  200 megawat ts .   

So i f  you  do bump i t  you are  go ing  to  bump 1  200 or  2  200  

or  so  bu t  no t  a l l  o f  them.   And we  cou ld  accommodate  tha t  

d is tu rbance on the  na t iona l  g r id  w i thout  d is tu rb ing  secur i t y  

o f  … 

 We knew tha t  and tha t  i s  why we sor t  go t  in to  a  

l i t t le  b i t  o f  an  en t renched pos i t ion  regard ing  th is  p r ice  o f  

coa l .   And we sa id  we wou ld  l i ke  to  ho ld  on to  the  -  th is  -  10 

whatever  i s  i n  the  cont rac t  –  you,  me renegot ia te  tha t  end  

o f  December  2018.   And we fee l ing  comfor tab le  we w i l l  

manage nat iona l  g r id  secur i t y.   We were  ve ry  happy.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now a re  you ta lk ing  about  the  per iod  

where  OCM/Glencore  was push ing  fo r  an  increase o f  –  on  

the  coa l  p r ice?  

DR NAIDOO:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  tha t  what  you are  ta lk ing  about?  

DR NAIDOO:   Cor rec t  Cha i r  cor rec t .   So they were  push ing  

on the  increase o f  the  coa l  p r ice  and then s imu l taneous ly  20 

they th rowing bus iness rescue ,  s imu l taneous ly  they  

th rowing l oss  o f  jobs  fo r  the  communi ty.   So i t  i s  

compound ing  i t se l f .   I t  i s  ge t t ing  more  and more  d i f f i cu l t .   

 Bu t  aga in  a t  tha t  t ime Cha i r  I  was very  conf iden t  

tha t  we w i l l  ma in ta in  na t iona l  g r id  secur i t y  tha t  was  a lways 
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my re ference.   A re  you go ing  to  ho ld  na t iona l  g r id  secur i t y  

be fore  we break?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now I  asked you a  quest ion  ear l ie r  on  

and you gave an answer  bu t  I  th ink  a l though the  

in fo rmat ion  you gave me was I  th ink  usefu l  i t  d id  no t  go  to  

the  quest ion  namely  whether  what  –  whethe r  the  s i tua t ion  

tha t  G lencore /OCM found i t se l f  in  when i t  invoked the  

hardsh ip  c lause was the  s i tua t ion  fo r  wh ich  the  hardsh ip  

c lause had been created?  

DR NAIDOO:   We l l    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   In  o ther  words was i t  –  d id  i t  f i t  w i th in  as 

you unders tood  the  k ind  o f  hardsh ip  tha t  was  

contempla ted?  

DR NAIDOO:   Yes Cha i r  in  fac t  the  hardsh ip  c lause I  th ink  

was in i t ia ted  by  the  commencement  o f  the  ag reement .   

Never  rea l l y  …ever  rea l l y  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:   Pe r ta ined to  any par t i cu la r  supp l ie r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .  

DR NAIDOO:   I t  was there  i t  was embedded in  the  or ig ina l   20 

agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .  

DR NAIDOO:   Because o f  Eskom ho ld ing  the  pr i ce  o f  coa l  

de l i vered to  i t s  lowest  leve l  and  Eskom agreed we w i l l  

p repay fo r  the  cap i ta l  in f ras t ruc ture  to  m ine the  coa l  and 
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de l i ver  i t  th roughout .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  o f  course  u l t imate ly  OCM d id  no t  

pursue the  a rb i t ra t ion  process to  the  end a r is ing  ou t  o f  the 

invocat ion  o f  the  hardsh ip  c lause.   As  I  reca l l  you –  i f  you  

invoke the  hardsh ip  c lause i f  the  par t ies  meet  and  cannot  

reach agreement  you go to  a rb i t ra t ion .  

DR NAIDOO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  Eskom’s  pos i t ion  was  

okay you have invoked the  ha rdsh ip  c lause we can go 

th rough i t  and le t  the  arb i t ra to r  dec ide?  10 

DR NAIDOO:   No Cha i r  i t  d id  no t  go  arb i t ra t ion .   I  th ink  

G lencore… 

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no  bu t  what  I  am say ing  is  I  th ink  you  

–  you agree and I  wanted you to  conf i rm tha t  once a  par ty  

to  tha t  coa l  supp ly  agreement  had invoked a  hardsh ip  

c lause.  

DR NAIDOO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The hardsh ip  c lause.  

DR NAIDOO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The rou te  u l t imate ly  i f  the  pa r t ies  cou ld  20 

not  reach agreement .  

DR NAIDOO:   I s  a rb i t ra t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  a rb i t ra t ion .  

DR NAIDOO:   Ag reed,  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  I  am say ing  as  I  reca l l  the  
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mat te r  u l t imate ly  never  reached a rb i t ra t ion .  

DR NAIDOO:   Never,  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  I  am ask ing  whethe r  Eskom’s  pos i t ion  

was tha t  you OCM have invoked the  hardsh ip  c lause and  

we a re  happy fo r  tha t  to  take  i t s  course .  

DR NAIDOO:   Cor rec t .   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And so  to  speak we w i l l  see  what  

happens.  

DR NAIDOO:   Ag reed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  i t  i s  your  r igh t  to  take  tha t  rou te .  10 

DR NAIDOO:   Agreed.   Agreed –  co r rec t  Cha i r  tha t  i s  

cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay a l r igh t .   So – so  OCM to  the  

ex ten t  tha t  they may compla in  about  Eskom hav ing  taken a  

hard  l ine  on  the  i ssue o f  –  on  the i r  request  o r  p roposa l  fo r  

an  increase o f  the  coa l  p r i ce  on  the  bas i s  tha t  they were  

su f fe r i ng  hardsh ip  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  G lencore /OCM 

cr i t i c i sed Eskom’s  hard  l ine .   One answer  f rom Eskom 

wou ld  be  but  i f  you  thought  we were  un jus t i f ied  in  tak ing  

the  hard  l ine  tha t  we took you had a  remedy.  20 

DR NAIDOO:   Ag reed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Namely  to  pursue arb i t ra t ion  up  to  the 

end.  

DR NAIDOO:   Ag reed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because i f  the  arb i  –  i f  you  pursued 
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a rb i t ra t ion  and the  arb i t ra to r  found  aga ins t  us  as  Eskom we 

wou ld  comply  w i th  the  award  o f  the  arb i t ra to r.  

DR NAIDOO:   Ag reed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You d id  no t  pursue tha t  l ine .  

DR NAIDOO:   Ag reed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  may we l l  be  tha t  the  reason you 

d id  no t  pursue i t  because you rea l i sed tha t  you were  no t  

go ing  to  have a  s t rong case.  

DR NAIDOO:   Ag reed Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

DR NAIDOO:   Cha i r  and I  want  to  a lso  add Cha i r.   Had the  

arb i t ra to r  ru led  i n  the  favour  o f  the  supp l ie r  ra the r  than in  

Eskom’s  favour  we wou ld  have rea r ranged the  opera t ion  o f  

the  power  s ta t ion  such tha t  we reduce the  quant i t y  o f  coa l  

tha t  we get .   We wou ld  have shared tha t  load ac ross the  

f lee t  o f  power  s ta t ions .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

DR NAIDOO:   So  ins tead o f  burn ing  X  vo lumes a t  Y pr ice  

we wou ld  have ad jus ted  the  vo lumes to  bu rn  a t  tha t  p r ice  

so  tha t  we can keep the  cost  to  the  company constant .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  I  want  to  make sure  I  unders tand  

what  you have jus t  sa id  because I  want  to  unders tand  

whethe r  i t  amoun ts  to  say ing  we wou ld  no t  comply  w i th  the 

arb i t ra to rs  award  i f  he  or  she found in  favour  o f  OCM or  

whethe r  i t  says  we wou ld  comply.   We wou ld  jus t  need to  
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make cer ta in  a r rangements  in  o rde r  to  hand le  the  s i tua t ion .  

DR NAIDOO:    Ag ree.   We wi l l  comply  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    Bu t  we w i l l  make opera t ion  requ i rements  to  

hand le  the  impact  on  the  company.    

CHAIRPERSON:    The opera t iona l  a r rangements  tha t  you  

wou ld  make,  wou ld  they no t  resu l t  in  OCM’s  v i c to ry  in  the 

arb i t ra t ion  awarded be ing  an empty  v ic to ry?  

DR NAIDOO:    Cha i r,  ja  i t  cou ld  resu l t  in  them see ing  i t  as  

a  v ic to ry  bu t  in  te rms o f  the  ne t  o r  the  focus costs  to  e i ther  10 

company,  i t  w i l l  be  constant .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Wel l ,  I  am sure  you might  no t  make 

look in to  i t  fu r ther  bu t  yes  I  am concerned whether  you 

wou ld  e f fec t i ve ly  be  say ing :   Wel l ,  le t  us  go  to  a rb i t ra t ion .   

I f  you  w in ,  we know how we f i x  you.  

DR NAIDOO:    That  i s  the  name o f  the  game.  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]  

DR NAIDOO:    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You see tha t  i s  what  Eskom was 

p lann ing .  20 

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  why they were  say ing :   Okay,  go  

to  a rb i t ra t ion .    

DR NAIDOO:    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]  
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DR NAIDOO:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Dr  Na idoo,  le t  us  go  back to  the  

meet ing  o f  the  21 s t .   So  the  Coa l  Opera t ion  Agreement  i s  

be fore  the  board  and the  te rms you are  propos ing  i n  te rms  

o f  the  4 t h  Agenda .   Jus t  te l l  the  Cha i r  how the  board  dea l t  

w i th  tha t  mat te r.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  Cha i r  i f  I  may.   I  th ink  the  dec i s ion  tha t  

there  was not  taken to  board .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  10 

DR NAIDOO:    Was i t  no t  cance l led  ou t  aga in?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  was t ransfer red  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

DR NAIDOO:    To  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    To  the  Ch ie f  –  the  new Ch ie f  

Execut ive .  

DR NAIDOO:    To  the  new Ch ie f  Execut ive .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   That  was  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe .  

DR NAIDOO:    Mr  Mole fe ,  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So th is  i s  a  meet ing  on  the  

23 r d  o f  Apr i l .   I t  i s  a t  the  same meet ing  tha t  the  board  20 

approves the  secondment  o f  Mr  Mole fe .   

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    To  be  w i th  e f fec t  f rom the  20 t h  o f  Apr i l .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  he is  new a t  Eskom.  
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DR NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   I s  there  a  reason why the  mat te r  

was not  re fe r red  to  the  team,  back to  the  team tha t  was  

negot ia t ing  the  t ransact ion?  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  Cha i r  i t  wou ld  go  back to  the  team but  

v ia  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive .   I t  i s  an  opera t iona l  accoun tab i l i t y.   

Sor ry,  Cha i r.   I t  i s  an  opera t iona l  accountab i l i t y.   I t  goes 

back in to  the  organ isa t ion  and the  po in t  o f  en t ry  in to  the  

organ isa t ion  as  the  cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  10 

DR NAIDOO:    Bu t  tha t  i s  a l l  tha t  i t  was.   And aga in ,  as  the  

ear l ie r  d iscuss ion  we had.   There  are  lo t s  o f  complex i t ies  

around i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.  

DR NAIDOO:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  we have seen f rom var ious 

a f f idav i t s  o f  board  members  who a re  ye t  to  tes t i f y  i nc lud ing  

yourse l ves,  tha t  there  was an expecta t ion  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  

w i l l  come back to  the  board  on  tha t  i ssues.  

DR NAIDOO:    I  wou ld  expect  so .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  he  wou ld  repor t  back.  

DR NAIDOO:    He wou ld  repor t  back,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.   The quest ion  was then asked  

wh ich  you addressed in  your  a f f idav i t ,  whether  were  you  

aware  as  the  board . . .   Wel l ,  le t  me ask you whether  –  d id  
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Mr  Mole fe  come back to  the  board?  You have any 

reco l lec t ion  o f  h im coming back to  the  board?  

DR NAIDOO:    Spec i f i ca l l y  no  s i r  bu t  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  

does repor t  to  the  board  on  a  month ly  bas i s .   A t  the  board  

meet ing  there  is  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive ’s  repor t .   I  am not  

sure  whether  i t  was conta ined in  tha t  repor t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   Le t  me ask you th is  then.   

We have seen f rom the  ev idence  tha t  he  te rm ina ted the  

negot ia t ion  and corpora te  agreement  w i th  OCM.   Was the  

board  aware  o f  tha t  te rm inat ion?  10 

DR NAIDOO:    No,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    P r io r  to  i t  happen ing ,  you were  no t  

aware?  

DR NAIDOO:    No,  tha t  i s  an  opera t iona l  accountab i l i t y.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Now,  so  there  is  –  the  pa r t ies  are  

t ry ing  to  negot ia te  a  new agreement ,  a  new te rm,  increase 

the  pr ice .   The mat te r  i s  g i ven to  Mr  Mole fe  who  has jus t  

a r r i ved a t  Eskom.   He u l t imate ly  te rm inates  tha t  p rocess in  

Ju l y  2015.   You are  say ing  the  board  is  no t  aware  o f  i t .   

Can you reca l l  when the  board  does become aware  o f  i t  o r  20 

you persona l ly?  

DR NAIDOO:    Cha i r,  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I f  you  cannot  reca l l ,  you  cannot  reca l l .  

DR NAIDOO:    No,  I  th ink  t he  –  the  best  I  can g ive  you 

Cha i r  i s .   A t  the  Investment  and F inance Commi t tee  when I  
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made tha t  –  when I  cha i red  tha t  commi t tee ,  there  was th is  

i ssue o f  the  prepayment  and  in  tha t  p repayment  

conversa t ion ,  my best  unders tand ing  was tha t  G lencore  

was s t i l l  the  owner  o f  OCM.    

 And I  d id  make my comment  in  tha t  conc lus ion  o f  

tha t  meet ing  tha t  g iven the  two par t ies  to  come to  some 

agreement ,  Eskom and OCM,  tha t  the  cha i rman o f  Eskom 

and the  cha i rman o f  G lencore  shou ld  make a  jo ined  

s ta tement  o f  tha t  e f fec t .   I  made  tha t  and I  pu t  i t  in  my 

records.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Okay Cha i r  tha t  –  Cha i rpe rson,  

tha t  acce le ra tes  the  mat te r.   So le t  us  go  in to  tha t .  

DR NAIDOO:    R igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Dr  Na idoo,  le t  us  go  in to  tha t .  

DR NAIDOO:    R igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  the  te rm inat ion  i s  made o f  the  

negot ia t ion  process be tween the  two pa r t ies ,  Eskom and 

OCM.   In  December  2015,  the  8 t h  o f  December  2015,  the 

board  ge ts  an  emai l  f rom Ms Suzanne Dan ie ls .  

DR NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    About  the  request  fo r  the  board  to  

cons ider  a  submiss ion  fo r  a  p repayment  o f  R 1 .6  b i l l i on .  

DR NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now tha t  submiss ion  and tha t  i s  where  

you are .  
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DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson what  you 

unders tood the  submiss ion  to  request  the  prepayment  to  be 

made?   

DR NAIDOO:    R igh t .   Thank you,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  th i s  was –  

th is  d id  no t  come to  a  fo rmal  meet ing .   We got  a  request  

e lec t ron i ca l l y.   I t  was an emergency request .   I t  came 

th rough e lec t ron i ca l l y.    

 And I  was a  member  o f  the  Investment  and F inance  

Commi t tee .   That  i s  where  i t  came to .   And the  cha i rpe rson 10 

o f  the  Investment  and  F inance Commi t tee  recused h imse l f  

and I  found myse l f  in  the  cha i r  now cha i r ing  th is  meet ing ,  

no t  in  a  fo rmal  se t t ing  bu t  on  a  Round- rob in  reso lu t ion .    

 And I  looked a t  the  request  o f  p repayment .   

P repayment  fo r  coa l  f rom Opt imum Coa l .   And the  

prepayment  va lue  o f  R 1 .68  b i l l i on .    

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was how much?  

DR NAIDOO:    R  1 .68  b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  b i l l i on  rands?  

DR NAIDOO:    Ja .   Ja ,  tha t  was there .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

DR NAIDOO:    And when I  looked  a t  i t  and I  looked a t  the  

submiss ion  tha t  was tab led ,  i t  mot iva ted  f i rs t l y  th is  

agreement  be tween Eskom and OCM.    

 Remember  they had a  s t ra ined re la t ionsh ip ,  they  
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have now come to  an  agreement .   They are  happy togethe r.   

OCM requ i res  cash in  advance to  g ive  them l iqu id i t y  so  

tha t  they can get  on  w i th  the i r  bus iness.    

 De l i ver  the  coa l  to  Hendr ina  Power  S ta t ion  p lus  

a lso  take  the  coa l  and se l l  i t  to  the  expor t  marke t  and they 

w i l l  make more  money o f  i t .   That  was the re  sor t  o f  

mot iva t ion .    

 And they a lso  sa id  they a re  in  the  process o f  

tak ing  on  more  B lack  Economic  Empowerment  in  te rms o f  

the i r  cont rac tua l  re la t ionsh ips  w i th in  o r  shareho lder  10 

re la t ionsh ips  w i th in  OCM i tse l f .    

 And they have got  some suppor t  and we cou ld  

ass is t  them wi th  th is  R 1 .68  b i l l i on .   We wi l l  ensure  

secur i t y  o f  de l i ve ry  o f  coa l  to  Hendr ina  Power  S ta t ion .    

 A lso ,  they ex tended the  de l i very  to  another  

na t iona l  power  s ta t ion ,  A rnot .   And they a l so  sa id  they w i l l  

secu re  the  jobs o f  the  peop le .    

 So when we looked a t  a l l  tha t  we sa id  p repayment  

i s  ce r ta in ly  an  indust ry  p rac t ise .   Eskom does th is  a l l  the 

t ime,  no t  jus t  on  the  coa l  s ide ,  even on the  e lec t r i c i t y  sa le  20 

s ide .    

 You can be a  prepa id  customer  to  buy e lec t r i c i t y.   

And when we looked a t  i t  we sa id  the  secur i t y  in  te rms o f  

tha t  R 1 .68  b i l l i on ,  the  secur i t y  and the  i nvento ry  –  as  I  

sa id  the  coa l  i s  a t  Hendr ina ’s ,  no t  to  anyone e lse ’s .   I t  i s  
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r igh t  ou ts ide .   We have got  secur i t y  on  tha t  inventory  

aga ins t  tha t  R 1 .68  b i l l i on .    

 And we sa id  the  R 1 .68  b i l l i on  prepayment  wou ld  

be  absorbed by  opera t ions w i th in  a  few weeks l i te ra l l y.   So 

tha t  we be used.   And i t  i s  a  w in -w in  s i tua t ion  fo r  Eskom 

and fo r  OCM.    

 And i t  i s  in  tha t  response,  I  sa id  towards the  end  

o f  my note ,  th is  i s  a  pos i t i ve  deve lopment  g iven the 

d is t ress  o f  where  we coming f rom.    

 And I  th ink  the  cha i rman o f  Eskom and the  10 

cha i rman o f  G lencore  shou ld  make  a  jo in t  s ta tement  to  th is  

e f fec t  tha t  we both  came together  and we work ing  togethe r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  thank you .   Thank you fo r  c lear ing  

tha t  ou t .   So Dr  Na idoo,  your  unders tand ing  was tha t  OCM,  

wh ich  is  one owned by  G lencore ,  was –  there  was go ing  to  

be  th is  p repayment .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The re la t ionsh ip  has –  the  soured 20 

re la t ionsh ip  i s  now rev i ta l i sed .  

DR NAIDOO:    Ag reed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And we are  go ing  to  ass i s t  OCM,  come 

out  o f  bus iness rescue,  sa fe  jobs,  supp ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

DR NAIDOO:    Ag reed.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    . . .Hendr ina  supp ly  and A rnot .  

DR NAIDOO:    Ag reed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And so  on .   So tha t  i s  the  IFC.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  was the . . .   I t  i s  qu i te  c lear  f rom what  

you say,  what  you have sa id ,  tha t  as  fa r  as  you a re  

concerned,  your  in ten t ion  –  and you may go fu r ther  and 

say you th ink  i t  was the  in ten t ion  o f  a l l  the  board  members ,  

I  am not  sure ,  you can dea l  w i th  tha t  jus t  now.   Your  

in ten t ion  was tha t  Eskom was grant ing  or  the  board  was 

approv ing  prepayment  to  OCM under  G lencore .  10 

DR NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And not  to  Tegeta .  

DR NAIDOO:    Not  to  Tegeta .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    No,  there  is  no  Tegeta  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

DR NAIDOO:    And Cha i r,  th is  was done in  my apar tment  in  

Park town.   I  am at  home.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    I  am not  in  a  boardroom.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

DR NAIDOO:    And tha t  i s  why I  wro te  down those po in ts  

and I  have communica ted  tha t  to  my fe l low co l leagues.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    I  sa id :   Co l leagues ,  th is  i s  the  reason why I  
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am g iv ing  the  approva l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    And I  was now in  the  cha i r  o f  the  Investment  

and F inance Commi t tee .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay a l r igh t .  

DR NAIDOO:    That  i s  the  reason I  tab led .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i rpe rson,  j us t  by  way o f  re fe rence.   

Dr  Na idoo,  maybe you shou ld  go  to  Eskom Bund le  18  10 

because tha t  no te  you are  re fe r r i ng  to  is  to  be  found in  

18(A ) .  

DR NAIDOO:    18 . . .?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    B racket  A .  

DR NAIDOO:    P lease he lp .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Somebody must  ass i s t  h im to  ge t  to  the  

r igh t  bund le .  

DR NAIDOO:    Thank you.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   I t  i s  18(A )  Cha i rperson,  page 20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    They w i l l  ident i f y  the  bund le  and g ive  i t  

to  you Dr  Na idoo.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  the  page Mr  Se leka?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  page two. . .   I t  s ta r ts  a t  page 281.   

Jus t . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 281.    

DR NAIDOO:    R igh t .   I  have got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You have got  i t?   Okay.   Ja ,  s tay  on  

281.  

DR NAIDOO:    Okay,  I  go t  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  Because I  want  to  re fe r  you  to  281 

and 286.    10 

DR NAIDOO:    And 286?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And 286.  

DR NAIDOO:    Okay,  I  have got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.    

DR NAIDOO:    R igh t .   I  have got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You have?  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  tha t  i s  my note .   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    Conf i rmed.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  20 

DR NAIDOO:    Thank you gents .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  the  Cha i rpe rson the  document  on  

page 286,  Dr  Na idoo as  we l l ,  tha t  i s  the  submiss ion  tha t  

came before  the  board ,  a l so  served befo re  the  IFC.   I f  you 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  yes .   I  have seen i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A l r igh t .   You have seen i t .  

DR NAIDOO:    Cor rec t ,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   And the  page . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  document  a re  you s ta r t ing  w i th ,  

281?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    281 Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    He has jus t  conf i rmed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    And i t  i s  the  submiss ion  tha t  served 

before  the  IFC and the  board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   Mot iva t ing  fo r  the  prepayment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  he  –  the  submiss ion  tha t  he  has 

conf i rmed as  hav ing  served in  bo th ,  i s  i t  the  one 281  or  the  

one 286?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bo th .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bo th?  

DR NAIDOO:    Bo th .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r,  286 is  a  d i f fe ren t  document .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

DR NAIDOO:    Ja ,  th is  i s  my document  he re .   I t  i s  my 

response.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  do  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

DR NAIDOO:    Cha i r,  i f  you  look a t  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .one a t  a  t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    P robab ly  –  shou ld  we not  s ta r t  w i th  h is  

document?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  wou ld  you know.   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   He has conf i rmed the  

submiss ion .   Le t  us  go  to  h is  document .   Your  document  Dr  

Na idoo on 286.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  Because you are  exp la in ing  to  the  

Cha i rperson . . . [ in te rvenes]   

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Se leka.   Maybe you are  

r igh t .   We shou ld  s ta r t  w i th  h is  submiss ions because you – 20 

as  I  unders tand i t ,  h is  no te  was made a f te r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  r igh t .  

DR NAIDOO:    Cor rec t ,  a f te r  the  submiss ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  what  persuaded  

h im.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  to ld  h im what  th is  was abou t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    R igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

DR NAIDOO:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Dr  Na idoo,  you unders tand the  

quest ion?  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  the  Cha i rperson. . .   Ja ,  you can 10 

s imp ly  jus t  po in t  ou t  to  the  Cha i rpe rson what  made you 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

DR NAIDOO:    Why I  went  tha t  d i rec t ion?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.   Cha i r,  on  page 283,  there  is  3 .2 .21  

h igh l igh ted  ye l low.   I  th ink  th is  was my h igh l igh t ing  o f  

ye l low.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh.  

DR NAIDOO:    Ja ,  th is  i s  –  because on my note  I  say :   

Sa l ien t  po in t  were  no t ing .   A re  h igh l igh ted  in  ye l low  on the 20 

tax  submiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  Dr  Na idoo.   You are  too  fas t .  

DR NAIDOO:    So r ry,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  thought  you were  s ta r t ing  a t  page 281.   

Now I  hear  you are  ta lk ing  about  283.  
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DR NAIDOO:    No,  I  m igra ted  to  283.   S tar t ing  a t  281,  we  

sk ipped a l l  o f  tha t ,  we have gone to  page 283.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

DR NAIDOO:    3 .2 .1  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  we must  s ta r t  f i rs t .   Oh,  you must  

te l l  me what  th is  document  i s  tha t  s ta r ts  a t  281.  

DR NAIDOO:    Oh,  sor ry  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    281.   How d id  i t  come befo re  you and 

what  was i t  about .  

DR NAIDOO:    Oh.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Then you can take  me to  283.  

DR NAIDOO:    R igh t .   Cha i rperson ,  the  –  le t  me go to  279,  

a  l i t t le  b i t  be fore  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

DR NAIDOO:    279.   Th is  the  m inutes  o f  the  Spec ia l  

Te lephon ic  Inves tment  and F inance Commi t tee  he ld  on  

9  December  2015  a t  08 :30  in  the  morn ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    The cha i rperson had recused and Dr  Na idoo  

is  the  ac t ing  cha i rpe rson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    R igh t ,  Cha i r.   That  i s  the  document .   And 

then the  submiss ion ,  the  Round- rob in  submiss ion  to  the  

Board  o f  D i rec tors ,  page 281.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on one second.   Jus t  fo r  the  sake 



10 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 341 
 

Page 40 of 294 
 

o f  comple teness.   What  you were  read ing  a t  279 was the 

head ing  wh ich  is  the  m inutes  o f  tha t  meet ing  tha t  you  

ment ioned.  

DR NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  le t  us  say  what  the  meet ing  was 

about .  

DR NAIDOO:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mat te rs  fo r  approva l .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There ,  6 .1 .  10 

DR NAIDOO:    6 .1 ,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A request  to  approve the  pre-purchase o f  

coa l  f rom Opt imum Coa l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

DR NAIDOO:    Opt imum Coa l  (P ty )  L td .  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . (P ty)  L td .  

DR NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  was the  sub jec t .  

DR NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .   Jus t  one agenda i tem.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    

DR NAIDOO:    And the  submiss ion  fo r  tha t  agenda i tem 20 

was –  i s  on  page 281.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    The Round-rob in  submiss ion  to  the  Board  o f  

D i rec tors .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  



10 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 341 
 

Page 41 of 294 
 

DR NAIDOO:    Submiss ion .   P re-purchase o f  coa l  o f  

Opt imum Coa l  Mine.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

DR NAIDOO:    R igh t .   Ja ,  the  same submiss ion .   I  am 

go ing  to  jump and go to  page 283 and h igh l igh ted  3 .2 .1 :  

“Opt imum is  fo rmal ly  dec la red not  to  be  in  

bus iness rescue as  requ i red  by  the  prov i s ions  

o f  the  Companies  Act . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

DR NAIDOO:    That  i s  the  po in t  h igh l igh ted  in  ye l low.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

DR NAIDOO:    Then 3 .4 .1  h igh l igh ted  ye l low:  

“The advanced purchase o f  R 1 .68  b i l l i on  w i l l  

secu re  fu tu re  supp ly  o f  coa l  to  Eskom and  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry.   You are  read ing  f rom 3 .4 .1?  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Jus t  res tar t  a f resh.  

DR NAIDOO:    R igh t .  

“The advanced purchase o f  R 1 .68  b i l l i on  w i l l  20 

secure  fu tu re  supp ly  o f  coa l  to  Eskom and w i l l  

be  funded by  a  reduct ion  o f  Eskom’s  coa l  

s tockp i le  f rom 54  days to  40  days. ”  

 So tha t  i s  the  benef i t  there .   And 3 .4 .2 :  

“OCM wi l l  seek the  unsupp l ied  po r t ion  o f  coa l  
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under  the  p re-purchase agreement  as  

secur i t y. ”  

 And then I  go  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    What  you d id  no t  ment ion  or  un less  I  

m issed i t ,  wh ich  is  impor tan t  jus t  to  say  a t  3 .4  dea ls  w i th  

benef i t s  o f  the  advance pu rchase o f  coa l .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  yes .   That  i s . . . [ in te rvenes]    

CHAIRPERSON:    And 3 .4 .1  and 3 .4 .2  tha t  you have jus t  

read . . . [ in te rvenes]   

DR NAIDOO:    Oh,  ja .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  tha t  i s  head ing ,  the  benef i t s .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.   Then Cha i r. . .   Oh,  sor ry  Cha i r,  le t  me 

go a  l i t t le  b i t  s l ow.   A t  3 .6  we ta lk  about  r i sk  i nc lud ing  

env i ronmenta l l y  lega l  o r  cont rac tua l  r i sks  and  o ther  

cons idera t ions.   We go to  3 .6 .1 :  

“Opera t iona l  and  Supp l ie r  R isk  Mi t iga t ion  by  

p ledge inser t ion  o f  coa l  p rac t ise . ”  

 3 .6 .2 :  20 

“The proceeds o f  R 1 .68  b i l l i on  prepayment  o f  

coa l  a re  to  be  used by  OCM to  d is t ingu ish  

ex i s t ing  l iab i l i t i es  to  ensure  tha t  the  bus iness 

cont inues as  a  growing concern . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 
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DR NAIDOO:    3 .6 .3 :  

“The proposed  purchaser  w i l l  l i f t  cur ren t  

empowerment  ownersh ip  f rom 30% to  51%.”  

 That  was the  po in t  I  h igh l igh ted  in  my note  da ted  

9  December  and  th is  i s  on  286.   286 Cha i r  be fore  the  

fo l low ing page.   9  December  2015,  Eskom Board  o f  

D i rec tors ,  IFC ( Investment  F inance Commi t tee)  

p roceed ings.   December  2015,  Round-rob in  reso lu t ion .   

Ti t le  o f  submiss ion :   P re-pu rchase o f  coa l  f rom OCM.  

“The reso lu t ion  has submi t ted ,  i t  is  suppor ted  10 

and approved.  

Sa l ien t  po in ts  were  no t ing  are  h igh l igh ted  in  

ye l low on the  tax  submiss ion  document . ”  

 That  i s  what  we have done.    

DR NAIDOO:    I  have jus t  read to  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

DR NAIDOO:    One:  

“OCM and the  Companies  Act :  

The Board  o f  D i rec to rs ’ approva l  w i l l  suppor t  

and a l low OCM to  m igra te  f rom the  s ta tus  o f  20 

bus iness rescue to  tha t  o f  a  g rowing concern . ”  

 That  was very  impor tan t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

“The i r  fu l l  r igh ts ,  respons ib i l i t i es  and 
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accountab i l i t i es  w i l l  be  as  per  the  Companies  

Act .  

They p lan  to  use the  pre-pu rchase proceeds to  

address the  l iab i l i t y  and l iqu id i t y  cha l lenge.  

Th is  w i l l  be  a  pos i t i ve  deve lopment ,  bo th  fo r  

OCM and fo r  Eskom.  

I t  w i l l  address the  present  day  cont rac tua l  

ob l iga t ions and crea te  the  p la t fo rm fo r  the  

fu tu re  susta inab i l i t y  o f  mutua l  take ,  bus iness  

and job  cont inu i t y  fo r  fe l low South  A f r i cans. ”  10 

 Po in t  2 :  

“As pa r t  o f  the  proposed so lu t ion ,  OCM 

under takes to  i ncrease the i r  t ransformat ion  

accountab i l i t y  and respons ib i l i t y  f rom 30% to  

51% ownersh ip .  

Th is  i s  a  pos i t i ve  deve lopment .  

I t  i s  no ted  and acknowledged. ”  

 Po in t  3 :  

“The bus iness case fo r  p re-purchase o f  coa l  

fo r  bo th  Hendr ina  and Arnot  i s  robust  and  20 

s t rong.  

The cash f lows a re  managed and absorbed by  

good invento ry  management  o f  s tockp i le .  

A reduced ho ld ing  base has not  r i sk  to  

e lec t r i c i t y  p roduc t ion .  
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The p ro f i tab i l i t y  o f  the  proposa l  i s  no ted  tha t  i t  

shou ld  be  r ing  fenced and repor ted  when i t  i s  

rea l i sed. ”  

 Po in t  4  Cha i r :  

“The pos i t i ve  ou tcome f rom the  jo in t  

management  so lu t ion  o f  Eskom and OCM is  

no ted  and acknowledged as  a  na t i ona l i t y.  

I t  a l lows fo r  bus iness cont inu i t y  and secur i t y  o  

jobs ,  secur i t y  o f  e lec t r i c i t y  p roduct ion  a t  

na t iona l  key-po in t  power  s ta t ions ,  Hendr ina  10 

and  Arnot .  

And so  South  A f r i ca  and our  customers  w i l l  

send the i r. . . ”  

 Po in t  5  Cha i r :  

“A fu r ther  recommendat ion  is  tha t  the  cha i rman  

o f  Eskom and the  cha i rman o f  G lencore  jo in t l y  

communica te  th is  ach ievement  to  South  

A f r i can and the  in te rnat iona l  communi ty.   

Thank you,  Nath  Na idoo”  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  20 

DR NAIDOO:    Thank you ve ry  much fo r  hand ing  th is .   

Thank you.   I  cou ld  no t  f ind  i t .   Bu t  thank you s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  members  o f  the  ISCS(?)  Board  o f  

D i rec tors .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  Mr  Se leka  and Dr  Na idoo i t  qu i te  –  

a  lo t  o f  th ings. . .  [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  –  fo r  the  sake o f  

bus iness.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  jus t  go  back to  the  m inutes  o f  the  

Investment  and F inance Commi t tee  tha t  he  re fer red  to .  

DR NAIDOO:    279.     

CHAIRPERSON:    279.   And say th is  i s  the  ou tcome o f  the  10 

tha t  meet ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And i f  the  reasons fo r  tha t  ou tcome are  

se t  ou t  there  to  a r t i cu la te  them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And th is  was now – o r  then the  quest ion  

o f  the  m inutes  o f  the  board  where  the  approva l  was g iven,  

where  wou ld  tha t  be?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The board  i t se l f  Cha i rperson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    The board  i t se l f ,  ja .   Because I  am 

assuming tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

DR NAIDOO:    Th is  i s  a  recommendat ion  f rom IFC.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A f te r  the  Investment  and F inance 

Commi t tee  has . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .has  come to  th is  conc lus ion ,  i t  must  

be  the  recommendat ion  o r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

DR NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .o r  i t s  dec i s ion  must  go  to  the  board  

fo r  approva l .  

DR NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

DR NAIDOO:    Can I  read tha t  reso lu t ion  Cha i r  f rom the  

minutes?  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Uh. . .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  we w i l l  f ind  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  they w i l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  w i l l  f ind  i t  Cha i r.  

DR NAIDOO:    Oh,  you a re  f ind  i t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  [ laughs]  

DR NAIDOO:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  w i l l  f ind  the  page because Cha i r  the  

board  d id  no t  need –  the  board  sent  approva ls  by  Round-

rob in .  20 

DR NAIDOO:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay tha t  i s  f ine .   As  long as  we get  to  

say here  is  the  fo rmal  approva l  by  the  board  and  

conf i rm ing what  was befo re  the  board ,  whether  i t  was the  
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same documents  tha t  were  be fo re  the  Investment  and 

F inance Commi t tee .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

DR NAIDOO:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  thank you.   Ja ,  I  w i l l  ge t  the  page 

re ference o f  the  Cha i rperson.  

DR NAIDOO:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  le t  me ask th is  quest ion  wh i le  

Mr  Se leka is  look ing  a t  whatever  he  is  look ing  a t .   Dr  10 

Na idoo. . .  

DR NAIDOO:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you ab le  to  say,  hav ing  been par t  o f  

tha t  te lephon ic  meet ing  o f  the  Investment  and F inance  

Commi t tee  tha t  t he  unders tand ing  o f  the  commi t tee  was 

tha t  i t  was recommending approva l  o f  th is  p repayment  on  

the  bas is  tha t  the  prepayment  was fo r  OCM/Glencore?  

DR NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  ab le  to  conf i rm tha t?  

DR NAIDOO:    Hundred pe rcent .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    And you are  the  cha i rperson  o f  the  

commi t tee .  

DR NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Now you have sa id  tha t  th is  execut ive  

summary s ta r t ing  a t  page 281,  served befo re  bo th  the  

commi t tee  as  we l l  as  the  board .   When you look a t  

parag raph 2 .1 .2  on  page 281,  tha t  i s  tha t  summary,  tha t  

submiss ion  fo r  Round- rob in .  

 That  parag raphs  makes i t  c lear  tha t  the  Group 

Ch ie f  Execut ive  o f  Eskom together  w i th  the  Group  

Execut ive  fo r  Genera t ions and Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i cer,  I  

suspect  tha t  those were  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  and Mr  Koko and 

Mr  S ingh,  were  be ing  author ised to  negot ia te  and conc lude 10 

a  pre -purchase o f  coa l  ag reement ,  no t  w i th  the  owners  or  

cur ren t  owners  a t  the  t ime o f  OCM but  w i th  the  p roposed 

owners .  How –  d id  you see tha t  a t  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  Cha i r  I  saw tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i f  you  saw tha t ,  how cou ld  you and  

your  commi t tee  th ink  tha t  you were  au thor i s ing  prepayment  

to  G lencore?  Because the  proposed owners  o f  OCM were  

no t  G lencore?  20 

DR NAIDOO:    No,  s i r   Th i s  –  in  te rms o f  th is ,  the  Bus iness 

Rescue Pract i t ioners  were  s t i l l  p resent .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

DR NAIDOO:    So  the  ownersh ip  o f  OCM was s t i l l  i n  tha t  

sor t  o f  g rey i sh  a rea but  fo r  now the  record  speaks ve ry  
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c lea r ly  tha t  the  cont rac tua l  re la t ionsh ip  i s  w i th  G lencore ,  

no t  w i th  anyone e lse .    

CHAIRPERSON:    No . . . [ in te rvenes]   

DR NAIDOO:    No,  bu t  I  apprec ia te  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  unders tand tha t  bu t  I  am say ing  the  

words in  parag raph 2 .1 .2  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .were  s ta r r ing  you in  the  face  and they  

were  no t  say ing  the  request  i s  tha t  you must  au thor i se  

these th ree  o f f i c i a ls  o f  Eskom to  negot ia te  and conc lude an 10 

agreement  w i th  the  owners  o f  OCM.   Owners  as  a t  tha t  

t ime.   I t  was say ing  you are  requested,  you a re  deem 

requested to  au thor ise  these th ree  o f f i c ia l s  o f  Eskom 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . to  negot ia te  w i th  and conc lude a  p re-

purchase o f  coa l  agreement  w i th  the  proposed owners .   

Who was the  p roposed owners  a t  the  t ime? 

DR NAIDOO:    No,  we had no deta i l s  o f  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  20 

DR NAIDOO:    We had no deta i l s  o f  the  proposed owners .   

I t  was s t i l l ,  i n  our  m ind,  G lencore  is  the  owner  and in  the 

submiss ion  i t  s ta tes  tha t  the  proposed purchases – 3 .6 .3 :  

“P roposed purchaser  w i l l  l i f t  cur ren t  

empowerment  ownersh ip  f rom 30% to  51%.”  
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 So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  tha t  makes  i t  worse  fo r  you r  case 

because you shou ld  be  ask ing :   Why is  th is  subm iss ion  a l l  

about  p roposed  owners  when we are  be ing  asked to  

au thor ise  payment  to  the  cur ren t  owners?  

DR NAIDOO:    Le t  me answer  i t  th is  way Cha i r.   The  

agreement ,  the  Coa l  Supp ly  Agreement  i s  be tween two  

compan ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    Eskom and OCM.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    That  i s  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And a t  tha t  s tage,  OCM under  G lencore .  

DR NAIDOO:    Under  G lencore .   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   But  there  is  someth ing  

happen ing  in  the  background . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    . . . tha t  we do not  have deta i l s  o f  tha t .   We 

on ly  s tayed w i th in  the  cont rac tua l  boundar ies  be tween  20 

Eskom and OCM.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  bu t  I  am say ing  to  you.   How cou ld  

you th ink  a long those l ines  when  in  b lack and wh i te  the  

execut ive  summary,  the  Round-rob in  submiss ion  tha t  was 

p laced before  your  commi t tee  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .and before  the  board  made i t  qu i te  

c lea r  what  you have been requested to  au thor i se ,  tha t  th is  

submiss ion ,  th is  summary d id  no t  ask  your  commi t tee  or  

the  board  to  au thor ise  the  th ree  o f f i c ia ls  o f  Eskom to  

conc lude an agreement  w i th  the  owners  o f  OCM because i f  

i t  had sa id  owners  o f  OCM,  i t  wou ld  have meant  

G lencore /OCM because those are  the  owners .   I t  sa id  

proposed owners .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  am ask ing  how you cou ld  have –  

you sa id  you d id  see th is ,  i f  I  unders tand . . . [ in te rvenes]   

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i f  you  so  dec ide ,  why d id  you not  

ra ise  an  issue to  say:   Hang on.   Why are  we –  why are  you 

say ing  we must  conc lude a  cont rac t  w i th  p roposed owners  

when there  are  cur ren t  owners  tha t  we shou ld  be  dea l ing  

w i th?  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  Cha i r.   The cont rac tua l ,  as  I  sa id  Cha i r  

i s  s t i l l  Eskom/OCM,  OCM,  tha t  i s  the  cont rac t .   The  20 

cont rac t  i s  no t  be tween Eskom and  Glencore .   The cont rac t  

i s  no t  be tween Eskom and proposed owners .   The cont rac t  

i s  no t  be tween Eskom,  G lencore  and maybe more  BEE 

par tners ,  the  con t rac t  i s  Eskom OCM,  so  tha t  i s  what  we 

focused on,  Eskom OCM.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  what  I  am put t ing  to  you,  Dr  Na idoo  

…[ in tervenes]  

DR NAIDOO:    I  know,  I  see tha t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  I  am put t ing  to  you  is  tha t  

p rec ise ly  the  po in t  you a re  emphas is ing  counts  aga ins t  the  

dec is ion  tha t  you  took.   I t  counts  aga ins t  the  vers ion  you 

have g iven tha t  you were  in tend ing  to  au thor i se  

prepayment  to  the  G lencore /OCM because tha t  i s  what  I  

shou ld  be  say ing  to  you,  to  say bu t  why d id  you not  say  

change the  submiss ion  …[ in te rvenes]  10 

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    …because we cannot  au thor ise  the  

conc lus ion  o f  a  cont rac t  w i th  p roposed owners  when they  

are  cu r ren t  owners ,  what  we a re  go ing  to  au thor i se  is  the  

conc lus ion  o f  a  cont rac t  w i th  the  cur ren t  owners ,  you must  

change the  submiss ion .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  Cha i r,  you are  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.   That  

word  proposed opens a  b ig  door.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And,  you see,  i t  makes i t  d i f f i cu l t  –  i t  

ra ises  the  quest i on  how was i t  poss ib le  tha t  x  number  o f  20 

members  o f  the  investment  and f inance commi t tee  a l l  d id  

no t  see th i s  po in t?   How i s  i t  poss ib le  tha t  the  en t i re  board  

a lso  d id  no t  see th is  po in t  because  Dr  Ngubane I  th ink  a lso  

gave ev idence a long the  l ines  tha t  you have g iven.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  how cou ld  none o f  you say bu t  hang 

on,  change th is  submiss ion .  

DR NAIDOO:    Ja ,  i t  shou ld  have been,  Cha i r,  I  agree w i th  

you.   Shou ld  have had,  w i th  the  ex is t ing  o r  cu r ren t  owners  

o f  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because now …[ in tervenes]  

DR NAIDOO:    Bu t  the  head ing  is  cor rec t ,  the  t i t le  o f  

submiss ion  is  co r rec t ,  p re-purchase o f  coa l  f rom Opt imum 

Coa l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  may we l l  be  tha t  somebody might  say  10 

we l l ,  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  you r  commi t tee  and the  board  

d id  no t  ra ise  th is  i ssue about  p roposed owners .   When you 

look a t  the  f ina l  reso lu t ion  maybe  i t  was worded in  a  way  

wh ich  made i t  c lear  tha t  you were  au thor is ing  prepayment  

to  G lencore /OCM and not  to  Tege ta  bu t  those who  asked  

your  commi t tee  and the  board  to  au thor ise  payment  wou ld  

be  ent i t led  to  say i t  was there  in  b lack  and wh i te ,  we d id  

no t  m is lead you,  we wro te  i t  there  and you sa id  we  shou ld  

go  ahead but  now you a re  tu rn ing  around and say a l l  o f  

you are  now say ing  bu t  as  fa r  as  we were  concerned we  20 

were  au thor is ing  prepayment  to  G lencore  bu t  they say i t  i s  

there ,  i t  i s  b lack  and wh i te ,  how come? 

DR NAIDOO:    Ja ,  you are  co r rec t ,  Cha i r,  you are  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r,  I  found  the  page re ference fo r  
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the  board  reso lu t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    On the  mat te r.   In  the  same bund le ,  

Eskom bund le  18 (A)  page 352.22.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Be fore  the  board  can we go to  the  

investment  and f inance commi t tee  dec is ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  go  back  and le t  us  see whethe r  

there  is  anyth ing  there  tha t  suggests  tha t  they were  no t  

approv ing  what  had exact ly  been p laced before  them by  10 

way o f  the  submiss ion  o r  execut ive  summary.  In  te rms o f  

the  ou tcome they spec i f ied  –  they sa id  someth ing  tha t  

suggests  qu i te  c lear l y  tha t  there  were  no t  au thor i s ing  what  

they had been asked to  au tho r ise .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  those minutes .  

DR NAIDOO:    The minutes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A re  on  page 279.  

DR NAIDOO:    279.   And the  reso lu t ion  is  on  page 280.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  I  do  have the  s igned minutes ,  20 

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because those  ones are  no t  s igned.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    They are  fu r ther  down on page 584.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  jus t  be fore  –  I  take  i t  tha t  they are  

the  same as… 

DR NAIDOO:    Same.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  me jus t… 

DR NAIDOO:     

“ I t  i s  recommended tha t  board  approves the   

t ransact ion  as  se t  ou t  in  the  submiss ion  to  the  

board  re la t ing  to  the  pre-purchase o f  coa l  f rom 

Opt imum (P ty)  L td . ”  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  i t  does say  Opt imum (P ty)  L td .  10 

DR NAIDOO:    L td .  

CHAIRPERSON :    On the  m inutes  a t  279 and 280 there  

does not  appear  to  be  anyth ing  tha t  suggests  e i ther  way.  

DR NAIDOO:    E i ther  way,  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And you say I  must  a l so  look  

where ,  Mr  Se leka? 

DR NAIDOO:    The s igned minutes ,  page?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  i t  i s  the  s igned,  Cha i r,  so  what  Dr  

Na idoo was read ing  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    The s igned one is  exact ly  the  same.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  i t  i s  exact ly,  i t  i s  on  page 584.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The reso lu t ion  is  the  same,  page 584.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me jus t  ge t  there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  the  m inutes  s ta r ts  there  a t  page 
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584,  the  reso lu t ion  is  on  page 585.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

DR NAIDOO:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   And then le t  us  go  to  the  board  to  

see –  we know i t  was the  same submiss ion  tha t  was p laced 

before  them,  ja .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  what  Dr  Na idoo wanted brought  to  

your  a t ten t ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  sa id  the  reso lu t ion  does read pre-

purchase o f  coa l  f rom Opt imum (P ty)  L td .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  tha t  was not  go ing  to  change,  i s  

i t  no t ,  because i t  i s  a  quest ion  o f  whether  you ta l k  about  

Opt imum coa l  under  G lencore  or  Opt imum Coa l  

…[ in tervenes]  

DR NAIDOO:    Under  Tegeta .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Tegeta ,  tha t  is  the  –  s t i l l  OCM but  

…[ in tervenes]  20 

DR NAIDOO:    S t i l l  OCM,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   The quest ion  is  under  wh ich  one.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  except ,  Cha i r,  a  d is t inc t ion  m ight  

have to  be  made when you add (P ty)  L td  a t  the  end 

because then i t  re la tes  to  the  en t i t y.  
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DR NAIDOO:    Chang ing  the  shareho ld ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  beg your  pardon?  

DR NAIDOO:    Chang ing  shareho ld ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  i t  re la tes  to  the  en t i t y  as  opposed 

to  the  m ine i t se l f .  

DR NAIDOO:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  a f te r  Tegeta  took i t  over  d id  i t  no t  

remain  and L td  bu t  as  a  subs id ia ry  o f  –  I  do  no t  know 

whethe r  Oakbay or  Tegeta?  

DR NAIDOO:    I  do  no t  know whether  they changed the  10 

name o f  the  en t i ty  bu t  they purchased shareho ld ing  in  OCM 

and they car r ied  ca l l ing  i t  OCM and …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  remember  see ing  anyth ing  

say ing  they changed the  name.  

DR NAIDOO:    Ja ,  because,  Cha i r,  the  cont rac t  i s  s t i l l  the 

supreme document .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

DR NAIDOO:    You see,  the  cont rac t ,  the  supp ly  cont rac t ,  

tha t  i s  the  supreme document ,  i t  s t i l l  re fe rs  to  th is  a lso .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   So i t  i s  a  quest ion  o f  who  was in  

cont ro l  o f  the  en t i t y.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Was i t  G lencore  or  was i t  –  so  bu t  le t  us 
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go  to  the  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The board .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The board  reso lu t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  page 352.22.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Yes?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  i t  i s  by  round rob in ,  Cha i r,  and the  

reso lu t ion ,  reso lu t ion  requ i red .   So what  you  – the  

Cha i rperson w i l l  see  there ,   i s  what  was requ i red  f rom the  

board  on  the  f i rs t  page,  page 352.22.   On the  next  page  

the  –  and I  be l ieve  i t  i s  Ms Suzanne Dan ie ls ,  wou ld  have 10 

popu la ted  the  tab le  to  ind ica te  wh ich  o f  the  board  members 

send the i r  approva ls .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  be fore  tha t  I  am jus t  look ing  a t  the  

reso lu t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You see,  w i th  the  board ,  the i r  reso lu t ion  

is  qu i te  c lear  because they take  parag raph 2 .1 .2  o f  the 

execut ive  summary tha t  I  read ear l ie r  on ,  they take  i t  as  i t  

i s .   So what  they reso lved was in  2 .1 .2 :  

“The Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  together  w i th  Group  20 

Execut ive  fo r  Genera t ion  and  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  

Off i cer  a re  he reby autho r ise ,  negot ia te  and 

conc lude a  pre-purchase o f  coa l  agreement  w i th  the  

proposed owners  o f  OCM,  coa l  supp ly  ag reement . ”  

Now the  i nvestment  and f inance commi t tee ,  when you go to  
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the i r  m inutes ,  as  I  ind ica ted ,  i t  cou ld  go  e i ther  way.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  th is  i s  c lear  and ca tegor i ca l .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  the  board  approved was not  the 

conc lus ion  o f  an  ag reement ,  a  p re-pu rchase o f  coa l  

agreement  be tween the  owners  o f  OCM at  the  t ime and  

Eskom but  i t  au thor i sed pre-purchase o f  coa l  agreement  

w i th  the  proposed  owners .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    So  –  and you were  pa r t  o f  tha t  board .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  tha t  was jus t  a  cu t  and paste  proposa l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    That  i s  what  happened.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And aga in  –  and Dr  Ngubane a lso  gave 

ev idence a long the  same l ines  as  yourse l f .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And what  i s  t roub l ing  me is  how i t  i s  

poss ib le  fo r  so  many members  o f  the  board  no t  to  have 

seen what  i s  wr i t ten  he re  i n  b lack  and wh i te .   That  i s  what  20 

is  t roub l ing  me.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  Cha i r.   Yes,  I  agree w i th  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

DR NAIDOO:    I  agree w i th  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The board  was  about  how many  peop le  
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a t  the  t ime,  about  12?  

DR NAIDOO:    10  –  12 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    About  12?  

DR NAIDOO:    Ja ,  a round there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And some o f  the  board  members  were  

peop le  w i th  h igh  qua l i f i ca t ions.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You know? 

DR NAIDOO:    Ja ,  Cha i r,  th is  i s  the  po in t  where  I  th ink 

t rus t  and in tegr i t y  comes to  the  fo re ,  you have to  have 10 

t rus t  and in teg r i t y  o therw ise  i t  i s  very  d i f f i cu l t  because you  

are  work ing  in  a  h igh-pressured env i ronment ,  vo lumes o f  

work  coming th rough very  qu ick l y  and coming th rough in  

h igh  speed,  you need t rus t  and in tegr i t y.   Wi thout  t rus t  and 

in tegr i t y  i t  does not  ho ld .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  you see,  when you se rve  in  a  

body such as  the  board  o f  an  en t i t y  such as  Eskom,  or  any 

board… 

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  p lay ing  a  k ind  o f  superv isory  20 

ro le  ove r  the  execut ive  management .  

DR NAIDOO:    Ag reed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You have overs igh t .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you have to  pu t  the  in te res t s  o f  the  
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en t i t y  a t  the  fo re f ron t .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Whatever  dec is ions you take  you have 

got  to  ask  yourse l f  the  quest ion  is  th is  dec is ion  in  the  

in te res ts  o f  th is  en t i t y?  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You see,  obv ious ly,  a l l  dec i s ions you  

take  must  be  lawfu l  and comply  w i th  the  law,  you know? 

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So i t  i s  –  I  mean,  when I  read tha t  th is  10 

execut ive  summary fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime but  now I  do  no t  know,  

maybe he drew my a t ten t ion  to  i t  bu t  I  th ink  I  p icked up 

th is  p roposed owners ,  negot ia te  and put  an  agreement  w i th  

p roposed owners ,  tha t  sounded s t range,  you know?  But  

maybe i t  was because o f  the  ev idence tha t  I  had heard  fo r  

some t ime.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i s  i t  t roub l ing  me tha t  a  board ,  

members  o f  the  board  o f  such an impor tan t  s ta te  en t i t y  

know tha t  they are  be ing  asked to  au thor ise  payment  to  an  20 

ent i t y  o f  a  very  la rge  amount .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    1 ,6  b i l l i on .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And they do  not  take  the  t roub le  to  make 
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sure  tha t  they are  au thor i s ing  the  conc lus ion  o f  a  cont rac t  

w i th  the  r igh t  en t i t y.  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    They do not  take  the  t roub le  to  say le t  

us  make su re  tha t  th is  money goes  to  the  r igh t  en t i ty  o r  the  

r igh t  person,  i t  must  no t  go  to  somebody we do not  in tend.  

DR NAIDOO:    No,  Cha i r.   I  th ink ,  Cha i r,  I  jus t  want  to  

ra ise  th is  po in t .   The supreme document ,  as  I  sa id  here ,  I  

i s  the  coa l  supp ly  cont rac t  be tween Eskom and Opt imum 

Coa l .   The money w i l l  go  f rom Eskom to  Opt imum Coa l ,  10 

tha t  i s  where .   But  aga in  what  happens thereaf te r,  Char i  

…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  hang on,  no ,  no ,  Dr  Na idoo –

and we have been dea l ing  w i th  th is  po in t .   I f  the  money 

goes to  G lencore  and your  reso lu t ion  says i t  shou ld  go  to  

Tegeta  then whoever  sends i t  to  –  the  money to  G lencore ,  

i s  do ing  someth ing  cont rary  to  your  reso lu t ion  and they are  

no t  a l lowed to  do  tha t ,  they  must  comply  w i th  the  

reso lu t ion  o f  the  board .  

DR NAIDOO:    Ag ree,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    You see?  

DR NAIDOO:    Ag ree.  

CHAIRPERSON :    There  is  a  g reat  respons ib i l i t y… 

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    On the  board  when i t  dea ls  w i th  mon ies  
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and o ther  dec is ions and I  am say ing  par t i cu la r ly  when you 

are  be ing  asked  to  au thor ise  payment  o f  such a  la rge  

amount  f rom Eskom to  somebody  e lse ,  there  i s  a  g reate r  

respons ib i l i t y  fo r  you to  scru t in ise  the  documents  p laced  

before  you to  make sure  tha t  there  i s  p roper  jus t i f i ca t ion  

fo r  th is  money to  be  au thor i sed,  there  is  payment  to  be  

made,  i s  i t  be ing  –  are  you author is ing  i t  to  be  pa id  to  the  

r igh t  person and so  on  and so  on?   And cer ta in ly  what  i s  in  

the  reso lu t ion  o f  the  board  here  suggests  to  me tha t  to  say 

the  least  the  board  was very  neg l i gent .   I t  may we l l  be  tha t  10 

i t  i s  much more  than tha t  bu t  I  am not  say ing  tha t  a t  th is  

s tage and i t  may we l l  be  tha t  w i th in  the  board  i t  was  

neg l igence on the  pa r t  o f  some members  bu t  on  the  pa r t  o f  

some o ther  members ,  maybe they knew more  than o thers ,  I  

do  no t  know.   But  i t  i s  t roub l ing .  

DR NAIDOO:    Ag reed,  I  agree.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You accept  tha t .  

DR NAIDOO:    I  agree.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  Okay.  

DR NAIDOO:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka,  we  have gone past  quar te r  

past .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  do  no t  know whether  you wou ld  l i ke 

to  comple te  the  ev idence o f  Dr  Na idoo,  i t  depends how 
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much t ime.   I  am easy to  ad journ  now,  we cont inue w i th  

h im or  comple te  w i th  h im i f  you are  no t  fa r  f rom f in ish ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  jus t  depends how much you have  

covered o f  what  you in tended to  cover.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  I  have  covered su f f i c ien t .   Dr  

Na idoo,  the  next  quest ion  i s  about  the  guarantee because  

th is  p re-purchase was  not  made  to  e i ther  G lencore  –  oh  

we l l ,  in  fac t  no t  OCM at  a l l .   Do you know tha t?   Cha i r,  le t  

me gather  my thoughts ,  we cou ld  ad jou rn ,  I  can f in ish  in  10 

f i ve  m inutes .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Le t  us  take  the  tea  

ad journment  now.   We wi l l  resume a t  twenty  to  twe lve .   We 

ad journ .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

DR NAIDOO:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  to  round  o f f  f rom my par t ,  Dr  

Na idoo.   So your  s i tua t ion  is  no t  tha t  you d id  no t  see tha t  20 

you were  be ing  asked to  au thor ise  the  th ree  Eskom 

of f i c ia ls  to  negot ia te  and conc lude pre-pu rchase o f  coa l  

agreement  w i th  the  proposed owners ,  you d id  see  tha t  i s  

what  the  submiss ion  sa id  bu t  –  and you d id  no t  ra ise  an  

issue.  
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DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  somehow you say you thought  tha t  –  

o r  your  in ten t ion  was to  au thor i se  the  conc lus ion  o f  p re-

purchase o f  coa l  agreement  be tween Eskom and OCM as  

owned by  G lencore .  

DR NAIDOO:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes and –  bu t  i f  somebody says how you  

cou ld  have thought  you were  do ing  tha t  in  the  l igh t  o f  th is  

c lea r  s ta tement ,  a re  you ab le  to  exp la in  how you cou ld  

have thought  a long those l ines  in  the  l igh t  o f  the  10 

s ta tement?   In  o ther  words,  I  jus t  want  to  have your  

exp lanat ion .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  Cha i r.   Yes,  Cha i rperson,  ou r  

unders tand ing  was tha t  the  –  as  I  sa id  ear l ie r,  Cha i r,  the  

supreme agreements ,  the  coa l  supp ly  ag reement  be tween 

Eskom and OCM,  Opt imum Coa l  Mine,  as  owned by  

G lencore .   The change o f  ownersh ip  o f  OCM had not  ye t  

occu r red .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  I  have made –  I  have sa id  

what  I  have to  about  tha t  reason,  ja .  20 

DR NAIDOO:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  Mr  Se leka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  see  tha t  I  th ink  we have taken longer  

w i th  Dr  Na idoo than you had p lanned but  tha t  is  p robab ly  
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my fau l t  no t  yours ,  I  have had qu i te  a  number  o f  quest ions 

to  ask  bu t  I  th ink  i t  was impor tan t  ev idence.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Dr  Na idoo,  we w i l l  f in ish  o f f  

because –  may I  jus t  –  le t  us  take  i t  fu r ther  because the  –  

you have made,  as  the  board ,  as  IFC,  made a  dec i s ion  fo r  

a  p repayment .  

DR NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And in  your  unders tand ing  i t  i s  a  10 

prepayment  to  OCM owned by  G lencore  to  come out  of  

bus iness rescue,  supp ly  to  Hendr ina ,  a lso  p robab ly  supp ly  

t  A rnot  and save jobs.  

DR NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  dec i s ion  is  made on the  9  

December  2015.   D id  the  board  know what  happened  

inso fa r  as  the  execut ion  o f  the  dec is ion  was concerned? 

DR NAIDOO:    No,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you know tha t  on  the  10 t h ,  the  next  

day,  a f te r  you have made tha t  p repayment  dec i s ion ,  a  20 

guarantee was ins tead prepared?  D id  you know tha t?  

DR NAIDOO:    No,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And tha t  the  guarantee was u l t imate ly  

i ssued in  favour  o f  Tegeta  on  the  10  December?  

DR NAIDOO:    No,  s i r.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    You d id  no t .   D id  you ask  the  

execut ives  –  we made a  R1.6  b i l l i on  dec i s ion  the  o ther  day,  

what  i s  the  pos i t ion ,  what  i s  happen ing?  

DR NAIDOO:    Cha i r,  there  w i l l  be  feedback back to  the 

board .   A t  the  next  board  meet ing  we w i l l  rece ive  feedback  

and I  th ink  tha t  the  feedback tha t  we rece ived was to  the  

e f fec t  the  coa l  was p rocured,  the  coa l  was used up and  

tha t  who le  prepayment  has been comple te l y  absorbed.   So 

we bought  the  coa l  in  advance,  we rece ived the  coa l ,  we  

burn t  up  the  coa l ,  we made e lec t r i ca l  energy and tha t  10 

who le  prepayment  conc luded.   That  was bas ica l l y  the  

feedback.   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  so  –  bu t  d id  they g ive  you the  

de ta i l s  o f  who was supp ly ing  coa l?  

DR NAIDOO:    No,  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No.   Okay.   There  was another  

p repayment  made  in  Apr i l  2016.   I  know tha t  you have not  

dea l t  w i th  tha t  in  your  a f f idav i t  bu t  do  you know anyth ing  

about  tha t  p repayment  o f  R659 mi l l ion?  

DR NAIDOO:    No,  s i r,  no t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    No.   I t  was made –  i t  was a  dec i s ion  o f  

the  BTC.   A re  you  say ing  i t  d id  no t  come to  the  board?  

DR NAIDOO:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  was not  repor ted  to  the  board .  

DR NAIDOO:    No.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Cha i r  tha t  –  we l l ,  I  –  you know,  

there  was ev idence here  –  and I  do  no t  know whe ther  you  

w i l l  know,  ev idence by  Ms Mos i lo  Mothepu on how 

McKinsey,  Reg iments  were  appo in ted  a t  Eskom.  

DR NAIDOO:    No,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wou ld  you have knowledge o f  meet ings 

tha t  a re  a l leged ly  –  were  a l leged ly  he ld  w i th  Mr  Ano j  S ingh 

pr io r  to  h im coming to  Eskom? 

DR NAIDOO:    No,  s i r,  I  wou ld  no t  have knowledge.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You wou ld  no t .   Okay,  tha t  conc ludes 10 

my quest ions fo r  Dr  Na idoo.   Dr  Na idoo says  he  is  a  

p ro fessor.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    He says he  is  ac tua l l y  a  p ro fessor.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR NAIDOO:    No,  thank you,  thank you,  Cha i r.   No,  thank 

you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  you  are  en t i t led  then to  the  t i t le  o f  

p ro fessor  and I  th ink  i f  you  were  i n  Germany you wou ld  be  

ca l led  Pro fessor  Docto r.  20 

DR NAIDOO:    Yes,  tha t  wou ld  be  in  Germany yes.  That  i s  

f ine ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you very  much Pro fessor  Na idoo,  

we apprec ia te  you coming to  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion ,  you 

are  now excused.  
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DR NAIDOO:    Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Yes,  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank  you ,  Cha i rpe rson,  the  next  

w i tness i s  go ing  to  be  Ms Venete  K le in  and as  per  the  

ar rangement  yesterday and the  request  f rom her ,  she w i l l  

tes t i f y  v ia  v ideo l ink .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Do I  need to  ad journ  to  

a l low someth ing  to  be  se t  up  or  no t  necessar i l y?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  a  f i ve  m inute  ad journment  

wou ld  be  pre fe rab le ,  Cha i r .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  I  ad journ?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A  f i ve  m inutes  ad jou rnment ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  le t  me ad journ  fo r  f i ve  m inutes .   

We ad journ .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Ms K le in .  

MS KLEIN:    Good morn ing  Cha i rperson and Advocate  

Se leka.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Welcome back even though you are  no t  

here  phys i ca l l y,  we lcome back to  the  Commiss ion  and  

thank you fo r  coming back to  cont inue w i th  your  ev idence.    

 Reg is t ra r  p lease admin is te r  the  oa th  o f  a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   Please s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record?  
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MS KLEIN:    Venete  Ja r lene K le in .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MS KLEIN:    No I  do  no t .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MS KLEIN:    Yes I  do .  

REGISTRAR:     Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence 

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th .    I f  so ,  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and say  10 

so  he lp  me God.  

MS KLEIN:    So  he lp  me God.  

VENETE JARLENE KLEIN:    [duly  sworn,  s tates ]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Ms  K le in .   Cha i rperson we 

are  go ing  to  use  Eskom Bund le  2 ,  and jus t  be fore  we go  

in to  i t  Ms K le in  i s  tes t i f y ing  no t  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime before  the  

Commiss ion .   Last  t ime when she  appeared,  we dea l t  w i th  

the  issues o f  suspens ions o f  the  execut ives  and we  ended  

we l l ,  when we ad jou rned her  tes t imony we were  dea l ing  

w i th  the  remova l  o f  Mr  Tsots i  and the  reasons g iven  by  the  20 

Board  fo r  tha t  remova l  o r  vo te  o f  no  conf idence.  

That  mat te r  has ex tens ive ly  been t rave rsed  

Cha i rperson,  we  were  f rom the re  go ing  to  go  i n to  the  

remova l  o f  Mr  Norman Ba loy i  and tha t  wou ld  have been the  

issues in  regard  to  the  suspens ion  i t  wou ld  have covered  
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those issues and  what  we wou ld  have been le f t  w i th  a re  

the  t ransact ions,  wh ich  is  what  we  have been dea l i ng  w i th  

now.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  the  bund le  Cha i rpe rson i s  Eskom 

Bund le  2 ,  Ms K le in  has prov ided th ree  a f f idav i t s  so  fa r,  the  

th i rd  o f  those a f f idav i t s  dea ls  w i th  the  t ransact ions.   The 

f i rs t  a f f idav i t  Cha i r  –  we l l  now the  pag ina t ion  Cha i rperson 

on my s ide  because th is  i s  an  o ld  f i le .  I t  has  a  red  

pag ina t ion ,  on ly  the  red  pag ina t ion  i t  has  a  red  pag ina t ion ,  10 

on ly  the  red  pag ina t ion ,  yes .   I t  changes la te r  on  in  the  f i le  

to  the  b lack  and the  red .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you propose to  use the  red  

pag ina t ion?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No I  can use the  b lack  because the  

main  a f f idav i t  we wou ld  be  dea l ing  w i th  on  the  t ransact ions 

has the  two pag ina t ions.   But  what  I  wanted to  do  was I  

see the  f i rs t  a ff idav i t  does not  seem to  have been admi t ted  

as  an  exh ib i t  to  have them a l l  th ree  admi t ted  and then go 

to  where  I  need to  be .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  the  f i rs t  one wh ich  I  sa id  page 7  

b lack  numbers ,  page 2  red  numbers .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  one dea ls  w i th  the  suspens ion .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  the  suspens ions on ly.  



10 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 341 
 

Page 73 of 294 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  w i l l  you  remember  what  exh ib i t  

number  i t  shou ld  have been?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  w i l l  be  you U14.1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  what  shou ld  have been done.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay and she conf i rmed every th ing?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    She wou ld  have conf i rmed i t  on  the  

f i rs t  occas ion  when she appeared.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ms K le in  you fo l low? 10 

MS KLEIN:    I  am t ry ing  to ,  so  where  are  we now,  wh ich  

page are  we now Advocate?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bund le  2 ,  Eskom Bund le  2  page  7  b lack  

numbers  o r  page  2  red  numbers ,  your  f i rs t  a f f idav i t .   The 

a f f idav i t  tha t  comes f i rs t  in  tha t  bund le .   Yes,  you d id  

conf i rm prev ious ly  tha t  th is  i s  your  a f f idav i t  and tha t  the  

f i rs t  s ignature  a t  page 29 b lack  numbers ,  page  24 red  

numbers  i s  you r  s ignatu re ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS KLEIN:     I  am go ing  there  now,  tha t  i s  co r rec t  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   You want  to  admi t  i t  as 20 

exh ib i t  U14?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    As  Exh ib i t  U14 .1 ,  thank you Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Venete  K le in ’s  a f f idav i t  s ta r t ing  a t  

page seven b lack  numbers ,  page 2  red  numbers  in  Eskom 

Bund le  2  i s  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  U14.1 .   
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  i s  toge ther  w i th  i t s  annexures.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t .   The second a f f idav i t  i s  on  

page,  b lack  pag ina t ion  400.1 ,  400.1 .   Th i s  one is  new 

Cha i rperson.   Ms K le in  a re  you the re  on  page 401.1?  

MS KLEIN:    Yes,  I  am.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  be tween ten  l ines ,  you  see the  

words supp lementary  a f f idav i t  by  Venete  K le in?  

MS KLEIN:    I  w i l l  f ind  i t ,  yes  I  see  tha t  there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  and go to  page 400.5 .   10 

MS KLEIN:    Okay,  ja  I  am go ing  there  400.5 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  your  name appears…[ in tervene]  

MS KLEIN:    I  have got  i t ,  thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  your  name appears  there  Venete  

Jar lene K le in  above tha t  i s  a  s ignature .   Do you conf i rm 

tha t  to  be  your  s ignatu re  and the  a f f idav i t  i s  

da ted…[ in tervene ]  

MS KLEIN:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Can you see us  on  the  sc reen?  

MS KLEIN:    No I  cannot  ac tua l l y,  I  jus t  see myse l f  on  the  20 

sc reen here  bu t  can you see me?  Okay there  I  see you on 

the  sc reen now.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  so  the  a f f idav i t  i s  da ted  is  i t  18 

or  15  January  2021,  18?  

MS KLEIN:    Looks l i ke  18 ,  hey.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  18 ,  do  you conf i rm  tha t  to  

be  your  a f f idav i t?  

MS KLEIN:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i rperson I  beg leave to  have th is  

a f f idav i t  admi t ted ,  as  Exh ib i t  U14.2 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The a f f idav i t  o f  Ms Venete  K le in  s ta r t ing  

a t  page 400.1  i s  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  U14.2 .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Together  w i th  the  annexures ,  thank 

you Cha i r.   That  a f f idav i t  jus t  by  way o f  in fo rmat ion  dea ls  

w i th  i ssues tha t  a rose dur ing  Ms K le in ’s  tes t imony.   So she  10 

has f i led  tha t  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  in  o rder  to  reduce 

those issues wh ich  were  new to  wr i t ing .   Then Ms K le in  

tu rn  to  page 400.43.   

MS KLEIN:    I  am there  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.  

MS KLEIN:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  an  a f f idav i t  tha t  runs up  to  

page 400.50.  

MS KLEIN:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you conf i rm a t  the  bo t tom o f  -  20 

above your  name there  to  be ,  you r  S ignatu re?  

MS KLEIN:    I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The a f f idav i t  i s  da ted  3  February  2021.  

MS KLEIN:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you conf i rm th is  to  be  your  
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a f f idav i t?  

MS KLEIN:    I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i rperson I  beg leave to  the  have i t  

admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  U14.3 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The a f f idav i t  o f  Ms Venete  K le in  s ta r t ing  

a t  page 400.43 is  admi t ted  w i th  i t s  annexures as  Exh ib i t  

U14.3 .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i rperson I  cou ld  o r  we cou ld  show 

the  ex ten t  i s  necessary  on  Mr  Tsots i ’s  i ssues.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  t ry  and cover  every th ing  tha t  needs  

to  be  h igh l igh ted  w i th  Ms K le in  so  tha t  we do not  reach a  

po in t  where  she no longer  w ishes to  appear  be fo re  me.   So 

le t  us  t ry  and cover  every th ing  i f  we can,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Ms 

K le in…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am not  suggest ing  Ms K le in  tha t  you  

have had had enough o f  the  Commiss ion .  

MS KLEIN:    Thank you ve ry  much fo r  your  cons idera t ion ,  

Cha i rperson I  apprec ia te  i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r,  Ms K le in  jus t  qu ick l y  

on  the  aspect  o f  suspens ions we  were  dea l ing  w i th  the  

remova l  o f  Mr  Tsots i  and there  was the  i ssue about  Mr  

Tsots i  hav ing  fa i led  to  g ive  a  repor t  wh ich  he  had sa id  was 
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an  invest iga t ion  repor t  ava i lab le  on  the  bas i s ,  and be ing  a  

document  on  the  bas is  o f  wh ich  the  Pres ident  wan ted the  

inqu i ry  to  be  conducted.   Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MS KLEIN:    Yes,  I  do  s i r,  I  do  Cha i rperson.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    And the  -  those o f  you Board  members  

who came to  tes t i f y,  p laced some emphas is  on  h is  fa i lu re  

to  p roduce the  document  in  o rder  fo r  you to  make the  

dec is ion  tha t  was  u l t imate ly  made.  

MS KLEIN:    Cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And accord ing  to  the  tes t imony tha t  we  10 

heard ,  tha t  was one o f  the  reasons why the  Board  took a  

dec is ion  tha t  he  shou ld  be  charged .  

MS KLEIN:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  the  way in  wh ich  the  charges are  

fo rmula ted ,  one cou ld  no t  f ind  the  charge re la t ing  to  h is  

fa i lu re  to  p rov ide  the  Board  w i th  such a  repor t .  

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rperson a t  the  t ime when the  dec i s ion  

was taken tha t  there  was th is  vo te  o f  no  conf idence o f  Mr  

Tsots i ,  what  had  happened was in  the  fo rmula t ing  o f  the 

ac tua l  charges,  the  company secre tary  a t  tha t  t ime might  20 

have se t  up  a  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d is to r t ion ]  and met  w i th  the  

a t to rneys who had he lped us  in  the  ac tua l  d ra f t ing  o f  the 

charges because  there  were  va r ious charges tha t  were  

be ing  brought .   And i t  was on the  bas is  o f  the  record ings o f  

the  d iscuss ion  o f  the  19 th  tha t  Mr  Matshe la  Koko together  
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w i th  the  a t to rneys o f  reco rd  a t  the  t ime,  I  fo rge t  the  name,  

and fo rmula ted  the  ac tua l  charges.    

Those were  de f in i te ly  one o f  the  th ings tha t  I  can  

ta lk  fo r  myse l f  tha t  made me lose  conf idence in  Mr  Tsots i ,  I  

cannot  speak fo r  anybody e lse .   But  i f  you  say i t  i s  no t  one  

o f  the  charges,  the  charges were  fo rmula ted  based  on the  

ac tua l  reco rd ing  o f  what  was d iscussed on tha t  pa r t i cu la r  

day.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Le t  me take tha t  fu r ther  because 

you see some o f  -  a t  leas t  most  o f  the  Board  members  who  10 

have p rov ided a f f idav i t s  to  the  Commiss ion ,  they have  

p laced on o r  se t  ou t  in  the i r  a f f idav i t s  tha t  when the  

Min is te r  a r r i ved on the  11 t h  o f  March 2015,  the  Min is te r  

essent ia l l y  repea ted what  Mr  Tsots i  had sa id ,  a t  leas t  

inso fa r  as  the  inqu i ry  i s  concerned .   

But  the  Min is te r  went  fu r ther  and ident i f ied  fou r  

a reas wh ich  he  sa id  were  o f  concern  to  he r,  and sa id  tha t  

the  execut ives  in  those areas shou ld  s tep  as ide  wh i le  the  

inqu i ry  i s  ongo ing .   My quest ion  is ,  d id  the  Board  ask  the  

Min is te r  about  the  repor t  p r io r  to  the  Board  hav ing  to  take  20 

a  dec is ion?  The repor t  a l leged ly,  the  Board  wanted Mr  

Tsots i  to  p roduce .   

MS KLEIN:    Cha i r  tha t  i s  a  very  d i f f i cu l t  quest ion  fo r  me to 

answer,  you made a  ca l l .   I  was not  a t  the  meet ing  on  the  

9 t h  where  th is  no t  repor t  bu t  where  the  meet ing  or  what  had  
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t ransp i red  to  ge t  th is  par t i cu la r  reso lu t ion  f rom the  Board  

was d iscussed.   

So when the  Min is te r  came in  a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime 

there  was to  my knowledge,  I  d id  no t  have any idea about  

the  repor t .   The way I  remember  tha t  was the  repor t  was 

on ly  d i scussed a t  the  meet ing  tha t  t ransp i red  a f te r  the  

Min is te r  had le f t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  i f  we accept  your  reco l lec t ion  tha t  

the  repor t  t rans –  the  ment ion  o f  the  repor t  was made on ly  

a f te r  the  Min is te r  had  le f t .   D id  you cons ider  as  the  Board  10 

whethe r  i t  was necessary  to  go  back to  the  M in is te r  and  

say,  wa i t  Min is te r  be fore  we imp lement  what  you have put  

to  us  shou ld  we not  fo l low due process?  Shou ld  we not  

f i rs t  ob ta in  th is  repor t ,  wh ich  Mr  Tsots i  has to ld  us  about  

and then see whether  and how we imp lement  what  you  

have put  to  us?  

MS KLEIN:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson I  can on ly  ta lk  fo r  myse l f .  

But  when I  heard  about  the  repor t  l i ke  I  sa id  i t  may have  

been d i scussed in  the  meet ing  o f  the  9 t h  and I  am sure  you 

w i l l  tes t  tha t  w i th  o ther  members  o f  the  Board .   But  I  f i rs t  20 

heard  about  tha t  in  a  d iscuss ion  when Mr  Tsots i  a f te r  the  

Min is te r  had le f t  so  he  to ld  us  how much work  had  a l ready  

been done.   So I  wou ld  no t  have thought  i t  needed to  go  

back to  the  Min is te r  because Mr  Tsots i  who had e f fec t i ve ly  

now had -  we have heard  the  Min is te r  say ing  tha t  there  is  
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work  tha t  needs to  happen to  ge t  the  company s tab i l i sed .  

I f  I  cou ld  jus t  maybe add on Cha i rperson whenever  

you s i t t ing  here  in  load shedd ing  s tage th ree ,  were  in  

c r i s i s .  The Min i s te r  has to ld  us  when she f i rs t  met  us ,  I  

th ink  a t  the  end o f  December  and  she to ld  us  aga in ,  guys 

ge t  a  hand le  on  the  bus iness.  Now we s i t t ing  and we fac ing  

an  invest iga t ion  or  an  inqu i ry  ra the r,  wh ich  qu i te  f rank ly  I  

suppor ted  when I  heard  a l l  about  i t  because I  thought  i t  

wou ld  be  a  way o f  ru l ing  or  ge t t ing  a  l ine  in  the  sand and 

in  unders tand ing  what  one is  dea l i ng  w i th .   10 

But  the  repor t  came up la te r  when,  i f  I  remember  

tha t  cor rec t l y,  when Mr  Tsots i  was te l l ing  us  more  about  

what  he  be l ieves  or  why he be l ieves,  you know tha t  we  

need to  do  th is  and we need to  do  th is  qu i ck ly.   So I  d id  

no t  th ink  a t  the  t ime persona l ly  I  d id  no t  see the  need to  go  

back to  the  Min i s te r  and ta lk  abou t  the  repor t  because she 

d id  no t  ment ion  the  repor t  Mr  Tsots i  d id .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  f ina l l y  on  tha t ,  d id  the  Board  no t  

i t se l f  render  the  repor t  unnecessary?   I f  we reca l l  D r  

Ngubane when in  response to  Mr  Norman Ba loy i ’s  quest ion  20 

to  Mr  Tsots i  say ing :  

“But  Cha i r,  you have sa id  there  is  a  repor t  tha t  

ex i s ts ,  shou ld  we  not  f i rs t  ob ta in  tha t  repor t  be fore  

we make the  dec i s ions. ”  

Dr  Ben Ngubane ’s  response was tha t :  
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“There  m ight  be  a  repor t  ou t  there  bu t  i t  i s  no t  

Eskom’s  repor t ,  we must  make th is  dec is ion ,  i t  is  

our  dec i s ion . ”  

And the  Board  u l t imate ly  went  a long w i th  tha t ,  w i th in  the  

Board  i t se l f  rendered the  repor t  unnecessary.  

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rperson on the  quest ion  on  what  the  

ev idence leader  i s  ask ing  me now is  obv ious ly  the  repor t  

was impor tan t ,  you know to  us because i t  was cer ta in l y  

used as  mot iva t ion  to  say guys you got  to  k ick  s ta r t  the  

process.   But  l i ke  I  sa id  i s  t he  charges tha t  were  10 

fo rmula ted  aga ins t  Mr  Tsots i  was based on the  record ings  

o f  the  d iscuss ion  o f  tha t  day,  wh ich  is  poss ib l y  why  he was 

not  cha rged w i th  i t  because i t  cou ld  be  l i ke  to  say,  maybe  

tha t  was par t  o f  the  reason he was not  charged w i th  th is  

because another  Board  member  maybe fe l t  tha t  le t  us  jus t  

move ahead and get  th is  done.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   In  regard  to  Mr  Norman 

Ba loy i  who i t  seems was a  t roub led  ch i ld  fo r  the  Board  

f rom the  ve ry  beg inn ing .   Can you reca l l  why the  Board  

moved fo r  h i s  remova l?  20 

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rperson I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  I  ac tua l l y  

addressed i t  in  my a f f idav i t  a t  a l l  advocate ,  Cha i rperson i f  

you can he lp  me I  do  no t  th ink  I  addressed i t  in  my a f f idav i t  

so  I  am go ing  to  speak f rom memory  i f  tha t  i s  okay w i th  

you.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i f  you  can.  

MS KLEIN:    A t  the  t ime when…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you can i f  you can remember  bu t  i f  

we need to  go  and have a  look a t  the  document  then we  

w i l l  have a  look.  

MS KLEIN:    Yes,  okay,  p lease  d i rec t  me i f  there  i s  a  

document .   But  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  I  addressed i t  in  my 

a f f idav i t .   I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  I  wou ld  have ca l led  Mr  Ba loy i  

a  p rob lem ch i ld .   What  I  th ink  I  myse l f  tha t  i s  ta lk ing  here ,  

i s  tha t  the  Board  wou ld  make a  dec is ion  and a f te r  the  10 

Board  dec i s ion  was made -  and unders tand how d i f f i cu l t  i t  

i s ,  as  a  Board  member  s i t t ing  the re  no t  every  dec is ion  is  

made in  agreement  w i th  you.   

A t  the  end o f  the  day,  whether  you  agree or  no t  you  

k ind  o f  need to  accept  tha t  the  major i t y  o f  the  Board  

members  have made th is  dec is ion  and i f  you go -  you  

cannot  constant ly  be  ob jec t ing  o f  tha t  so r ry  I  do  no t  agree;  

I  do  no t  ag ree.   There  are  cer ta in  t imes in  c r i t i ca l  dec is ions 

ge ts  made then  you do tha t .  But  what  I  ba t t led  w i th  

persona l l y  and l i ke  I  say  I  am ta lk ing  f rom memory  is  tha t  20 

we wou ld  agree as  a  Board  on  var ious th ings,  we wou ld  

then la te r  on  the  same n igh t  ge t  emai ls  and emai l  t ra i l s  -  

and Cha i rperson  I  th ink  you wou ld  be  in  a  be t te r  p lace  

because you probab ly  go t  Mr  Ba loy i ’s  a f f idav i ts  where  he  

w i l l  then d isag ree w i th  what  the  agreement  was ear l ie r  in  
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the  day.   I  mean can I  g ive  you an example  maybe  jus t  to  

demonst ra te  the  po in t .    

On the  remova l  o f  Mr  Zo la  Tso ts i  we had gone  

th rough an ent i re  d iscuss ion ,  wh ich  obv ious ly  the  a t to rneys 

a l low them to  use to  then fo rmula te  the  charges because  

we jus t  fo rmula ted  i t .   Norman  Ba loy i  then comes and adds  

on what  he  th inks  must  goes in to  i t  and I  th ink  tha t  made  

you know,  fu l f i l l i ng  the  f iduc ia ry  respons ib i l i t y  ve ry  d i f f i cu l t  

to  add s tu f f  on  a f te r  you know,  a f te r  a  Board  meet ing .    

And I  th ink  tha t  was i f  you  are  ask ing  my op in ion  I  10 

am ta lk ing  f rom,  I  am ta lk ing  f rom my memory  and to ta l  

reco l lec t ion  r igh t  now but  I  th ink  tha t  to  me was the  

charge.   Cha i r,  I  hope tha t  answers  the  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka,  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r,  yes  I  recogn ise  the  

d isadvantage because you have not  dea l t  w i th  i t  in  your  

a f f idav i t .   I  am go ing  to  move on Ms K le in  jus t  

by…[ in tervene]  

MS KLEIN:    Thank you,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  inso far  as  the  Board  members  a re  20 

concerned,  your  fe l low Board  members ,  d id  you have any 

re la t ions  any in te rac t ion  w i th  them p r io r  t o  your  

appo in tment  on  the  Board ,  Eskom Board  and the  11 t h  o f  

December  2014?  

MS KLEIN:    No,  Cha i rperson I  d id  no t  know one o f  them.   
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O ther  than obv ious l y  the  on ly  person tha t  I  cou ld  say tha t  I  

know someth ing  about  was Romeo Kumalo  because  I  mean 

he was a  pub l i c  f igure  bu t  beyond tha t ,  no .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  you d id  no t  know h im persona l ly?  

MS KLEIN:    No,  no  I  never  met  h im persona l ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Any o f  the  Gup ta  bro the rs?  

MS KLEIN:    No,  s i r  never  met  them.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you come to  know them dur ing  

your  t ime se rv ing  on  the  Eskom Board  a t  a  pe rsona l  leve l?  

MS KLEIN:    No,  never  met  any o f  them,  no  never.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Sa l im Essa? 

MS KLEIN:    L ike  I  sa id  in  my a f f idav i t  I  was a t  one o f  the 

breakfas t  and I  was in t roduced to  h im but  beyond tha t  no ,  I  

never  go t  to  know h im persona l ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  what  b reakfas t  was th i s?  

MS KLEIN:    I t  was one o f  those breakfas t s  tha t  I  th ink 

Eskom was,  you know,  one o f  those EMA th ings I  th ink  so ,  

i t  was a t  a  par t i cu la r  b reakfas t  I  remember  h im coming up 

and in t roduc ing  h imse l f  a t  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And you say in  your  a f f idav i t  i t  was 20 

dur ing  about  March,  Apr i l  2015?  

MS KLEIN:    Cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  you d id  no t  know h im before  then?  

MS KLEIN:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Min is te r  Lynn Brown?  
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MS KLEIN:    Min is te r  Lynn Brown Cha i rperson I  go t  to  

know in  my job  as  head o f  re ta i l ,  bank o f  ABSA.   We had a  

coup le  o f  funct ions and because  o f  her  p ro f i le  she was  

inv i ted  to  one o r  two o f  them and tha t  i s  where  -  i f  I  

remember  cor rec t l y,  the  f i rs t  t ime I  in te rac ted  w i th  her  

persona l l y  was w i th  the  open ing  o f  P r iva te  Bank  in  the 

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  o f  the  Baxter,  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  t ime I  ac tua l l y  

go t  to  meet  he r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  d id  you  come to  know her  on  a 

persona l  leve l?  10 

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rpe rson obv ious ly  I  go t  to  know her  be t te r  

when I  became a  member  o f  the  Board  o f  Eskom because  

there  were  a lways meet ings tha t  I  was inv i ted  to  where  she  

was present .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  and the  fo rmer  Pres ident  Jacob 

Zuma pr io r  to  your  appo in tment  on  the  Board ,  d id  you know 

h im persona l l y?  

MS KLEIN:    No,  I  d id  no t  bu t  in  my t ime a t  Eskom I  a lso  

went  on to  the  Board  o f  the  Reserve  Bank and I  a t tended a  

meet ing  w i th  the  fo rmer  Pres iden t  a t  h is  res idence when  20 

we had to  go  and  d iscuss w i th  h im  –  I  was the  Cha i rpe rson  

o f  the  Remunera t ion  Commi t tee  o f  the  Reserve  Bank and  

as  tha t  I  was ca l l ed  upon to  go  w i th  the  Governor  and one 

or  two o ther  Board  members  to  go  and d iscuss the  renewal  

o f  the  cont rac t  o f  one o f  the  Deputy  Governors .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Now there  i s  an  issue I  want  to  

d raw to  your  a t ten t ion  be fore  we  go in to  the  t ransact ions  

because i t  i s  re levant  to  what  I  have,  what  I  am dea l ing  

w i th  now.   And th is  i s  what  Mr  Koko says in  h i s  submiss ion  

is  an  inv i ta t ion  you made to  h im to  come to  your  home,  to  

your  house.   You know about  tha t  a l legat ion?  

MS KLEIN:    Yes,  I  do  Cha i rperson .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I f  I  could read to the Chai rperson to put  

the Chairperson on the same page just  before you respond 

to that  al legat ion.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay please do.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  is in Eskom Bundle 15 – Eskom Bundle 

15(b) on page 10 – 1039.  Ms Klein I  know I  have provided 

you wi th th is aff idavi t  or submission.  

MS KLEIN:   Yes – thanks Chai rperson I  am just  t ry ing to pul l  

i t  up on the screen mysel f  but  the – okay (not  audible).  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Chai r  just  read – I  wi l l  read what he says 

there.   Page 10 – Eskom Bundle 15(B) page 1039 the b lack 

paginat ion Chairperson paragraph 147 is  Mr Koko’s 

submission to the Parl iamentary Port fo l io Commit tee.   20 

Paragraph 147 says:  

“Ms Klein has in  – has in the proceedings 

before the Port fo l io Commit tee at tempted to 

put  me in a bad l ight  because she harbours 

resentment against  me as a resul t  of  the fact  
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that  I  had refused to assist  her husband Mr 

Harold Klein procure a project  management 

contract  for  his  company in respect  of  the 

conversion of  Eskom’s diesel  dr iven OCGT 

Generat ion plants to gas dr iven plants.”  

Paragraph 148 on page 1040.  

“Ms Kle in dur ing the second week of  January 

2017 af ter I  had been appointed inter im GCE 

phoned me and requested that  I  should meet 

wi th her  at  her home in  Mooikloof  Pretor ia.   10 

She stated that  she had a pr ivate issue that  

she wanted to discuss wi th me.  I  compl ied 

wi th the request  and met wi th Ms Klein at  her  

home on Saturday 14 January 2017.   Her  

husband part ic ipated in the meet ing.   They 

informed me that  they had a problem and Ms 

Klein said that  she needed me to solve i t .   

They explained the problem as being that  Dr  

Klein’s  company had tendered for  project  

management cont racts on the convers ion of  20 

the OCGT uni ts to Guess Projects.   I t  was 

not  get t ing the jobs. ”  

Ms Klein what is OCGT? 

MS KLEIN:   Open Cycle Gas Turbine sorry I  am not  the 

technical  person please do not  just  ja.   Open – open cycle 
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gas turbine.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.  Then I  carry on reading.  

“Ms Klein said that  she had taken her ABSA 

pension money and had invested i t  in her 

husband’s business and he now could not  get  

Eskom cont racts due to her  being a director 

of  Eskom whi le h is compet i t ion was get t ing 

these – his compet i t ion was get t ing these 

i rregular ly.   Ms Klein stated that  she wanted 

me to do something about i t .   I  was surpr ised 10 

by what she put  across because i t  was 

contrary to every Eskom rule regarding 

conf l icts of  interest .   I  informed her and 

husband that  I  had no knowledge of  the 

int r icacies of  the conversat ion – conversion 

project  at  that  t ime or any i rregular i t ies in 

re lat ion to the awarding of  tenders in respect  

thereof .   I  to ld her that  I  would however look 

into the matter.   I  then phoned Dr Klein on I  

bel ieve Monday 16 January 2017 and I  20 

arranged a meet ing wi th him.  I  for  purposes 

of  meet ing – of  the meet ing cal led in  

Eskom’s Chief  Audi t  Off icer as wel l  as 

members of  the OCGT Guess Conversion 

Project  team.  I  int roduced Ms Klein to them 
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– Mr Kle in to them when he arr ived and 

asked him we hear him out  regarding his  

complaints.   I  then stepped out  o f  meet ing.   

Ms Klein’s at t i tude towards me t inged f rom 

that  t ime.  She must have expected that  I  

would course the contracts that  had al legedly 

been i r regular ly awarded to be channel led to  

her husband. ”  

Ms Klein can you comment on that? 

MS KLEIN:   Chairperson let  me ask you do you have my 10 

supplementary aff idavi t  that  was af ter that  had been 

presented to Parl iament I  put  through an aff idavi t  to  

Parl iament deal ing wi th the exact  matter.   Do you have that  

in f ront  of  you as wel l?  I  mean I  can talk you through i t  but  I  

am just  asking do you have that  because i t  was 00:05:18.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Chai rperson I  received the aff idavi t  f rom 

Ms Klein we have i t  but  i t  is not  – i t  has not  been 

incorporated in the bundle yet .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  do you want  to do that  now so that  i t  

is in when any reference is made to i t  – we know i t  is in.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   We could certain ly do so.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or you do not  have enough copies? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  th ink my – my – one of  our invest igators 

wi l l  run copies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   Let  that  be done.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  would be bet ter … 

MS KLEIN:    I  am happy to respond Chai rperson in the 

meant ime. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja just  respond and then when the aff idavi t  

comes we can see whether you wish to add anything.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS KLEIN:   A lr ight ,  a l r ight .   Thank you Chairperson.   I f  you 

could – I  refute Mr Koko’s version completely.   Let  me put  i t  

to you this way you know i t  is – I  know that  th is is not  a l i fe  10 

matter but  you know in f ront  of  th is  real ly commission I  was 

l i teral ly accused of  br inging Mr Koko back you know or 

l i teral ly on my vol i t ion which obviously is not  t rue.  

 So why would I  wai t  l i teral ly f i f teen months to ask Mr 

Koko for business for my husband in the f i rst  p lace would be 

my response.   But  now let  me just  deal  wi th the matter that  – 

that  the evidence leader put  to me.  

 The reason Mr Koko was cal led and he was not  cal led 

to my house – my husband was on a panel  of  project  

managers that  had been appointed by Eskom in that  t ime.   20 

So i t  is not  l ike – I  would not  ask him to work wi th none of  

them.  My husband has been appointed as a Project  Manager 

because he – he holds a Doctorate in Civi l  Engineering.   So 

he was appointed as a special ist  i f  you wi l l .   

 During that  t ime in fact  before Mr Koko became the 
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act ing CEO my husband’s company and by the way you can 

go and check al l  the conf l icts of  in terest .   I  had a record of  

that  t ime af ter t ime that  you know he was on this part icular 

panel .   He was then given a p iece of  work to provide Eskom 

with a number of  c iv i l  engineers for part icular work that 

needed to get  done.  

 When he provided the CV’s of  the people those were 

just  not  good enough.  I t  was st ruck off .   Whi lst  a l l  th is to ing 

and f ro ing was happening my husband got  a cal l  f rom 

somebody by the name of  a Gavin Sheer or i f  my memory 10 

serves me correct ly I  am talking f rom memory here now.  

Gavin Sheer who said something l ike this to my husband; he 

said look I  am work ing for Eskom your company has been 

given the opportuni ty now to f ind these special ists to work 

on OCGT’s but  th is is how i t  is going to go.   And please 

excuse me i f  I  do not  get  the numbers r ight  because I  am 

talk ing purely f rom memory now.  

 What he said was – or  what  he said to Harold was the 

tota l  that  you wi l l  get  pa id was something l ike R1500 an hour  

but  the total  that  you wi l l  get  as a company is R100.00 and I  20 

wi l l  keep the R1400 because I  am al ready here and you wi l l  

just  get  the R100.00 per hour.    

 Obviously because I  was a board member my 

husband came to me and says to me what do you think of  

th is?  I  said wel l  th is is nothing short  of  f ront ing.   He said so 



10 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 341 
 

Page 92 of 294 
 

what  do we do wi th i t?  I  said to him I  do not  know what to  

do wi th i t  but  let  us t ry and escalate i t  wi thin Eskom.  

 I  was not  going to take i t  to the board because I  d id  

not  consider i t  a  board related mat ter.   I t  was an operat ional  

issue.   That  al l  happened at  the t ime when Mr Koko became 

the act ing CEO.  Mr Koko was asked to speak to my husband 

in that  part icular week because everything came to a head 

just  af ter Christmas I  th ink that  was January 2017 to speak 

to Mr Koko but  because he could not  make i t  he was busy 

obviously now act ing as CEO and my husband could not  10 

make i t  – i t  ended up that  the meet ing happened to be at  my 

home.  

 That  was the reason that  he came there to point  out  

the f ront ing which he as the CEO had to go and invest igate.   

Now by the Monday fol lowing that  part icular Saturday there 

was a meet ing and a whole host  of  people were cal led to the 

meet ing.   Obviously I  was not  par t  of  i t  but  there was an 

invest igat ion done and Mr Koko did cal l  forensics,  audi t  and 

forensics and a whole range of  other people and as part  of  

my submission to Parl iament wi th my version this is Mr 20 

Koko’s version I  at tached a copy of  that  report  which had 

been redacted which I  am sure that  the commission could 

cal l  and just  see i f  i t  was about – i f  the meet ing was – my 

husband was about work for my husband’s company which by 

the way he had al ready been al located but  i t  was a whole 
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f ront ing arrangement or  whether i t  was to  get  more work 

f rom Mr Koko.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   We..  

MS KLEIN:   Chai rperson I  hope that  br ings some clar i ty to 

the point  that  evidence leader has raised.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  no i t  does we wi l l  have a look at  the 

report  as wel l .   I  know you have given me the aff idavi t  but  I  

do not  th ink i t  has the at tachment – any at tachment to i t .   10 

But  we can arrange af ter the hearings.  

MS KLEIN:   I t  was    yes okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    

MS KLEIN:   We can – look apparent ly i t  was sent  Advocate 

but  we can certa inly make sure that  al l  the other th ings wi l l  

be sent  to you as wel l  i f  you do not  have i t .   A l r ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   Thank you.   Now let  us go into the 

aff idavi t  on t ransact ions – the evidence that  you set  out  

there.   And we start  f i rst  and foremost wi th th is 

cooperat ion… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry you say the evidence she sets 

out  where? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   She sets out  in the aff idavi t  Exhibi t  

U14.3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Thank you.  



10 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 341 
 

Page 94 of 294 
 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Which is Eskom Bundle 1 page 400.43.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bundle 15 wi l l  not  be necessary anymore 

or wi l l  i t  come back? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  wi l l  not  be necessary anymore.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is the extent  to which I  needed to 

refer to i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay you may cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes thank you.    So we are back in your 

aff idavi t  Eskom Bundle 2 page 400.43.   Ms Klein we – I  10 

would l ike you – let  us deal  wi th the Cooperat ion Agreement 

and the Fourth Addendum which was concluded between 

Eskom and OCM owned by Glencore at  the t ime in 2014.  

 That  Cooperat ion Agreement is intended to make 

certain changes to the agreement that  then existed between 

Eskom and OCM in order to increase f i rst  and foremost the 

pr ice of  coal  OCM was sel l ing – the pr ice at  which OCM was 

sel l ing coal  to Tegeta – to Eskom. 

 The Cooperat ion Agreement came to the BTC for 

considerat ion on the 13t h of  Apri l  2015.   You were not  a  20 

member of  the BTC, correct? 

MS KLEIN:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The BTC did not  decide the matter i t  

referred the matter to the board.   The board had a meet ing in 

Cape Town on the 23r d of  Apri l  2015.  You recal l  that? 
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MS KLEIN:   I  do Chairperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Th is – at  th is  meet ing apparent ly th is  

matter came to the board’s at tent ion for decision making and 

we understand that  the matter was not  decided by the board 

as wel l  but  that  the board referred the matter to Mr  Br ian 

Molefe.   You recal l  that? 

MS KLEIN:   That  is correct .   Yes I  do.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Now Mr Brian Molefe ’s approval  the 

secondment – approval  for his secondment was only made in 

that  meet ing of  the 23r d by the board.   And the approval  10 

being made with effect  f rom the 20t h  of  Apri l  2015 to request .   

Can you tel l  the Chairperson what  were the board’s  reasons 

for – wel l  before I  ask that  quest ion let  me ask you th is one.   

 Is i t  –  who would have requested that  the matter be 

referred to Mr Molefe instead of  being decided by the board? 

MS KLEIN:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja but  who would have suggested on the 

board that  the matter be referred to Mr Molefe instead of  

being decided by the board?  Can you recal l?  

MS KLEIN:   No I  do not .   As I  said in my aff idavi t  I  do not  20 

recal l  who made i t  but  I  can certainly te l l  you why I  

supported i t  i f  that  is go ing to be your next  quest ion? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes you can go into i t .  

MS KLEIN:   A lr ight .   Chairperson what was being brought to  

the board was something that  to my mind at  the t ime 
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management af ter having taken i t  to BTC where for some 

reason or other i t  was not  concluded brought i t  to the board 

but  in dr i l l ing down I  mean I  do not  have al l  the detai ls  

because I  d id not  s i t  at  BTC but  i f  I  t ry and remember this  

th ing quest ions such as extending the tenure of  a part icular  

contract  was one.   The pr ice increase going f rom I  th ink 

R150 to R400 odd where quest ions were being asked of  

management and he a lerts me to th is because l ike I  said I  

was not  part  of  the or ig inal  d iscussion at  BTC. Management 

did not  seem to have the answers unt i l  when somebody 10 

proposed that  th is gets given as an operat ional  mat ter back 

to the Chai r  – oh sorry back to the act ing CEO at  the t ime. I  

d id not  see that  as a major problem I  thought i t  was probably 

the best  th ing because management clear ly did not  have al l  

the answers.  

 Also remember that  the tenure of  that  current  

t ransact ion was unt i l  2018 and we were talk ing about 2015 

so i t  was not  something that  accord ing to my mind needed to 

be draf ted immediately.     

 Just  by way of  record – reference i f  I  can just  get  20 

back a minute or  two i f  you wi l l  a l low me?  Remember we 

were si t t ing wi th  load shedding stage 3,  we were si t t ing 

wi thout  money,  basical ly we had so many boards in  the a ir  

that  for me something that  did not  need to be decided today 

00:17:38 is okay i f  management  had not  got  the answers 
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take i t  off  the tab le and let  us deal  wi th the cr i t ica l  matters 

that  i t  could work.   So that  is why I  would have supported 

that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   When you say mana – there were 

quest ions that  management did not  answer or could not  

answer did the board speci f ical ly ra ise quest ions wi th  – wi th  

management?  But  I  do not  want to say management.  

MS KLEIN:   My recol lect ion is that  … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Can I  narrow i t  down to the team that  

was negot iat ing the Cooperat ion Agreement and the Fourth 10 

Addendum. Did management raise quest ions wi th th is team? 

MS KLEIN:   Sorry management or board?  Are you referr ing 

to board raised quest ions wi th … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No sorry the board – did the board raise 

quest ions… 

MS KLEIN:   That  is my recol lect ion.   My recol lect ion was 

there were quest ions and I  personal ly I  can ta lk just  for 

mysel f .   I  got  the sense that  they did not  have al l  the 

answers and I  a lmost  – I  remember si t t ing there albei t  a long 

t ime ago and thinking wel l  that  is  probably why i t  is wi th  20 

board and not  wi th BTC because maybe this – I  thought that  

BTC got  was not  sat isfactory which is why i t  was brought to 

the board.   I  do not  know.  But  I  got  a 00:19:02 that  the 

quest ions were not  being sat isfactor i ly answered which is 

why i t  was given back to management to take – to give back 
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into 00:19:11.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Wel l  I  am – I  have put  th is  version 

to Mr Andre Van Heerden who is preparing an aff idavi t  for  

the commission and he -  which wi l l  be provided to you in due 

course but  let  me say what he says and I  hear your view.  He 

said the team that  negot iated and presented to BTC was not  

cal led to present  to do the same in  respect  of  the board and 

did not  receive any quest ions f rom the board on the matter.   

So that  is why I  am asking you whether do you personal ly  

know – whether do you personal ly know that  quest ions had 10 

in fact  been raised wi th that  team? 

MS KLEIN:   Chairperson so you – I  just  need to – you broke 

up just  s l ight ly there so you said somebody had – who had 

deal t  wi th i t?  You had asked this quest ion of  somebody else 

I  d id not  get  that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes the -  I  said  Andre but  i t  is  actual ly  

Mr Johan Bester  – ja i t  is  actual ly Mr Johan Bester  who was 

involved in the negot iat ion he test i f ied previously before the 

commission.   He said al though they did the presentat ion at  

BTC they were not  invi ted to do the same for the board and 20 

that  they d id not  receive quest ions f rom the board in regard 

to the Cooperat ion Agreement and the proposal  made by 

OCM.  Hence my quest ion to you whether do you personal ly 

know that  the board had raised quest ions wi th the 

negot iat ing team? 
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MS KLEIN:   Chai rperson obviously now I  do not  know what 

Mr Bester – I  d id not  l isten to his  test imony but  let  me put  i t  

to you this way.   I t  would not  be unusual  that  the negot iat ion 

team does not  recal l .   I  mean that  is  why we have got  X 

off ic ia l  members of  the board.   I  would imagine at  the t ime 

whoever was present ing i t  and i t  would probably i f  memory 

serves me correct ly has been the act ing CEO at  that  t ime 

would have probably have been the one sending the 

quest ions.   I  cannot – l ike I  said I  do not  remember or I  

cannot say who was in the room exact ly.  But  i f  he says he 10 

was and very,  very clear ly the quest ions was not  asked of  

him. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   As we understand f rom your aff idavi t  and 

the aff idavi t  of  – aff idavi ts of  o ther board members the 

matter was referred to Mr Molefe for the purposes of  him 

get t ing informat ion and giving feedback to the board.   Is  that  

also your understanding? 

MS KLEIN:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   We have as the legal  team have seen 

f rom other board members aff idavi ts that  they have no 20 

recol lect ion of  Mr Molefe report ing back on the matter to the 

board.   What is your recol lect ion? 

MS KLEIN:   My recol lect ion Chai rperson is that  I  p icked i t  up 

I  th ink i t  was something under legal  in the month of  

September.  That  is where I  p icked up the next  – you know 
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where I  p ick i t  up next .   I  am not  sure what is – I  have not  

read – I  have not  had the benef i t  of  reading through the 

aff idavi ts of  any of  the other board members but  I  remember 

seeing i t  for the f i rst  t ime in September and i t  was under 

legal  when i t  looked l ike this had already progressed qui te 

far.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Chai rperson was in the – what Ms 

Klein is referr ing to is on page 400.55.   Ms Klein you might  – 

you may want to turn there.   But  now this is in September 

2015.  10 

MS KLEIN:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Before we get  to and wi l l  see 

Chairperson under 6.3 but  before we go to that  Ms Klein let  

me ask you this.   Did you know that  Mr Molefe had 

terminated the Cooperat ion Agreement and negot iat ion 

process wi th OCM in July 2015? 

MS KLEIN:   No Chairperson I  was not  aware.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You were not  aware.   So then we come to 

September and you cal l  i t  a repor t  of  the Chief  Execut ive 

Off icer.   Are you on that  page 400.6… 20 

MS KLEIN:   I t  was the legal  report .   Yes that  is  correct  

Chairperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is that  under paragraph 6.3? 

MS KLEIN:   That  is correct  yes this  is the legal  update.   The 

CEO report  but  i t  is wi th the legal  update.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay there is a heading there af ter the 

f i rst  paragraph there is heading Opt imum Coal Mine 

Proprietary Limited and Opt imum Coal Hold ings Limited.    

MS KLEIN:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is that  the paragraph there under is that  

what you want to refer the Chai rperson to? 

MS KLEIN:   Yes that  is the one I  am referr ing to.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   As where you… 

MS KLEIN:   Correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   As where you picked up that  he was 10 

report ing back to the board.  

MS KLEIN:   Effect ively because that  was his report  back to 

the board.   So yes that  is the one I  am referr ing to.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  have read this  paragraph and the 

report ing is not  of  the kind that  I  thought he was requi red to  

do.   In fact  here i t  is a report  that  the negot iat ions have been 

terminated as opposed to I  have obtained informat ion and 

this is what – these are the facts let  us decide how to go 

forward wi th the matter.    

MS KLEIN:   Yes Chai r.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   What is your comment on that? 

MS KLEIN:   Chai rperson not  being a technica l  person mysel f  

I  was at  that  stage i t  d id not  look st range to me at  al l .   I  

mean this is him giving feedback.   Remember the contract  

that  was brought to us in – in Apri l  spoke about something 
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that  was happening at  one of  the you know – wi th  one of  the 

suppl iers of  coal  and they were asking for  more money and 

they were asking for an extension of  tenure.   So then I  

looked at  th is I  th ink at  that  s tage to think there was 

anything st range with that .   Obviously now at  the benef i t  of  

h indsight  I  now real ise I  should have asked a lo t  more 

quest ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   Yes but  let  me hear your  answer 

to th is.   I  accept  that  that  wi th the benef i t  of  h indsight  you 

real ised that  you should have asked more quest ions.   What I  10 

was saying to you is i f  the board ’s decision on the 23r d of  

Apri l  2015 was for him to get  informat ion and come back to 

the board – repor t  back to the board what is happening here 

in September is not  that  k ind of  report ing.   In fact  what he is  

te l l ing you is that  he has terminated the negot iat ions wi th  

OCM. 

MS KLEIN:   My response to that  wi l l  be very simple 

Chairperson maybe s imple to me but  maybe you see 

something else there is that  remember we got  a board sub-

commit tee you wi l l  remember on the – on the matters of  the 20 

suspensions because of  me serving on PMG you al ready you 

know asked me for many answers.   I  expected when I  looked 

at  th is that  th is is  probably had been deal t  wi th would have 

been deal t  wi th at  one of  the sub-commit tees.   So i t  d id not  – 

i t  d id not  come across as st range to me that  th is was clear  
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or that  he should have.   I  d id expect  him to come back but  I  

mean the fact  that  he did not  and i t  was here – and none of  

the other board members ra ised i t  I  d id not  f ind that  as being 

st range at  the t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes but  is that  not  problemat ic because 

BTC which is a sub-commit tee of  the board had speci f ical ly  

referred the matter up to the board and the board not  the 

BTC or any subsidiary for – commit tee of  the board made the 

decision to refer i t  to Mr Molefe on the basis that  he wi l l  

obtain informat ion and come back to the board.   But  not  to  10 

make a decision that  he made.  

MS KLEIN:   No I  – I  do hear you Chairperson and I  am 

giving you – i f  you saying to me i t  is problemat ic I  accept  

that  i t  is.   I  understood this at  the t ime because remember 

we si t t ing wi th BTC members in the board that  i f  th is was the 

incorrect  approach or th is was wrong that  is then would have 

been f lagged as wrong.   I  just  – i t  was when you asked a l l  

the quest ions that  I  went  back to  go and reread i t  that  I  

real ised that  th is is the f i rst  t ime i t  actual ly came back to the 

board.   And I  am not  t ry ing to make – I  am not  t ry ing to 20 

t r iv ia l ise the matter but  rather to say to you that  you – as 

board members we were si t t ing wi th many hands in the f i re  

deal ing wi th many things at  the t ime.  Now today when I  look 

at  i t  and obviously having heard everything I  real ise we 

should have asked – I  should – I  thought should have asked 
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more quest ions here.   So you say problemat ic  I  accept  that  i t  

is.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes because – the impression Ms Klein 

created and you would know from the invest igat ion by the 

Parl iamentary Por t fo l io Commit tee or the oversight  role they 

played the impression created is that  Mr Molefe was brought 

to Eskom for a part icular purpose and that  purpose on the 

face of  i t  appears to be to assist  the Gupta brothers in order  

to obtain cont racts wi th Eskom.  Do you have any comment  

on that? 10 

MS KLEIN:   Other than what I  have read in the media and 

obviously what has played out  in terms of  the commission I  

can understand how you could te l l  me that  th is is 

problemat ic.   Further  than that  I  cannot  comment  because at  

the t ime when this happened I  d id not  th ink that  i t  was 

i rregular because remember in my mind being a non-

technical  person we are ta lk ing about something that  was 

supposed to only have been decided in 2018 so I  d id not  

at tach any – i t  has got  to  be decided now.  But  w i th the 

benef i t  of  having l istened to you know d i fferent  evidence 20 

pieces and certainly the kind of  quest ion ing that  you put  to   

me I  can understand how you can see this was problemat ic.   

I  see i t  as problemat ic now.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   But  what  is also more t roubl ing is 

that  the impression is created that  the board also created an 
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enabl ing environment for that  ul ter ior purpose to be 

achieved.   I  mean you as the Chai rperson ear l ier said you – 

some board members may not  have known, maybe acted to 

say the least  negl igent ly.   There might  have been other 

board members who knew what was happening as an ul ter ior 

mot ive the real  purpose for  making certain decisions but  I  

am just  put t ing that  to you so that  you can comment  to the 

Chairperson that  the more t roubl ing issue is that  the board 

which is the gatekeeper or should have been the gatekeeper 

in the exercise of  i ts f iduciary dut ies making decisions of  th is 10 

nature that  you nonetheless created an enabl ing 

environment for some of  these decisions to take place.   Your 

comment? 

MS KLEIN:   Chai rperson i t  is actual ly very di ff icul t  to even – 

sorry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes your comment,  proceed.  

MS KLEIN:   Sorry.   Obviously when I  look at  th ings today i t  

looks very di fferent  to what i t  looked l ike back then.   I f  you 

were to  ask me di rect ly  whether I  was involved or I  knew my 

answer to that  is no.   I f  you were to ask me did I  see mysel f  20 

as enabl ing this you know al l  I  can say to you is you know as 

board members I  can talk for mysel f .   We were deal ing wi th 

so many di fferent  th ings coming at  us.   Load shedding was 

st i l l  an issue.   We were deal ing wi th  lack of  money.   We were 

– i t  was just  coming f rom al l  angles so i t  is rea l ly di ff icul t  to  
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say you know who may have known what other than what I  

knew.  So yes I  understand and I  do hear you when you say 

this is what  emerges but  I  cannot  real ly comment on that  

because I  was part  of  the board and should I  have asked 

more quest ions on that  – now I  know that  I  should have.   But  

way back then you know i t  is – I  d id not .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Okay thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON:   We need to take the lunch break i t  is one 

o’clock.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   We are going to take the lunch break and 

we wi l l  resume at  two o’clock.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We adjourn.  

MS KLEIN:   Thank you.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES     

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  cont inue Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i rperson.   We can proceed.   20 

Ms K le in ,  you can  s t i l l  hear  us?  

MS KLEIN:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.  

MS KLEIN:    Yes,  I  can hear  you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   I  was about  to  move to  the 
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second or  the  –  ja ,  the  second po in t  in  the  t ransact ions 

wh ich  is  what  you  dea l  w i th  on  page 400.47,  Eskom Bund le  

2 .    

MS KLEIN:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Ms K le in ,  be fore  I  ask  you a  

quest ion  on  th is .   I t  was brought  to  my a t ten t ion  du r ing  the  

lunch ad journment  tha t  tha t  repor t  we re fer red  to  o f  

Mr  Br ian  Mole fe ,  a l though i t  was there  in  the  pack  to  the 

board ,  i t  was in  fac t  no t  p resented  to  the  board .   Can you – 

do  you reca l l  tha t?  10 

MS KLEIN:    No,  I  do  no t  Cha i rpe rson.   A l l  I  remember  i s  

tha t  in  go ing  back,  be ing  asked quest ions by  yourse l ves,  I  

went  and I  found  tha t  repor t  in  amongst  the  documents  in  

my packs.   So i f  i t  was not  p resented,  then I  cannot  

respond to  tha t .   I t  cer ta in l y  was in  my amongst  my board  

pack,  thereabout .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  do  no t  know whether  you have  

a lso  a  copy o f  the  m inutes  o f  the  meet ing  o f  the  

10 t h  o f  March 2015(s i c )  wh ich  wou ld  have . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    10 t h  o f  June?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    10  September  2015.   I  beg your  

pardon.  

MS KLEIN:    I  can  re fe r.   Do you have a  re ference po in t  fo r  

me on i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  remember  . . . [ in te rvenes]   



10 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 341 
 

Page 108 of 294 
 

MS KLEIN:    Because I  can go and. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  remember  h is  repor t  is  da ted  

9  March.   I  mean,  9  September.   Sor ry.  

MS KLEIN:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  9  September  2015 and  i t  was 

meant  to  be  presented to  the  board  on  the  meet ing  o f  the 

10 t h  o f  March(s ic ) .   No,  10  September.    

MS KLEIN:    Yes,  Cha i r?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   I  know tha t  you have a  co l la t ion  

o f  the  m inutes  o f  the  board  mee t ing .   So I  was ask ing  10 

whethe r  you do  not  have tha t  one as  we l l  o f  the  

10 t h  o f  March(s ic )?  

MS KLEIN:    Oh,  sor ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    O f  the  10 t h  o f  September.  

MS KLEIN:    A re  you ask ing  me i f  I  have a  copy o f  the 

board  meet ing  w i th  me fo r  the  10 t h  o f  September?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS KLEIN:    Jus t  ho ld  on .   Le t  me see i f  I  can  f ind  i t .   Yes,  

I  have Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Under  paragraph 8 .2  where  he  20 

ta lks  about  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive ’s  repor t .   I t  reads  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  was noted . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  Mr  Se leka.   A re  you ta lk ing  about  
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the  CEO’s  repor t  o r  a re  you ta l k ing  about  the  m inutes  o f  

the  meet ing  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  the  m inutes  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And where  wou ld  I  f ind  them? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    The Cha i rperson w i l l  f ind  them in  

Eskom,  Bund le  14(C) ,  page. . .   B racket  C.    

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rperson,  I  do  no t  seem to  have tha t  bu t  I  

am happy to  l i s ten  to  what  you have got  to  say and see  

how I  respond.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 841.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay Ms K le in .  

MS KLEIN:    Yes,  Cha i rpe rson?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  the  Cha i rperson is  ge t t ing  the . . .   

And I  w i l l  j us t  read.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  we fo rge t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    P lease Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  we fo rge t  to  a l low Ms K le in ’s  

lawyers  to  p lace  themse lves on  record  today?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    We d id ,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sha l l  we co r rec t  tha t  now?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   No,  you are  cor rec t  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  and they d id  te l l  me they w i l l  jo in  

the  meet ing .   They w i l l  jo in  the  hear ing  bu t  they w i l l  b lank  

themse lves and keep themse lves on  mute .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  there  is  an  unders tand ing  between  

the  two o f  you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay I  w i l l  l eave i t  a t  tha t .  [ laughs]  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  bu t  they can p lace themse lves on  

record  Cha i r.   I  th ink  you are  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Advocate  Don Mahon(?) .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

ADV DON MAHON:    Thank you,  Cha i rpe rson.   Advocate  

Don Mahon ins t ruc ted  by  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  a t to rneys.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Yes,  le t  us  have 

Ms K le in  back.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  have got  the  m inutes  tha t  a re  or  

tha t . . .   I  do  no t  know what  page they s ta r t  bu t  I  have got  

841 in  f ron t  o f  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  they s ta r t  on  page 834.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    The on ly  re levant  po r t ion  Cha i r  i s  841.   

And Ms K le in ,  you are  back?  Under  pa rag raph  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    Yes,  I  am.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  jus t  under  parag raph 8 .2 .   I t  says :  

“The ac t ing  CE repor t  as  a t  7  September  2015 

was tab led  fo r  i n fo rmat ion ,  de ta i l s  o f  wh ich  

were  inc luded in  the  meet ing  pack.   

I t  was taken as  read.  

I t  was noted tha t  the  pack had been d is t r ibu ted 10 

la te  and members  cou ld  d i rec t  any quer ies  

around the  ac t ing  CE ’s  repor t  to  the  ac t ing  CE 

and reso lve  tha t .   I t  i s  no ted . ”  

 Wel l ,  I  unders tand i t  was not  p resented but  I  see 

they say taken as  read.   Can you – do  you have –  my 

quest ion  i s  whether  you reca l l  as  to  whether  o r  no t  tha t  

repor t  was presented?  

MS KLEIN:    No,  ac tua l l y  I  do  no t  remember  Cha i rperson 

and l i ke  I  sa id ,  you know,  w i th  the  benef i t  o f  h inds igh t ,  

even i f  I  d id  read  i t  and i f  I  knew then what  I  know now,  I  20 

probab ly  wou ld  have had a  lo t  more  quest ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS KLEIN:    Bu t  I  do  no t  reca l l  tha t  spec i f i c  po in t  be ing  

d iscussed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  
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MS KLEIN:    I  mean,  l i ke  I  sa id  I  p icked i t  up  when I  went  

th rough my documents  when I  go t  your  quest ions.   That  i s  

when I  rea l l y  wen t  and wro te  down.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay thank you.   Now le t  us  ge t  to  the 

submiss ion ,  request ing  the  board  to  make the  prepayment  

dec is ion  o f  R 1 .6  b i l l i on .   That  submiss ion  is  d ra f ted  and  

submi t ted  to  the  board  on  the  8 t h  o f  December  2015.    

MS KLEIN:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The board ,  in  te rms o f  tha t  submiss ion ,  

i s  requested to  make a  dec i s ion ,  to  make a  prepayment .   10 

Cor rec t?  

MS KLEIN:    Cor rec t .   Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    We have re fer red  to  tha t  submiss ion  

wh ich  you w i l l  f ind  in  Eskom Bund le  18(A )  on  page 281.    

MS KLEIN:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 281,  Eskom Bund le  18 (A) .   In  our  

p rev ious sess ion  or  the  sess ion  w i th  the  prev ious w i tness,  

we went  in to  th is  submiss ion  Ms K le in .   So we are  fami l ia r  

w i th  i t .   I  hope you are  a l so  fami l ia r  w i th  i t?  

MS KLEIN:    I  am Cha i rpe rson.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    You are?  

MS KLEIN:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    And so  jus t  to  ske tch  the  p ic tu re .   Th i s  

document  i s  d ra f ted  aga ins t  the  backdrop o f  negot ia t ions  

be tween Opt imum and Eskom regard ing  the  ex i s t ing  Coa l  
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Supp ly  Agreement  a t  the  t ime between the  two par t ies .  

 Opt imum goes in to  bus iness rescue when i t  

appears  tha t  negot ia t ions  be tween i t  and Eskom are  

co l laps ing  in  regard  to  the  increase  o f  the  coa l  p r i ce .  

 In  tha t  p rocess,  OCM seeks to  –  i t  ge ts  o f fe r  to  

se l l  i t s  share .   You have a t  the  same t ime Mr  Koko who  

engages w i th  the  DMR,  dra f t ing  a  le t te r  a  response to  

wh ich  wou ld  fo rm  the  bas i s  o f  the  submiss ion  as  we l l .  

 Do you see f rom h is  a f f idav i t  tha t  the  submiss ion  

inco rpora te  tha t  le t te r  to  the  board? 10 

MS KLEIN:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    On the  8 t h ,  an  emai l  i s  sen t  to  the  

board ,  ask ing  the  board  to  make a  dec is ion  the  nex t  day a t  

12 :00  wh ich  is  on  the  9 t h  o f  September.  

MS KLEIN:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    To  make tha t  dec i s ion  by  way o f  a  

Round-rob in .   P lease exp la in  to  the  Cha i rperson,  what  was 

your  unders tand ing  o f  th is  submiss ion  in  the  sense tha t  

wh ich  pa r ty,  tha t  the  submiss ion  proposed tha t  the  

prepayment  be  made?  20 

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rperson,  my unders tand ing  was tha t  there  

was th is  b ig  need to  do  a  p repayment  to  OCH because o f  

the  coa l  requ i rements .  

 I  must  say  to  you upf ron t  tha t  because o f  my  

probab ly  lack  o f  techn ica l  knowledge I  then wro te  –  I  was 
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the  one –  and I  know tha t  the re  had been o the r  peop le  who  

sa id  tha t  they ca l l  fo r  an  IFC.  

 Th is  request  was  sent  to  the  en t i re  board .   I  then  

sa id ,  I  w i l l  on ly  s ign  th is  o f f  i f  we can get  an  IFC go ing  

because I  want ing  Dr  Pat  Na idoo who is  o r  fo r  me was the  

most  techn ica l l y  exper ienced person,  to  ta lk  me th rough  

why someth ing  o f  th is  na ture  be ing  R 1 .68  b i l l i on  wou ld  

come to  the  board  w i th  less  than 24-hours  and see in  wh ich  

way the  board  w i l l  make a  dec is ion .  

 I  was not  comfo r tab le  w i th  tha t  and I  requested  10 

tha t  an  IFC be  ho ld  wh ich  obv ious ly  was not  he ld  

a f te rwards and Dr  Pat  answered the  quest ions tha t  I  had.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Ta lk ing  about  the  request  fo r  

IFC.   What  we see f rom the  documenta t ion  p rov ided  to  the 

commiss ion  by  the  w i tnesses,  i s  tha t  the  member  o f  the 

board  who had requested,  a t  leas t  made a  request  fo r  the  

mat te r  to  go  to  IFC,  was Ms  Vi rosh in i  Na idoo in  an  emai l  

rep l y  to  Ms Dan ie ls .  

 We do not  see any o the r  member  request ing  tha t  

the  mat te r  be  re fer red  to  IFC.   Your  comment  on  tha t?  20 

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rpe rson. . .   Yes,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  comment .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS KLEIN:    I  responded by  way o f  a  Whatsapp  s igned  

document  then sub jec t  to  IFC and I  sent  tha t .   I  th ink  

counse l  sent  tha t  to  you,  yes te rday or  the  day be fore .   
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Mine  was underway over  Whatsapp because o f  the  urgency 

o f  th is .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  have  not  persona l l y  rece ived  

tha t  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    You have not?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    . . . you  cou ld  send i t  to  the 

invest iga to rs .  

MS KLEIN:    I t  was sent  –  i t  was sent  to  the  invest iga tors  

Cha i rperson.   I t  was sent  two days ago.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Two days ago?  10 

MS KLEIN:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay I  w i l l  ask  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    [ Ind is t inc t  –  d is to r t ion ] ,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So .   But  then le t  us  go  fu r ther  in  o rder  

to  answer  the  quest ion  now.   Wha t  d id  you unders tand was 

the  prepayment  made –  fo r  wh ich  en t i t y  was tha t  

p repayment  mean t  fo r?  

MS KLEIN:    My unders tand ing  was a lways tha t  i t  was  

meant  fo r  OCH who was in  bus iness rescue and was  

engag ing  w i th  whoever  bu t  my unders tand ing  was tha t  the  20 

prepayment  o f  R 1 .68  b i l l i on  was fo r  OCH.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.  

MS KLEIN:    And so  in  the  documents  says  fo r  the  

l iqu ida t ing  o f  the i r  debt .   So tha t  was a lways my 

unders tand ing ,  OCH.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  so  by  OCH,  you mean the  

company tha t  was owned by  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    Cor rec t .   OCM.   I  am sor ry.   OCM.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   That  means the  

company owned by G lencore?  

MS KLEIN:    That  was my unders tand ing  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So tha t  means –  I  mean 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  was not  there  an  OCH be ing  the  

ho ld ing  company  a t  G lencore /OCM?  Was there  no t  a  10 

ho ld ing  company ca l led  OCH? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So you are  no t  necessar i l y  wrong  

Ms K le in .  

MS KLEIN:    Thank you,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   So by  tha t  unders tand ing ,  jus t  

conf i rm to  the  Cha i rperson.   Tha t  means the  prepayment  20 

was not  meant  fo r  Tegeta?  

MS KLEIN:    Not  accord ing  to  what  I  read back and  

unders tood.   Yes,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   And what  made you unders tand  

tha t  the  prepayment  was mean t  fo r  OCM owned by 
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G lencore  and not  Tegeta?  

MS KLEIN:    Because when I  looked a t  the  wr i te r,  i t  

ac tua l l y  sa id  p re -pu rchase o f  coa l  to  OCM.   That  i s  what  

made me unders tand tha t  tha t  i s  where  the  money was 

supposed to  go  to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  was go ing  to  say Mr  Se leka,  

p lease ask  the  quest ion  much d i rec t l y  because we know 

what  the  who le  i ssues is  about .   Ms K le in ,  I  do  no t  know 

whethe r  you might  have l i s tened  when o r  watched when 

Dr  Na idoo was g iv ing  ev idence?  D id  you?  You d id?  10 

MS KLEIN:    Yes,  I  d id  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   So you know the  contex t .  

MS KLEIN:    Yes,  I  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The Execut ive  summary or  submiss ion  

tha t  was p laced befo re  the  board  made i t  c lear  in  

parag raph 2 .1 .2  tha t  the  board  was be ing  asked to  

au thor ise  th ree  o f f i c ia ls  o f  Eskom.  

MS KLEIN:    H ’m? 

CHAIRPERSON:    The Group CEO,  Group Execut ive  fo r  

Genera t ion  and Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i cer  to  negot ia te  and  20 

conc lude a  pre-purchase o f  coa l  agreement  w i th  the  

proposed owners  o f  OCM,  tha t  i s  coa l  supp l ie r.   You accept  

–  do  you know tha t  the  proposed owners  o f  OCM were  

Tegeta?  

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rperson,  a t  tha t  t ime I  was not  look ing  a t  
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who the  proposed owners  were .   I  cannot  a rgue the  words 

away as  you co r rec t l y  say  bu t  bear  in  m ind tha t  th is  

o rgan isa t ion  or  th is  opera t ion  was in  bus iness rescue.   So 

I  d id  no t  know . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry.   Jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    . . .who negot ia te  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry.   Jus t  repeat  the  sentence 

w i th  wh ich  you s tar ted ,  bear  in  m ind. . .  

MS KLEIN:    Okay.   I  can  ta lk  about  my unders tand ing  a t  

the  t ime.   And tha t  i s ,  tha t  th is  was an opera t ion  in  10 

bus iness recue.   I  d id  no t  know who the  Bus iness Rescue 

Pract i t ioners  were  ta lk ing  to  o r  who were  the  proposed  

owners  o r  no t .    

 The way i t  was presented to  me by management  

was tha t  i t  was w i th  the  OCM or  OCH.   That  i s  what  was my  

unders tand ing  r igh t  th rough the  t ransact ion  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you a t  tha t  t ime read th is  Execut ive  

summary?  

MS KLEIN:    I  obv ious l y  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MS KLEIN:    Bu t  f rom a  pe rspect ive . . .    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS KLEIN:    Sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MS KLEIN:    From a  perspect ive  o f ,  we are  dea l ing  w i th  an  
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ope ra t ion  in  bus iness rescue.   We are  dea l ing  w i th  a  group 

tha t  needs money  to  l iqu ida te  the i r  debt .   So I  was not . . .   I  

must  admi t ,  I  was not  look ing  a t  p roposed owners  a t  a l l .   

My unders tand ing  was a lways,  I  am dea l ing  w i th  OCH.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  are  you ab le  to  say,  as  d id  

Dr  Na idoo,  you d id  see the  parag raph,  tha t  i s  2 .1 .2 ,  and 

you d id  no t ice  tha t  i t  sa id  the  agreement  was  to  be  

conc luded w i th  the  proposed  owners  o f  OCM but  10 

never the less  you unders tood the  issue d i f fe ren t ly.  

 Or  i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  you d id  no t  take  note  o f  the  

fac t  tha t  parag raph 2 .1 .2  sought  your  au tho r isa t ion  as the  

board  tha t  the  th ree  Eskom of f i c ia ls  shou ld  conc lude an 

agreement ,  no t  w i th  the  owners  o f  OCM at  the  t ime but  w i th  

the  proposed owners .    

 So I  jus t  want  to  es tab l i sh  whether  you d id  see i t  

l i ke  Dr  Na idoo bu t  thought  in  a  cer ta in  way o r  whether  you 

read i t  bu t  you d id  no t  take  note  o f  what  was be ing  sa id  

here?  20 

MS KLEIN:    Ja .   Cha i rperson,  le t  me s tar t  by  say ing  the  

parag raph tha t  you have re fe r red  to  g iv ing  the  Execut ive  

the  r igh t  to  do  what  they needed to  execute .   That  wou ld  

be  s tandard  in  every  reso lu t ion  because obv ious ly  board  

members  are  no t  opera t ion .    
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 Bu t  hav ing  sa id  t ha t ,  my unders tand ing  a lways has  

been th is  i s  a  company in  d is t ress .   There  is  a  Bus iness 

Rescue Pract i t ione r.   They are  in te rac t ing  w i th  var ious  

peop le .  

 So accord ing  to  me,  my unders tand ing  was a lways  

tha t  I  am s ing ing  o f f  R  1 .68  b i l l i on  to  OCM/OCH.   I  never  –  

I  must  say,  you ask  me now i f  I  see  i t?   I  p robab ly  d id  see 

i t  bu t  I  d id  no t  th ink  anyth ing  o f  i t  because i t  i s  a  company  

in  bus iness rescue where  the  prac t i t ioners  wou ld  need to  

engage w i th  a  who le  range o f  peop le .  10 

 So i f  I  shou ld  have taken in te res ted  in to  i t  because  

tha t  i s  what  you are  ask ing  me,  then maybe I  shou ld  have  

but  I  a lways,  in  my head i t  has  been c lea r,  i t  has  been  

OCH.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  as  I  sa id  to  Dr  Na idoo.   What  

t roub les  me is  tha t  as  a  member  o f  the  board  you a re  be ing  

asked to  au thor i se  qu i te  a  la rge  – a  payment  o f  a  la rge  

amount  o f  money f rom Eskom and the  document  be ing  

prov ided to  you  as  the  board  by  management  makes i t  

qu i te  c lear  tha t  what  they are  ask ing  you to  au thor ise  is  20 

the  conc lus ion  o f  p re-purchase  o f  coa l  ag reement  w i th  

peop le  who are  no t  ye t  owners  o f  OCM.  

 But  i t  looks  l i ke  e i ther  the  who le  board  saw tha t  

bu t  d id  no t  apprec ia te  o r  d id  no t  no te  i t s  s ign i f i cance or  

maybe some d id  no t  read i t  bu t  you sa id  you p robab ly  read  
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i t  bu t  you probab ly  d id  no t  unders tand.    

 And you must  te l l  me i f  I  am put t ing  words in  your  

mouth .   Unders tand i t s  s ign i f i cance.   Am I  cor rec t  tha t  tha t  

i s  the  e f fec t  o f  what  you are  say ing?  

MS KLEIN:    Yes.   Cha i rperson,  a l l  I  can  say to  you is .   

You know,  w i th  the  benef i t  o f  h inds igh t ,  I  f ind  tha t  the  

word ing  was ac tua l l y  qu i te  c lumsy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS KLEIN:    And I  a lways th ink  tha t  management  

purpose ly  pu t t ing  words there  because they were  par t  o f  10 

the  IFC when the  quest ions were  be ing  asked and be ing  

de l ibe ra ted  and never. . .  

 I  mean,  tha t  docket  packs sa id  th is  morn ing .   We 

spoke about  why  d id  th is  happen ,  why was i t  necessary.   

Nowhere  in  tha t  d iscuss ion  d id  any o f  the  management  say  

to  us :   Guys,  do  no t  fo rge t  tha t  th is  i s  go ing  to  a  d i f fe ren t  

person than OCH.   I  mean,  you can see accord ing  to  the  

m inutes  tha t  tha t  was not  d i scussed.  

 So i f  you  are  say ing  to  me I  shou ld  have pa id  more  

a t ten t ion  to  i t ,  the  ac tua l  word ing . . .   I  do  no t  want  to  sound 20 

l i ke  a  pop-up because as  a  board  member,  I  take  

respons ib i l i t y  fo r  the  dec is ions tha t  we make.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS KLEIN:    Bu t  Cha i rperson,  my unders tand ing  a lways 

was.   A company in  d is t ress ,  in  need o f  money,  the  need o f  
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money u rgent ly.   And tha t  i s  why  we s igned i t  w i th in  less  

than 24-hours .   Nowhere  in  the  de l ibe ra t ion  was i t  about  

no t  go ing  to  ever  to  OCH.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you see,  as  I  see i t ,  i t  may we l l  be  

tha t  the  who le  idea f rom management  tha t  they shou ld  ask  

the  board  to  au thor ise  tha t  p re-pu rchase o f  coa l  agreement  

be  conc luded w i th  the  proposed  owners  o f  OCM was a  

wrong idea,  was  a  bad idea and  maybe much more  than 

tha t .  

 But  i t  does not  seem to  me tha t  the  board  can  10 

cr i t i c i se  management  fo r  hav ing  mis lead them on tha t  po in t  

because they pu t  i t  here .  

 They d id  no t  say  owners  o f  OCM.   They sa id  

proposed owners .   And th is  was a  board ,  some o f  whose 

members  are  qu i t e  we l l -qua l i f ied  w i th  h igh  qua l i f i ca t ions.  

 And i t  i s  jus t  d i f f i cu l t  to  unders tand how i t  i s  

poss ib le  tha t  so  many peop le  on  the  board  d id  no t  p ick  th is  

up  because. . .   I  mean,  you say Ms K le in  tha t  paragraph is  

a  s tandard  paragraph in  your  submiss ion .    

 That  I  unders tand because these th ings are  based  20 

on a  cer ta in  templa te  or  fo rmat  tha t  you know tha t  i f  they  

p lace a  submiss ion  l i ke  th i s  be fo re  you,  paragraph 1  i s  

about  what  the  who le  i ssues is  about ,  parag raph 2  

reso lu t ion .   Then they spec i fy.  

 But  I  want  to  suggest  to  you tha t  tha t  par t  wh ich  
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says  reso lu t ion  requ i red ,  and tha t  i s  where  parag raph 2 .1 .2  

fa l l s  under,  tha t  must  be  one o f  the  most  impor tan t  par t s  in  

th is  document  tha t  board  members  must  look  a t  because 

they know they have been asked to  au thor ise  someth ing .  

 So the  f i rs t  th ing  they must  unders tand is .   What  

a re  we be ing  asked to  au thor i se?  And i f  i t  i s  payment ,  

there  a re  cer ta in  per t inent  quest ions they must  look  fo r  

when they look fo r  answers  fo r  in  th is  document .  

 One,  what  i s  the  payment  fo r?   Two,  who is  i t  to  be  

made to  –  who is  to  be  made to?   Why?  What  a re  the  10 

reasons?  What  i s  the  jus t i f i ca t ion?   

 And the  la rger  the  amount  tha t  i s  ta lked about ,  the  

h igher  the  ob l iga t ion  on  the  board  or  members  o f  the  board  

to  scru t in i se  the  document  p roper ly.   Would  you no t  agree  

w i th  me on a l l  o f  these propos i t ions?  

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rperson,  I  comple te l y  ag ree w i th  you 

except  fo r  the  one po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MS KLEIN:    That  who is  i t  made,  who is  i t  made to?  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 20 

MS KLEIN:    The  who is  i t  made to  pa r t ,  i s  the  par t  wh ich  

is  qu i te  coming fo r  me in  te rms o f  the  word ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MS KLEIN:    Remember  we as  a  board  now know about  

OCH be ing  in  bus iness rescue.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS KLEIN:    We a lso  know now tha t  they a re  engag ing  w i th  

a  who le  range o f  peop le  we do not  know who.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MS KLEIN:    So  my unders tand ing ,  wh ich  is  why I  was –  I  

rea l l y  wanted . . . [ ind is t inc t  -  d i s to r ted ] .   I s  th is  someth ing  

tha t  wou ld  typ ica l l y  happen?  I s  th is  someth ing  tha t  cou ld  

happen?  And I  am not  sa t is f ied  there  was.   The who i t  was 

made to ,  in  my mind –  I  cannot  ta lk  fo r  anybody e lse  –  

bus iness rescuers  typ ica l l y  wou ld  go  out  and dea l  w i th  a 10 

who le  range o f  peop le ,  so  I  d idn ’ t  see tha t  as  be ing  

s t range a t  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    So  you ’ re  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you wou ld  agree,  wou ld  you not ,  tha t  

i f  you  are  a  member  o f  a  Board ,  o f  the  Board  o f  an  en t i t y  

such as  Eskom and you a re  au tho r ised to ,  you are  asked to  

au thor ise  such a  ser ious,  such a  b ig  amount  to  be  pa id ,  

one o f  you r  du t ies  i s  to  make su re  tha t  you on ly  au thor ise  

payment  o f  th is  amount  to  the  r igh t  person,  because i f  you  20 

author ise  payment  to  a  wrong par ty  tha t  wou ld  be  very  

ser ious,  i s  i t  no t?    So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    I  to ta l l y  ag ree w i th  you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  what  I  am suggest ing  to  you wh ich  

wou ld  app ly  to  a l l  the  board  members  i s  there  p robab ly  was  
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a  fa i lu re  on  the  par t  o f  the  board  to  do  i t s  job  p roper ly  i f  i t  

au thor ised payment  to  an  en t i t y  tha t  i f  they  agreed to  a 

request  fo r  au thor isa t ion  to  an  en t i t y  –  to  one ent i t y  bu t  

they thought  they were  au tho r is ing  payment  to  another  

en t i t y  and ye t  the re  was a  document  in  f ron t  o f  them te l l ing  

them exact ly  the  en t i t y  tha t  the  execut ive  management ,  the 

management ,  wanted to  be  pa id  the  money.   Would  you not  

concede tha t?  

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rperson,  I  comp le te ly  concede w i th  what  

you have sa id .   I  jus t  want  to  add tha t  f rom my pe rspect ive  10 

–  and i t  i s  no t  a  de fence,  th is  i s  where  my mind is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS KLEIN:    That  i s  a l l  I  can  ta lk  –  I  cannot  ta lk  fo r  the  

o ther  board  members .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  I  accep t  tha t .  

MS KLEIN:    We have got  a  company in  d is t ress  in  

bus iness rescue.   My unders tand ing  w i th  tha t  means tha t  

the  bus iness rescue prac t i t ione r  i s  in te rac t ing  w i th  ou r  

o rgan isa t ion .   What  they have go t  and who they a re  do ing  

tha t  w i th  i s  no t  who I  –  I  do  no t  know because tha t  i s  no t  20 

what  has been put  in  f ron t  o f  me.   Which  is  –  I  go  back to  

the  word ing ,  I  concede w i th  what  you say,  I  do  concede,  

the  po in t  I  am mak ing  is ,  in  my mind,  I  do  no t  know who  

those peop le  are  and i f  I  cou ld  have asked more  quest ions  

a t  the  t ime because what  I  know now,  I  wou ld  never  have 
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agreed(? ) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  you see,  what  I  wou ld  suggest  i s  

tha t  i f  you  –  you needed to  make sure  tha t  you author i sed 

the  r igh t  en t i t y  to  be  pa id  and I  suggest  tha t  read ing  th is  

parag raph 2 .1 .2 ,  once you saw tha t  i t  was say ing  the  

payment  must  be  to  the  p roposed owners ,  I  th ink  the  

immedia te  quest ion  shou ld  have been why pay to  p roposed  

owners  and not  to  cur ren t  owners  and tha t  i s  when you  

shou ld  have asked management  p lease c la r i f y  th is ,  why are  

you say ing  we must  au thor i se  payment  to  p roposed  owners  10 

and not  to  cur ren t  owners?   And then i f  they  gave you an  

exp lanat ion  wh ich  you thought  was va l id ,  i t  i s  one th ing ,  i f  

they  d id  no t  g ive  you an exp lanat ion  tha t  was sa t is fac tory,  

you may have re fused and sa id  we l l ,  I  am on ly  p repared to  

au thor ise  payment  to  cur ren t  owners ,  so  th is  wou ld  have to 

be  changed.   Do you unders tand tha t?  

MS KLEIN:    I  hea r  you,  Cha i rperson,  and l i ke  I  sa id ,  I  

concede w i th  your  pos i t ion .   I ,  l ike  I  sa id ,  cannot  answer  

fo r  anybody e lse .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

MS KLEIN:    I  can  jus t  ta lk  fo r  myse l f  and my pos i t ion  

then.   I f  th is  was not  a  bus iness  rescue t ransact ion  then  

tha t  wou ld  have been a  very  –  then I  wou ld  immedia te ly  

have [ ind i s t inc t ] .   I  guess f rom my pe rspect ive ,  so  what  I  

unders tood i t  a t  the  t ime was tha t  because they are  in  
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bus iness rescue they are  ta lk ing  to  a  who le  lo t  o f  peop le  

and maybe th is  i s  okay.   So I  cannot  a rgue w i th  what  you  

are  say ing ,  Cha i rpe rson,  o ther  than tha t  was my pos i t ion  

fo r  suppor t ing  i t  u l t imate ly  wh ich  obv ious ly  now I  know was  

wrong.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS KLEIN:    I  w ish  I  knew then what  I  know now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Ms K le in ,  ta lk ing  o f  

a  company in  d i s t ress ,  what  i s  a l so  maybe o f  cons idera t ion  10 

fo r  you to  comment  on  is  the  fac t  t ha t  e igh t  months  be fore  

in  Apr i l  2015 th i s  very  company had ind i ca ted  tha t  i t  i s  in  

d is t ress  and i t  had dec la red a  hardsh ip  or  invoked the  

hardsh ip  c lause seek ing  to  ge t  Eskom to  increase the  pr ice  

o f  coa l ,  no t  on  a  prepayment  bas is ,  bu t  on  a  month l y  bas is .   

So increase the  pr ice  o f  coa l  f rom R150 pe r  ton  per  month 

to  I  th ink  what  I  have seen f rom the  a f f idav i t s  to  R442 pe r  

ton  and th is  i s  p r io r  to  i t  go ing  in to  bus iness rescue.   

Cou ld  the  same sent iment  no t  have app l ied  e igh t  months  

be fore  wh ich  you say app l ied  now in  December  2015 20 

because the  company i s  the  same inso far  as  the  board  is  

concerned?  

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rperson,  l i ke  I  sa id  to  you,  I  th ink  –  I  

heard  your  quest ion  and I  reckon  i t  p robab ly  wou ld  have,  

the  same sent iments  wou ld  have app l ied  bu t  remember  a t  
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the  t ime when tha t  came to  us ,  i t  was not  seen as  a  mat te r  

o f  u rgency we were  to ld  tha t  th is  cont rac t  runs un t i l  2018 

and my unders tand ing  was i f  th is  was rea l l y  a  case  o f ,  you 

know,  they can go out  o f  bus iness tomorrow,  ou t  o f  –  ja ,  

tomorrow,  tha t  we wou ld  have –  tha t  I  cer ta in l y  wou ld  have  

pa id  more  a t ten t ion  to  i t .   A t  the  t ime there  was not  as  

much o f  a  rush to  s ign  anyth ing  o f f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Was the  management  –  d id  the  board  or  

anybody on the  board  ever  ask  management  wha t  was so  

urgent  about  th is ,  why was i t  no t  b rought  to  the  board  10 

ear l ie r?  

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rperson,  to  respond to  you,  tha t  was the  

reason –  I  canno t  ta lk  fo r  Ms Na idoo but  I  can ta lk  fo r  me 

f ind ing  sub jec t  to  IFC approva l ,  I  needed to  unders tand,  

you know,  i s  th is  a  done th ing?  Th is  i s  a  lo t  o f  money they 

are  want ing  us  to  commi t  to ,  why do we need to  do  i t  

immedia te ly  and I  say  Dr  [ ind is t inc t ]  gave me comfo r t  in  h is  

exp lanat ion  based on h i s  many years  o f  work ing  fo r  Eskom 

and knowing the  organ isa t ion  be t te r  than anyone e l se .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  what  i s  the  answer  to  my quest ion ,  20 

is  i t  tha t  members  o f  the  board  d id  ask  th i s  quest ion  o f  the  

execut ive  and i f  so ,  what  answer  d id  the  execut ive  g ive  as 

to  why they d id  no t  b r ing  th is  i ssue to  the  board  ea r l ie r?  

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rperson,  I  cannot  answer  tha t  for  you,  I  

cannot  te l l  you  fo r  sure  tha t  tha t  i s  the  quest ion  tha t  was  
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asked o f  the  execut ive .   I  remember  request ing  an  IFC and 

I  hear  another  board  member  a l so  d id  and tha t  was -  you 

know,  was d iscussed as  per  the  m inutes .   I  do  no t  

remember  ask ing  execut ives  why th is  was such an  urgent  

th ing .   I  wanted to  hear  tha t  f rom a  fo l low board  member  

who had worked a t  Eskom and unders tood the  runn ing  and  

mechan ics  o f  Eskom bet te r  than ce r ta in ly  than I  d id .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Yes,  indeed,  tha t  quest ion  is  very  

s ign i f i can t ,  Ms K le in ,  because when you look  a t  the 

t ime l ines the  company,  OCM,  went  in to  bus iness rescue in  10 

August  2015 and  th is  i s  be fore  the  repor t  tha t  was  tab led  

by  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  –  Act ing  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Of f i cer  a t  

the  meet ing  o f  the  10  September  2015.   So i f  there  was  

anyth ing  urgent ,  by  v i r tue  o f  go ing  in to  bus iness rescue,  

tha t  u rgency wou ld  have a rose a t  tha t  ear l y  s tage.  

MS KLEIN:    I  hear  you,  Cha i rpe rson,  I  rea l l y  –  I  cannot  

rea l l y  comment  on  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes because i t  seems to  be  g i ven as  a  

reason.   I f  you  read pa ragraph 2 .2 .1  o f  the  submiss ion  

document  on  page 281,  Eskom bund le  (8 )  A ,  i t  says :  20 

“Eskom faces a  supp ly  r i sk  o f  coa l  to  the  Hendr ina  

power  s ta t ion  o f  5 .5  Mtpa by  OCM as a  resu l t  o f  

bus iness rescue proceed ings. ”   

But  by  th is  t ime bus iness rescue had long s ta r ted  in  August  

a l ready.  But  …[ in tervenes]  
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MS KLEIN:    L ike  you po in ted  –  so r ry,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  go  ahead.  

MS KLEIN:    I  sa id  l i ke  you cor rec t l y  po in ted  out ,  a t  tha t  

t ime i t  was not  top  o f  m ind fo r  me.   I  had been in  a  board  

meet ing  in  Apr i l  where  i t  was b rought  in  fo r  d i scuss ion ,  i t  

was re fer red  back to  the  CEO.   As you have cor rec t l y  

po in ted  out  i t  was not  even presented,  i t  was taken as  

read,  so  th is  was not  top  o f  m ind fo r  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS KLEIN:    That  th is  was someth ing  tha t  i s  in  bus iness  10 

rescue unt i l  i t  a r r i ved on the  1s t  –  o r  sor ry,  the  da te  in  

December.   So,  you know,  i t  i s  no t  someth ing  tha t  I  cou ld  

have argued a t  the  t ime because  i t  was not  top  o f  m ind.   

So you say to  me  now i t  shou ld  have been mind,  the  rea l i t y  

now,  now I  rea l i se  i t  shou ld  have been but  i t  was not  a t  

tha t  s tage.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  be fore  you proceed,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  know whethe r  the  summary o f  20 

fac ts  wh ich  is  on  page 282 was go ing  to  dea l  w i th  th is  bu t  I  

am look ing  a t  2 .2 ,  the  execut ive  summary and conc lus ion .   

That  po in t  made in  paragraph 2 .2 .1  does not  te l l  the  board  

the  degree o f  u rgency,  i t  says :  

“Eskom faces a  supp ly  r i sk  o f  coa l  to  the  Hendr ina  
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power  s ta t ion  o f  5 .5  Mtpa by  OCM as a  resu l t  o f  

bus iness rescue proceed ings. ”  

I t  does not  say  i f  you  do not  approve today,  in  a  week ’s  

t ime there  w i l l  be  no  coa l .   I t  does  not  say  whether  th is  i s  

someth ing  tha t  i s  go ing  to  happen in  th ree  months  t ime,  in  

two months  t ime.   You unders tand,  Ms K le in?  

MS KLEIN:    I  heard  you,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Wel l ,  Mr  Se leka,  you migh t  know 

whethe r  th is  i ssue o f  the  leve l  o f  u rgency is  dea l t  w i th  as  

we l l  in  the  execut ive  summary.  10 

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rpe rson,  can I  maybe respond.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS KLEIN:    I  am sor ry,  advocate ,  can I  maybe respond? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MS KLEIN:    I  unders tand tha t  we are  s i t t ing  in  an 

organ isa t ion  wh ich  was in  d i re  s t ra i t s  jus t  months  be fore  

tha t  w i th  load shedd ing .   We are  be ing  gu ided by  

execut ives ,  when  they say to  you they need someth ing  

s igned tomorrow,  I  mean,  i t  i s  no t  fo r  me as  a  board  

member  to  come and say bu t  ho ld  on ,  guys,  you know,  we 20 

are  no t  go ing  to  s ign  th is .   I  mean ,  u rgency was someth ing  

tha t  I  took  very,  very  ser ious ly.   I f  management  comes and 

says someth ing  is  u rgent ,  then i t  i s  u rgent ,  wh ich  is  why I  

ca l led  –  phoned  the  IFC and as  you cor rec t l y  say,  you  

know,  Ms Na idoo  a lso  wro te  abou t  tha t ,  and I  wan ted an  
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exp lanat ion  be fore  I  s igned,  Dr  Na idoo,  you ’ re  work ing  fo r  

th is  o rgan isa t ion  fo r  more  than 30  years ,  te l l  me what  th is  

i s  what  we a re  s ign ing .   Why is  th i s  u rgent?    

So,  Cha i rpe rson,  I  am not  sure  i f  tha t  tha t  answers  

your  quest ion  about  the  fac t  tha t  he  d id  no t  say  i t  was  

urgent ,  I  was gu ided by  the  fac t  tha t  I  am asked to  s ign  fo r  

someth ing  w i th in  less  than 24 hours  and tha t  i s  wha t  I  was 

respond ing  to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  you see,  my –  what  I  have an issue 

w i th  in  te rms o f  what  have sa id ,  i s  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you  10 

may be say ing  i f  management  says i t  i s  u rgent  then I  take  

i t  i t  i s  u rgent .   I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  I  th ink  tha t  as 

a  board  member  you must  sa t is fy  yourse l f  tha t  i t  i s  indeed  

urgent .   So i f  management  says th is  i s  u rgent ,  you say why 

is  i t  u rgent?    They g ive  you an  exp lanat ion ,  i f  you  are  

persuaded i t  i s  u rgent  tha t  i s  f ine  espec ia l l y  i f  i t  i s  

someth ing  in  respect  o f  wh ich  you wou ld  have l i ked  to  have  

more  t ime to  re f lec t  l i ke  au thor i s ing  payment  o f  such a  

la rge  amount  o f  money,  1 ,6  b i l l i on .    

So i f  they  cannot  sa t is fy  tha t  i t  i s  so  urgent  tha t  i t  20 

has go t  to  be  s igned today,  i t  can  be s igned in  a  week ’s  

t ime,  you might  say  we l l ,  you  know,  a  few days w i l l  he lp  me 

to  make up my mind proper ly  on  the  submiss ion ,  so  why 

are  you say ing  we must  meet  today a t  whatever  t ime.   You 

unders tand what  I  mean?  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  jus t  because  
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management  says i t  i s  u rgent  then board  members  must  

no t  quest ion ,  they must  take  i t  i t  must  be  urgen t .   You 

unders tand tha t?  

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rperson,  I  hear  you comple te l y,  I  jus t  

want  to  pu t  i t  on  record  tha t  I  cons idered i t  to  be  urgent  

a f te r  hear ing  f rom somebody who  works  a t  Eskom for  30  

years .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS KLEIN:    That  th is  was… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

MS KLEIN:    Bu t  I  hear  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS KLEIN:    I  shou ld  have maybe asked more  quest ions,   

bu t  –  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  course ,  o f  course  he d id  no t  te l l  you  

the  leve l  o f  u rgency,  d id  he?  He d id  no t  say  i f  i t  s  no t  done 

w i th in  –  i f  i t  i s  no t  done today th is  i s  what  i s  go ing  to  

happen tomorrow or  in  a  week ’s  t ime or  anyth ing  l i ke  tha t ,  20 

he  d id  no t  te l l  you  tha t .  

MS KLEIN:    No,  no ,  he  d id  no t ,  Cha i rperson,  bu t  I  –  le t  me 

put  to  you,  and maybe incor rec t ly  so ,  the  mere  fac t  tha t  the  

ISP was ar ranged so  urgent ly  gave me comfo r t  tha t  th is  

th ing  is  what  i t  sa id  i t  was and maybe,  you know,  a  lo t  o f  
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what  i s  coming today,  one s tands  back and say,  you know,  

I  shou ld  have asked more  and I  shou ld  have done.   Jus t  a  

p i t y  I  d id  no t  know more  a t  tha t  s tage about  what  was 

rea l l y  happen ing ,  c lear l y  beh ind  the  scene.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  thank you.   Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   The c losest ,  Cha i r,  

one comes to  in  regard  to  u rgenc ies  on  page 284,  under  

parag raph 3 .6 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The degree o f  u rgency,  i f  there  i s  10 

anyth ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  reads:  

“R isks  and o the r  cons idera t ions. ”  

The paragraph there  says:  

“The r i sk  ident i f ied  a t  th is  s tage re la te  to  secur i t y  o f  

supp ly  be ing  compromised,  regu la tory  approva ls  no t  

t imeous ly  ob ta ined and tha t  the re  wou ld  be  no  

cont rac t  in  p lace  by  end December  2016. ”  

Ja .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And th is  was on the  9  December.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Th i s  i s  on  –wel l ,  the  submiss ion  is  

da ted  the  8 t h .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    G iven to  the  board  to  make a  dec i s ion  

on  the  9  December  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  mean,  another  day –  i f  members  

o f  the  board  wan ted another  day to  re f lec t  p roper ly  wou ld  

no t  have made a  b ig  d i f fe rence.   Okay,  a l r igh t .  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t ,  Cha i r  –  Ms K le in ,  I  do  no t  know 

whethe r  you are  aware  o f  th is ,  the  fac ts  on  the  o ther  s ide  

on  OCM’s  par t  i s  tha t  they were  engag ing  w i th  Mr  Koko and  

by  th is  t ime,  when he wr i tes  th is  document  to  the  board ,  he 10 

had been adv ised on the  24  November  and on the  1  

December  2015 tha t  G lencore  has taken a  reso lu t ion  to  

take  OCM out  o f  bus iness rescue and i t  w i l l  p rov ide  

fund ing  to  OCM and OCM wi l l  honour  the i r  agreement  as  i t  

then ex is ted  to  the  end o f  tha t  agreement ,  December  2018.   

D id  you know about  tha t?  

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rperson,  i f  I  knew about  tha t  I  wou ld  no t  

have s igned th is .   I  was not  aware  o f  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And in  fac t  when you read the  a f f idav i t  

o f  the  lega l  representa t i ves  o f  Eskom who adv ised  Eskom 20 

on these t ransact ions be tween OCM and Eskom i t se l f ,  tha t  

i s  CDH,  they say  in  the i r  a f f idav i t  tha t  OCM cont inued to  

supp ly  coa l  to  Eskom f rom August  2015 and they pu t  i t  to  

Ju l y  2016.   I t  may we l l  be  tha t  i t  is  shor te r  than tha t ,  Apr i l  

2016,  because a f te r  Apr i l  Tegeta  takes over  bu t  the  per iod  
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in  December,  in  January,  February,  March is  covered by  

OCM supp ly ing  coa l  to  Eskom.   D id  you know tha t?  

MS KLEIN:    No,  Cha i rperson,  I  wou ld  on l y  have rece ived 

the  in fo rmat ion  as  per  the  board  packs,  nobody ever  

d iscussed i t  w i th  me.   Maybe –  I  do  no t  know,  maybe your  

BTC members  wou ld  have been warned,  you know,  I  cannot  

respond tha t ,  I  [ ind is t inc t ]  o f  tha t  inc lud ing  the  lega l  

op in ion  wh ich  obv ious l y  d id  no t  come to  me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   Then the  next  day,  the  10  

December,  there  is  –  a  prepayment  reso lu t ion  is  used to  10 

ob ta in  –  I  mean ,  to  do  a  convers ion  to  a  guarantee,  a  

guarantee o f  the  same amount  bu t  no t  to  OCM,  guarantee  

to  be  issued in  favour  o f  Tegeta ,  the  very  next  day  on  the  

10  December  2015.   Was the  board  aware  o f  tha t?  

MS KLEIN:    Cer ta in ly  no t ,  Cha i rperson,  i t  has  a l l  become 

par t  o f ,  you know,  the  invest iga t ions and th ings bu t  the  

board  –  we l l ,  I  cannot  ta l k  fo r  the  board ,  I  cer ta in l y  was not  

aware .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you and/or  the  board  make any  

fo l low-up in  regard  to  the  dec is ion  tha t  was made on the  9  20 

December  2015 and,  by  the  way,  th is  was dec is ion  made by  

way o f  a  round rob in ,  the  board  d idn ’ t  meet  to  d i scuss and  

ask quest ions.   D id  you make a  fo l low-up?  We have made  

a  R1 b i l l i on  dec i s ion ,  over  a  b i l l i on  rand dec is ion ,  what  i s  

go ing  on?  I s  OCM out  o f  bus iness  rescue?  Are  we get t ing  
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supp ly,  have we avo ided load shedd ing?  Those quest ions  

to  the  execut ives .   Were  they asked?  

MS KLEIN:    Cer ta in ly  no t  and jus t  so  tha t  –  jus t  to  remind  

you tha t  load shedd ing  had s topped,  i f  I  remember  

cor rec t l y,  e i ther  August  o r  September  o f  tha t  yea r.   So we 

wou ld  no t  –  I  mean,  once someth ing  l i ke  tha t  –  and we  

cou ld  say in  te rms o f  quantum,  i t  i s  huge,  wh ich  i t  i s ,  bu t  

remember,  we a re  ta lk ing  about  a  company w i th  R175 

b i l l i on  tu rnover,  we were  brought  a  lo t  o f  b ig  t ransact ions 

to  s ign  and once i t  was s igned  o f f  i t  wou ld  have been 10 

ra t i f ied  –  obv ious ly,  the  reso lu t ion  wou ld  be  ra t i f ied  a t  the  

next  board  meet ing  bu t  we had  been rapped over  the  

knuck les  how many t imes fo r  becoming opera t iona l .   So to  

answer  the  ques t ion ,  I  wou ld  no t  have gone back and 

asked.   I  sa t i s f ied  myse l f  a t  the  t ime,  r igh t fu l l y  o r  

wrongfu l l y  so ,  tha t  tha t  was what  was requ i red  fo r  the  

bus iness bu t  I  wou ld  cer ta in l y  no t  have gone and  done a  

fo l low-up,  there  was jus t  too  much go ing  on.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    What  do  you say about  –  because the  

peop le  we see invo lved in  the  guarantee on the  s ide  o f  20 

Eskom is  Mr  Ano j  S ingh,  Ms Caro l i ne  Henry,  who prepared 

the  submiss ion ,  is  Ms Suzanne Dan ie l s  who u l t imate ly  pu t  

together  th is  guarantee,  ge t  i t  to  the  bank,  the  bank issues  

a  guarantee in  favour  o f  Tegeta  and then the  under l y ing  

agreement  i s  s igned fo r  the  p re -purchase o f  coa l  by  Mr 
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Ano j  S ingh.   And jus t  be fore  I  ask  you th is  quest ion  –  

sor ry,  I  am reminded o f  someth ing ,  d id  Mr  Ano j  S ingh take  

par t  in  the  IFC meet ing ,  the  te leconference?  He d id?  

MS KLEIN:    Yes,  Cha i rpe rson,  he  was there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  he was pr ivy  to  d iscuss ions a t  IFC.   

MS KLEIN:    He was there ,  he  de f in i te ly  was.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  then he takes par t  in  the  

guarantee.   Do you have anyth ing  to  say about  tha t ,  about  

h is  conduct?  

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rperson,  a l l  I  can  say to  you,  you know,  10 

w i th  the  benef i t  o f  h inds igh t ,  I  am actua l l y  perp lexed tha t  

what  I  be l ieved  I  s igned was  someth ing  comple te l y  

d i f fe ren t .   I  wou ld  be  keen and I  ac tua l l y  [ ind i s t inc t ]  to  see  

what  the  guarantee tha t  was issued to  the  bank ac tua l l y  

looked l i ke  and how tha t  compares w i th  what  we  were  

g iven as  a  board .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Okay,  I  want  to  move on to  the  

next  po in t  in  your  a f f idav i t ,  the  nex t  and las t  po in t ,  on  page 

400.49,  Eskom bund le  2 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Be fore  you do tha t ,  i s  the  pos i t ion  no t  20 

tha t  –  and I  am ask ing  you,  Mr  Se leka,  no t  the  w i tness  

because the  w i tness m ight  no t  know.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  the  pos i t ion  no t  tha t  a round  about  

exact ly  the  t ime when the  board  was asked to  au thor i se  
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th is  p re -purchase agreement ,  to  au thor ise  prepayment  to  

Tegeta ,  namely  t hey met  on  the  9  December  2015,  i s  tha t  

no  –  was tha t  no t  the  ga te  on  wh ich  Mr  Mosebenz i  Zwane,  

who was then Min is te r  o f  Mine ra l  Resources,  was hav ing  a  

meet ing  in  Swi tzer land w i th  the  Ch ie f  Execu t ive  o f  

G lencore  where  i t  wou ld  appear  he  fac i l i ta ted  the  

conc lus ion  o f  a  dea l  be tween Glencore  and 

Tegeta /Oakbay?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The meet ing  was on the  1  December,  

Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    The meet ing  was  on the  1  December?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  the  f i rs t  meet ing  is  on  the  1  

December,  i t  i s  fo l lowed up on the  2  December.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    There  is  a  verba l  ag reement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    To  se l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    On the  10 t h … 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    The s ign i f i cance o f  the  10 t h ,  the  da te  

o f  the  10 t h  co inc ides w i th  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Be tween Tegeta  and Glencore .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Be tween Tegeta  and Glencore .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And Mr  Tony Gupta  was to  a t tend tha t  
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meet ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  do  no t  know about  h im a t tend ing  the  

meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You see,  my reco l lec t ion  i s  tha t  on  the  

day on  wh ich  Mr  Mosebenz i  Zwane met  w i th  the  Ch ie f  

Execut ive  o f  G lencore  in  Swi tzer land… 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you say tha t  was on the  1  December  

2015.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    In  tha t  meet ing  there  were  th ree  o f  them,  

Mr  Mosebenz i  Zwane,  Mr  Sa l im Essa and the  Ch ie f  

Execut ive  o f  G lencore .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  G lasenberg .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Mr  G lasenberg .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And i t  i s  tha t  meet ing  tha t  Mr  

G lasenberg  says  in  an  a f f idav i t  Mr  Sa l im Essa was  

in t roduced to  h im  as an  adv i se r  to  Min is te r  Zwane.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Min is te r  Zwane,  yes .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    And then,  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  an  

ar rangement  was  made –  I  do  no t  know whethe r  in  tha t  

meet ing  bu t  an  a r rangement  was made fo r  Mr  Tony Gupta  

to  meet  w i th  Mr  G lasenberg ,  I  do  no t  know who e l se ,  I  do 

no t  know whether  the  fo l low ing  day or  on  the  10 t h  or  
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whatever.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  tha t  i s  the  meet ing  o f  the  2n d .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   So but  i t  i s  a l l  happen ing ,  you 

know,  in  the  f i rs t  ha l f  o f  December  2015.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t ,  tha t  is  the  meet ing  o f  the  2n d .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  mean,  the  s ign ing  is  on  the  10 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON :    A f te r  the  board  had jus t  au thor i sed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  the  day the  guarantee is  i ssued.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  then the  s ign ing  happens.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    There  is  the  s ign ing  happen ing ,  

sub jec t  to  suspens ive  cond i t ions  un t i l  the  31  March 2016.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The guaran tee a lso  has suspens ive  

cond i t ions .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The date  i s  the  same.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    31  March 2016 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  the  agreement  conc luded between 20 

Tegeta  and Glencore  has a  suspens ive  c lause tha t  says 

un t i l  31  March 2016.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t ,  so  –  tha t  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And the  guaran tee tha t  i s  i ssued  on the  

10  December  back in  South  A f r i ca  a lso  has a  suspens ive  
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c lause tha t  sha res the  same date .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The same date ,  31  March 2016.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because the  payment ,  the  fu l l  payment  

i s  due I  th ink  on  the  13 t h  o r  15  Apr i l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And so  by  the  t ime –  so  the  da te  o f  the  

suspens ive  cond i t ions  is  made in  such a  way tha t  i t  i s  very 

c lose  to  the  payment ,  the  fu l l  payment  da te .   That  i s  in  

Apr i l  2016.   And tha t  i s  where  you s tar t  see ing  f rom the  8 t h ,  10 

be fore  the  13  Apr i l ,  be fore  the  15 t h ,  f rom the  8  to  the  11 t h  

o f  Apr i l  an  unprecedented ac t ion  is  taken on the  par t  o f  

Eskom to  do  a  p repayment  aga in  o f  659.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Desp i te  the  Board  meet ings,  PTC 

meet ing  schedu led  fo r  the  13 t h  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    They push fo r  them to  meet  on  the  11 t h  

a t  n igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh yes tha t  i s  the  o ther  meet ing  wh ich  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  Dr  Nte ta  was tes t i f y ing  about .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    They push to  have tha t  meet ing  on  the  

n igh t  o f  the  11 t h  o f  Apr i l  a t  n ine  o ’c lock .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    And was tha t  the  Board  or  the  BTC? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  i t  i s  BTC.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And nobody in  the  BTC says why  are  you  

rush ing  us  to  a  meet ing  on  the  11 t h  when we have a  

meet ing  schedu led  fo r  the  13 t h ,  in  two days t ime?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Exact ly  Cha i r.   That  i s  exact ly  what  I  

was put t ing ,  the  vers ion  o f  Mr  Khoza I  was  put t ing ,  

obv ious ly  Mr  Khoza h imse l f  has  to  answer  ques t ions in  

regard  to  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    But  the  co inc idence,  a t  leas t  fo r  now 

the  impress ion  crea ted is  remarkab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Abso lu te ly  remarkab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  you fo l low the  d iscuss ion  

Ms K le in?  

MS KLEIN:    Yes Cha i rpe rson,  I  must  te l l  you  when I  

fo l lowed th is  d iscuss ion  i t  jus t  made me fee l  l i ke  I  shou ld  

have run  away f rom Eskom long before  I  ac tua l l y  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laugh ing ] .    Yes,  cont inue Mr  Se leka.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ms K le in  I  was re fer r ing  to  page 400,  

po in t  49  o f  Eskom Bund le  2 .  

MS KLEIN:    400? 

ADV SELEKA SC:     400 po in t  49 ,  i t  i s  the  McK insey  

mat te r.   I  am s imply  go ing  to  read f rom your  a f f idav i t ,  in  
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parag raph 11 you ’ re  answer ing  a  quest ion  tha t  has been 

asked to  you.   Now you see we ’ re  focus ing  on  a  par t i cu la r  

aspect  o f  McK insey/Tr i l l i an  as  in t roduct ion  to  Eskom.   We 

have a  w i tness who has tes t i f ied  tha t  when she  was a t  

Reg iments  and they were  serv i c ing  Transnet  they had  

meet ings w i th  Mr  Ano j  S ingh pr io r  to  h im commenc ing  h is  

du t ies  as  a  seconded CFO at  Eskom,  they had meet ings 

w i th  h im a t  p r iva te  ho te ls ,  ta lk ing  about  mat te rs  o f  Eskom.    

You may or  may not  know about  i t ,  do  you know?    

MS KLEIN:    No Cha i rperson I  don ’ t .    I  have no knowledge  10 

o f  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Reg iments  u l t imate ly  the  d i rec tors  o r  

shareho lders  separa te  and Mr  Er ic  Wood in  par t i cu la r  

inco rpora te  a  company ca l led  Tr i l l i an  and he does so  

together  w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa.   They then s tar t  o r  i t ,  Tr i l l i an ,  

s ta r t  render ing  se rv ices  to  Eskom and you wou ld  reca l l  tha t  

they in  fac t  d id  no t  have an agreement  w i th  Eskom,  

Tr i l l i an .  

MS KLEIN:     Ja ,  f rom what  I  remember  they never  d id .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    And some payments  were  made to  20 

them wi thout  any agreement  in  p lace?  

MS KLEIN:    I  th ink  tha t  has come out  recent ly  Cha i rpe rson  

yes.    I  am not  ta lk ing  –  i t  i s  no t  in  my a f f idav i t  bu t  I  am 

ta lk ing  to  what  I  can remember.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,    In  fac t  Ms Mthepu in  her  
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a f f idav i t  and her  tes t imony before  the  Commiss ion  is  tha t  

in  March 2016  Glencore  –  no t  G lencore  –  McK insey  

conducted a  g loba l  rev iew assessment  in  respect  o f  Tr i l l i an  

to  de termine whe ther  they can have Tr i l l i an  as  a  bus iness  

deve lopment  pa r tner  a t  Eskom,  wh ich  is  a  sub-cont rac to r  to  

McK insey and the  ou tcome o f  the i r  assessment  was  

negat ive  and they dec ided and to ld  Eskom we wi l l  no t  have  

Tr i l l i an  as  a  suppor t  deve lopment  par tne r,  d id  you know 

tha t?  

MS KLEIN:    No Cha i rman.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    You d idn ’ t?  

MS KLEIN:    I ’m  hear ing  i t  now,  I  am not  aware  o f  th is .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  we l l  to  the  ex ten t  you have dea l t  

w i th  the  mat te r  invo l v ing  McK insey  in  your  a f f idav i t  jus t  te l l  

the  Cha i rpe rson then what  you wou ld  l i ke  to  d raw to h is  

a t ten t ion ,  i t  invo lves a  submiss ion  to  the  Board  to  make a  

dec is ion  on  the  10 t h  o f  September  2015 about  p rocur ing  

the  se rv i ces  o f  McK insey.  

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rperson f rom what  I  remember  a  

submiss ion  was made to  the  Board  fo r  us  to  s ign  o f f  l i ke 20 

R100 000 fo r  McK insey.   A t  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  –  when i t  

was put  on  the  tab le  I  ac tua l l y  asked to  be  recused 

because I  am a  management  consu l tan t ,  when I  le f t  ABSA 

in  2010 and s tar ted  my own company,  K le in  Management  

Consu l tan ts ,  I  was obv ious l y  be ing  in  touch w i th  var ious 
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consu l t ing  f i rms,  so  they obv ious ly  ge t  the  l ion  share  o f  the  

work  when i t  comes to  Banks,  so  I  spoke to  De lo i t tes ,  

KPMG,  McKinsey,  as  we l l  as  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d is to r ted ] ,  so  

when I  saw someth ing  on  the  tab le  f rom McKinsey I  

immedia te ly  asked to  be  recused,  I  sa id  guys I  am in  

d iscuss ions where  I  may get  a  p iece  o f  work  f rom McKinsey  

so  I  d id  no t  want  to  be  par t  o f  the  d iscuss ion .  

 A t  tha t  s tage I  was asked you know what  i s  the  

de ta i l  o f  the  work  and I  exp la ined look I  am a  re t i red  

banker  and they saw tha t  I  was obv ious ly  engag ing  to  see 10 

cou ld  I  requ i re  an  oppor tun i ty  tha t  worked in  the  d i f fe ren t  

banks,  bu t  I  th ink  what  compl ica ted  mat te rs  fo r  me was 

tha t  I  went  on to  the  Board  o f  Reserve  Bank in  August  so  

the  work  tha t  they had p lanned fo r  me to  do  cou ld  no t  

happen in  South  A f r i ca ,  i t  wou ldn ’ t  have – i t  wou ld  have  

been in  the  res t  o f  A f r i ca .   That  i s  the  reason I  pu t  up  my 

hand and sa id  look I  don ’ t  want  to  be  par t  o f  any McK insey 

d iscuss ion  because I  made –  tha t  i s  the  word ing  is  the 

poss ib i l i t y  o f  a  conf l i c t .  

 Does tha t  answer  the  quest ion  Cha i rperson? 20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  was ask ing  a  d i f fe ren t  quest ion  

bu t  because o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    Sor ry  okay,  ask  aga in .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No because o f  the  prepara t ion  sess ion  

you ant ic ipa ted  another  quest ion .  
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MS KLEIN:    I ’m  sor ry  Cha i r.    Okay,  can I  t ry  and answer  i t  

fo r  you Cha i rperson i f  i t  wasn ’ t  tha t  quest ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  no  I  w i l l  ask  tha t  quest ion  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    . . . [ Ind is t inc t  –  d is to r ted ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    He w i l l  ask  i t  aga in .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  w i l l  ask  aga in .  

MS KLEIN:    P lease do,  p lease do.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The in fo rmat ion  as  conta ined in  your  

a f f idav i t  was tha t  a  submiss ion  was brought  to  the  Board  a t  10 

i t s  meet ing  on  the  10 t h  o f  September  2015 fo r  the  so le  

sourc ing  o f  McK insey and tha t  what  you have d iscovered is  

tha t  even as  the  submiss ion  was  brought  to  the  Board  on  

the  10 t h  o f  September  2015 the  agreement  had  a l ready  

been s igned on the  8 t h ,  i s  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  cor rec t?  

MS KLEIN:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t  and I  apo log ise ,  fo r  ja ,  tha t  i s  

exact ly  what  I  sa id  yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And I  th ink  you do say i t  was Mr  Koko  20 

who had a l ready s igned the  so le -sourc ing  agreement .  

MS KLEIN:    I  be l ieve  so  and i f  memory  se rves me we l l  I  

th ink  i t  was s igned w i th  the  Cha i rperson a t  the  t ime be ing  

Dr  Ben,  I  th ink  so ,  I  am not  . . .  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  what  d id  they want  the  Board  to  do ,  
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i f  the  so le -sourc ing  agreement  i s  a l ready s igned  a  few 

days p r io r  even coming to  the  Board .  

MS KLEIN:    We l l  remember  a t  the  t ime I  was no t  aware  

tha t  had a l ready  gone,  the  so le -sourc ing  agreement  had  

a l ready been s igned.    My unders tand ing  was tha t  we were  

s ign ing  o f f  fo r  McK insey to  he lp  us  w i th  the  Corpora te  p lan  

and the  reason I  d idn ’ t  th ink  there  was anyth ing  wrong w i th  

tha t  i s  because prev ious ly,  the  p rev ious Board  a lso  had  

he lp  in  ge t t ing  the  Corpora te  p lan  e f fec ted  to  s ign  o f f  a l l  

leve l s  and i t  goes  in to  the  pub l i c  domain .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh so  you were  no t  aware  a t  the  t ime.  

MS KLEIN:    Sor ry,  maybe I  d idn ’ t  ge t  the  quest i on  r igh t  

Cha i rperson,  can  you jus t  then ask  the  quest ion  –  was I  

aware  o f  the  so le -sourc ing  ag reement  in  paragraph 8 ,  is  

tha t  the  quest ion? 

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes.    

MS KLEIN:    No I  was not  aware .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You were  no t  aware .  

MS KLEIN:    No I  was not  aware  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay then le t ’s  go  to  the  quest ion  you  20 

ant ic ipa ted  and you answered.  

MS KLEIN:    Okay.   I  apo log i se  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No tha t  i s  a l r igh t ,  regard ing  your  –  

what  you re fe r  to  as  a  po tent ia l  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t ,  and I  

p ick  tha t  up  f rom Mr  Khoza ’s  a f f idav i t  as  I  ind ica ted  to  you,  
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tha t  in  the  meet ing  there  was ta lk  about ,  o r  you ra i sed tha t  

you might  have a  po tent ia l  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  because  

accord ing  to  h im you were  in  nego t ia t ions  w i th  McK insey to  

render  se rv i ces  to  McK insey.  

MS KLEIN:    Abso lu te ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  however  the  m inutes  o f  the 

meet ing  record  tha t  you had  in  fac t  done work  fo r  

McK insey,  now can you exp la in  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wou ld  you p lease exp la in  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    Yes I   -  ja  I  th ink  the  f i rs t  par t  o f  tha t  

sentence ac tua l l y  quotes  me where  I  sa id  I  wanted to  be  

recused because  there  cou ld  be  a  po tent ia l  con f l i c t  o f  

in te res t ,  l i ke  I  exp la ined I  was look ing  to  do  a  p iece o f  

work  fo r  them in  the  bank ing  sys tem in  South  A f r ica ,  bu t  

then I  went  on to  the  Board  o f  the  Reserve  Bank in  August  

o f  tha t  year  wh ich  is  why I  cou ld  no t  then car ry  on  do ing  

the  work ,  so  we were  ta lk ing  a t  tha t  s tage about  me do ing  

a  p iece o f  work  i n  the  f inanc ia l  serv i ces  sector  ou ts ide  o f  20 

South  A f r i ca .   I  had never  done any work  fo r  McK insey,  we 

were  s t i l l  busy negot ia t ing  a t  tha t  s tage.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes I  want  us  to  re fe r  the  Cha i rperson 

to  tha t  m inute ,  can you reca l l  i t?  

MS KLEIN:    Sor ry,  sor ry  Cha i rperson?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    The minute  where  the  conf l i c t ,  the  

po tent ia l  conf l i c t  i s  re f lec ted ,  I  want  us  to  re fe r  the  

Cha i rperson to  tha t .  

MS KLEIN:    Yes i t  was on the  10 t h  o f  September,  I  th ink  

tha t  was the  da te ,  ja  the  10 t h  o f  September.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  ge t  to  the  page where  he  dea ls  

w i th  McK insey.   I  want  you to  f ind  and read i t  to  the  

Cha i rperson Ms K le in .  

MS KLEIN:    A re  you ask ing  fo r  me  to –  sor ry.   R igh t  le t  me 

read i t  to  you,  i t  says :  10 

“Ms K le in  dec la red a  poss ib le  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  in  

her  company,  in  tha t  her  company d id  some work  fo r  

McK insey. ”  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  g ive  us  . . . [ in te rvenes]    

MS KLEIN:    Bu t  what  I  am say ing  to  you is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    G ive  us  the  page re ference.   The page  

re ference.  

MS KLEIN:     I  don ’ t  have the  page,  I  don ’ t  have  tha t  in  

f ron t  o f  me,  I  am read ing  i t  f rom the  screen,  remember  you 

sent  me every th ing  in  d ig i ta l  fo rm . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Speak up a  l i t t le  b i t  Mr  Se leka.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r,  I  see  she is  

s t rugg l ing  to  hear  me.  

MS KLEIN:    Cha i rperson what  I  am say ing  is  I  rece ived i t  

in  d ig i ta l  fo rm,  bu t  I  cannot  g ive  you a  page re fe rence.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  you heard  tha t  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  d id .   Yes I  am look ing  fo r  tha t  m inute  

where  i t  i s  reco rded Cha i r,  because i t  i s  impor tan t  what  i s  

recorded there  v is -a-v i s  what  Ms  K le in  i s  exp la in ing ,  bu t  

jus t  read i t  to  us  because the  m inutes  o f  the  10 t h  o f  

September  don ’ t  seem to  have tha t ,  i sn ’ t  i t  a  d i f fe ren t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    Ja ,  i t  says  –  do  you want  me to  read i t  

Cha i rperson?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes p lease.  10 

MS KLEIN:    I t  says :  

“Ms K le in  dec la red a  poss ib le  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  in  

tha t  her  company d id  some work  fo r  McK insey.    

Members  agreed  tha t  there  was no conf l i c t  o f  

in te res t  and dec l ined he r  request  to  recuse herse l f  

fo r  the  d iscuss ion . ”  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  so  the  m inute  exp l i c i t l y  says 

po tent ia l  conf l i c t  in  tha t  you sa id  the  company d id  some 

work  fo r  McK insey.  

MS KLEIN:    That  i s  what  the  m inute  says Cha i r.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  a re  you say ing  –  bu t  what  a re  you  

say ing  about  tha t?    I s  tha t  a  cor rec t  re f lec t ion?  

MS KLEIN:    I  am say ing  I  [ inaud ib le  –  no  sound]  no ,  the  

f i rs t  par t  o f  i t  i s  the  poss ib le  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  i s  cor rec t ,  

the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  is  abso lu te ly  no t  cor rec t  because I  d id  no t  
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do  any work  fo r  McK insey fo r  wh ich  I  was pa id .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Were  you –  d id  you recuse yourse l f  

f rom the  meet ing  or  no t?  

MS KLEIN:    I  wanted to  recuse myse l f  bu t  a f te r  exp la in ing 

l i ke  I  d id  to  you ear l ie r  tha t  i s  what  they –  poss ib le  work  in  

the  f inanc ia l  –  no t  poss ib le  –  work  in  the  f inanc ia l  serv i ces  

sector  wh ich  was  or ig ina l l y  go ing  to  be  in  South  A f r i ca  bu t  

when I  went  on to  the  Board  o f  the  Reserve  Bank in  August  

o f  2015 the  d iscuss ion  w i th  McK insey became do ing  work  

fo r  them in  the  res t  o f  A f r i ca ,  when the  Board  heard  tha t  10 

they were  comfo r tab le  tha t  there  was no conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  

and asked me not  to  recuse myse l f .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you do work  w i th  McK insey a f te r  

tha t?  

MS KLEIN:    No,  I  have never  done work  w i th  McK insey.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i rperson tha t  conc ludes the  

quest ions I  have fo r  Ms K le in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  saw tha t  in  her  second a f f idav i t  she  

dea ls  w i th  a  mat te r  tha t  I  am not  sure  she has dea l t  w i th  in  

o ra l  ev idence,  am I  wrong about  tha t?    I t  i s  about  the 20 

mat te r  tha t  and the  suspens ion  le t te rs  tha t  she got  f rom Mr  

Khoza wh ich  i t  looks  l i ke  there  has  been a  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    She tes t i f ied  about  i t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  d id  she cover  tha t  las t  t ime?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes she d id ,  and . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  what  you  haven ’ t  done I  guess is  

to  ge t  the  exper t  who d id  the  ana lys is  to  come and tes t i f y.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes,  tha t  i s  what  we haven ’ t  done.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  th ink  you shou ld  work  on  tha t ,  

because they have got  the  repor t  a l ready,  i t  shou ldn ’ t  be  – 

i t  shou ldn ’ t  take  long fo r  them to  be  ava i lab le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  I  th ink  tha t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  an  

exper t  g ives  ev idence who conduc ted the  ana lys is  and is  

ab le  to  j us t i f y  the  conc lus ions tha t  they reached w i th  10 

regard  to  say ing  tha t  the  le t te rs  o f  suspens ion  seem to  

have been dea l t  w i th  o r  dea l t  w i th  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  by  Suzanne  

Dan ie ls  as  we l l  as  Mr  Sa l im Essa.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That ’s  what  they seemed to  have had  

those le t te rs  –  so  tha t  i s  impor tan t ,  I  th ink  tha t  shou ld  be  

g iven some p r io r i t y.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you very  much Ms K le in ,  we  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sorry  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    He doesn ’ t  want  me to  re lease you.    Yes 

Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  supp lementa ry  submiss ion  Ms 

K le in  re fer red  to  I  thought  we shou ld  jus t  p lace  i t  on  record  
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and admi t  i t  as  we l l  be fore  she leaves.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  one is  tha t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The one . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    D idn ’ t  we adm i t  a l l  o f  them,  th ree  o r  

two?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    There  is  one wh ich  she re fe rs  to  in  

response to  Mr  Koko ’s  vers ion  tha t  she had inv i ted  Mr  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Th is  bund le?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     No i t  i s  no t  there  ye t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh i t ’s  –  oh .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  here ,  o r  we can incorpora te  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes we l l  we can  –  we l l  i f  you  wan t  to  add 

i t  to  th is  bund le  a t  the  end tha t  m ight  be  conven ien t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r  I  w i l l  beg leave to  have i t  

admi t ted  as  –  I  now the  Cha i rperson doesn ’ t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Have you got  the  or ig ina l  o r  copy? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  have the  o r ig ina l  here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Have you got  cop ies  or  you don ’ t  have 

cop ies?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  do  have my copy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And one wh ich  I  can hand up.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me have the  or ig ina l .   Do you want  

to  b r ie f l y  say  what  i t  dea ls  w i th  in  te rms o f  the  g is t  o r  i s  i t  
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qu i te  invo lved?    

ADV SELEKA SC:     I t  i s  a  –  we l l  Ms K le in  has g i ven the  

Commiss ion  th is  submiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  thought  you sa id  i t  i s  an  a f f idav i t ,  I  see  

cor respondence here .     

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  she ca l l s  i t  a  submiss ion  Cha i r,  i t  

i s  a  supp lementary  submiss ion  to  be  submi t ted  to  the 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  th is  one wh i le  she may have  

in tended i t  as  a  s ta tement  I  th ink  there  is  a  le t te r  10 

addressed to  the  Cha i rperson  and then there  is  a  

s ta tement ,  she has s igned i t ,  wha t  you can you do  is  ge t  

her  to  conf i rm i t s  contents  a re  t rue  and co r rec t  under  oa th  

then we –  do  we need the  f i rs t  page,  the  cor respondence?    

Oh i t  s ta r ts  one,  two and then th ree .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  i t  i s  –  Ms K le in  you can 

ass is t ing  us  the re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  i t  looks  l i ke  we must  jus t  take  i t  as  

i t  i s ,  th is  one,  there  are  two,  oh  th is  i s  an  annexure  to  the  

s ta tement .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Correc t ,  those  are  annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh but  now why d id  you s tap le  them 

separa te ly  o r  you had a  smal l  s tap le r  tha t  cou ldn ’ t  . . .  

[ laugh ing ]  you see I  th ink  i t  shou ld  on ly  come in  he re  when 

i t  i s  p roper l y  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja,  le t  me do,  le t  me r igh t  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  what  you can do i s  ge t  her  to  

conf i rm i t  under  oa th .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Get  he r  to  con f i rm i t  under  oa th  wh i le  

she is  here .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l  shou ld  I  do  tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  th ink  do  tha t  and then  maybe  

tomorrow morn ing  when i t  i s  p roper ly  s tap led  and you can  

then ask  tha t  I  admi t  i t  as  an  exh ib i t  and you add i t  a t  the  10 

end o f  th is .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  th is  bund le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay jus t  go  ahead then.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ms K le in  what  you have prov ided to 

the  Commiss ion  i t  i s  a  document  da ted  10 Apr i l  2018 wh ich  

is  on  the  face  o f  i t  addressed to  the  Cha i rperson  o f  the 

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  o f  Pub l ic  En terpr i ses  and you have  

re l ied  on  th i s  document  o r  d rawn  i t  to  our  a t ten t i on  as  a  20 

response by  you  to  Mr  Koko ’s  a l legat ions.   Can you hear  

me?  

MS KLEIN:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  the  document  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS KLEIN:    Yes,  yes ,  I  can hear  you.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The document  i s  s igned by  you,  

un for tunate l y  i t  i s  no t  pag ina ted,  page 1 ,  2 ,  3 ,  4 ,  5 ,  6 ,  7 ,  8 ,  

9 ,  the  very  las t  page is  s igned by  V  J  K le in ,  do  you  conf i rm 

tha t  to  be  your  s ignature?  

MS KLEIN:    I  do  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And the  da te  i s  10  Apr i l  2018.  

MS KLEIN:   Cor rec t ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And you wou ld  l i ke  the  Commiss ion  to  

re fer  to  th is  document  together  w i th  the  annexures there to  10 

as  a  response by  you to  Mr  Koko ’s  ve rs ion  or  a l legat ion  in  

regard  to  you inv i t ing  h im to  your  house to  meet  w i th  you  

and your  husband .  

MS KLEIN:    Correc t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And you conf i rm the  contents  o f  th is  

document?  

MS KLEIN:    I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    As cor rec t?  

MS KLEIN:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson,  I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you very  much Ms K le in ,  you are  

now excused,  thank you.  

MS KLEIN:    Thank you very  much  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Cha i r  the  t ime is  
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3 .26 ,  we have Ms  Vi roshn i  Na idoo as  the  next  w i tness.   We 

cou ld  take  a  shor t  ad journment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    We can take  a  shor t  ad journment  wh i le  

you reo rgan ise  and then –  w i l l  ten  m inutes  be  enough? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ten minutes  w i l l  be  cer ta in l y  enough 

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   What  was your  es t imate  

o f  how long you might  be  w i th  her?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  had  es t imated th ree  hours  

Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  am speak ing  w i th  he r,  see  whether  

we can ’ t  do  i t  sho r te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  I  th ink  you took shor te r  w i th  Ms  

K le in  than you had es t imated,  I  am go ing  to  assume tha t  i t  

i s  go ing  to  be  the  same wi th  her,  bu t  obv ious l y  as  I  a lways 

say in  the  end the  issues must  be  dea l t  w i th .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    P roper ly,  bu t  a t  the  same t ime there  is  

no  need to  take  longer  than one shou ld .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  we w i l l  ad journ  fo r  ten  m inutes .   

We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 
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INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you ready? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes we are ready Chai rperson thank you.   

Now Chai rperson the next  wi tness as I  have al ready 

indicated is Ms Naidoo.   Ms Naidoo is legal ly represented by 

my learned f r iend Mr Barry Roux and we wi l l  g ive him an 

opportuni ty to place himsel f  on record.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I f  – you may do so f rom where you 10 

are i f  you – I  th ink you voice is qui te audible yes.   Thank 

you.   Thank you.   Yes.   Alr ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ms Naidoo is ready to take the oath or  

aff i rmat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease administer the oath or aff i rmat ion.   

I  am sorry,  I  am sorry.   I  am going to start  af resh.   Ms 

Naidoo you are speaking very sof t ly so just  speak up a l i t t le  

bi t  

MS NAIDOO:   My apologies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay p lease start  af resh.  20 

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your fu l l  names for the record.  

MS NAIDOO:   Devapushpum Naidoo.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  taking the 

prescr ibed oath? 

MS NAIDOO:   No.  
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REGISTRAR:   Do you consider the oath binding on your 

conscience? 

MS NAIDOO:   I  do.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you solemnly swear that  the evidence you 

wi l l  g ive wi l l  be the t ruth;  the whole t ruth and nothing but  the 

t ruth;  i f  so please ra ise your r ight  hand and say,  so help me 

God. 

MS NAIDOO:   So help me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you;  you may proceed Mr Seleka.   

You may keep your microphone on Ms Naidoo.   Ja.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Ms Naidoo is 

appearing for the f i rst  t ime Chairperson before the 

commission.   She has submit ted an aff idavi t  which is found 

in Eskom Bundle 14(A) on page – the aff idavi t  is on page – i t  

starts on page 269.1 Exhib i t  U29.  Ms Naidoo you wi l l  have 

the same … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay the actual  aff idavi t  starts at  page 

269.2 is that  r ight? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Correct  Chai rperson.   Ms Naidoo you are 

there? 20 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The – that  is your f i rst  aff idavi t  to the 

commission i t  runs up to page 269.56 -  259.56.   You see 

that? 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   There is a s ignature there above the 

deponent do you conf i rm that  to be your signature? 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes I  do.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The aff idavi t  is dated 8 December 2020.  

MS NAIDOO:   Correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You conf i rm this to be your aff idavi t  yes.  

MS NAIDOO:   Yes I  do Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Chairperson there is another 

aff idavi t  and I  wi l l  come to i t .   I  wi l l  beg leave to have this 

aff idavi t  the main one I  wi l l  cal l  i t  admit ted as Exhibi t  U29.1.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   The aff idavi t  of  Devapushpum Naidoo I  

hope I  pronounced that  name correct ly start ing at  page 269.2 

is admit ted as Exhibi t  U29.1.   Was that  pronunciat ion of  your 

name correct  Ms Naidoo? 

MS NAIDOO:   Sorry Chai r  what did you say? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Was my pronunciat ion of  your f i rs t  name 

correct? 

MS NAIDOO:   What did you say?  You may cal l  me Viroshni  

i t  is my cal l ing name.  I  know i t  is a  mouthful .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Viroshni .  20 

MS NAIDOO:   Vi roshni  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   Okay.  

MS NAIDOO:   Sorry Chai r  what  was the supplementary 

00:05:04? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes I  am going there.  
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MS NAIDOO:   Oh okay my apologies.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes there is the next  aff idavi t  

Chairperson is the – is a supplementary aff idavi t  on page 

269.238.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  repeat  the page? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   269.238.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  have got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Now the thi rd  one Ms Naidoo runs up to 

page 269.261.  

MS NAIDOO:   Correct  that  is my signature.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is that  your signature? 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Aff idavi t  dated – what is i t  8? 

MS NAIDOO:   February.   Oh sorry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes I  th ink so.   8 February 2021 so that  

is two days ago.   Chair  I  would beg leave also to have this  

aff idavi t  admit ted as Exhibi t  U29.2.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The aff idavi t  of  Ms Vi roshni  Naidoo 

start ing at  page 268 that  is a supplementary aff idavi t  start ing 

at  page 23 – 269.238 is admit ted as Exhibi t  U29.2.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Chai r  the – ah yes the legal  

representat ives and I  have spoken about th is part icular  

aff idavi t  which is a supplementary aff idavi t  of  Ms Naidoo.   I  
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received i t  last  night  I  th ink i t  would have been sent  dur ing 

the day I  cannot  recal l  but  to  the extent  –  to that  extent  

Chairperson that  i t  was being received that  t ime we have 

agreed and I  be l ieve Ms Naidoo has been told as wel l  that  

the issues t raversed in that  aff idavi t  may have to be deal t  

wi th at  a later stage af ter the par t ies who are impl icated 

have been provided wi th a copy of  00:07:26.  

MS NAIDOO:   Advocate Seleka may I  p lease draw the 

at tent ion of  the commission to  two amendments in my 

aff idavi t?  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes certainly.  

MS NAIDOO:   So on page what is that?  Page 2 paragraph 4 

my art ic les was not  93/94 that  is 95 and 96.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Are you on the main aff idavi t?  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay let  us go.  

MS NAIDOO:   And then on page… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Just  hang on.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on.   Let  us get  there.   What is the 

page for the main aff idavi t?  I  see where i t  ends.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes 26 – 269.2.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

MS NAIDOO:   Page 2.   On page 2 paragraph 4 the year of  

my art ic les was 95/96.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So I  completed my art ic les at  More 
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Naidoo and RC 

MS NAIDOO:   RC  

ADV SELEKA SC:   RC from? 

MS NAIDOO:   95 to 1996.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh 1995.  

MS NAIDOO:   To 1996.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry 1995 should be? 

MS NAIDOO:   1993 should be 1995.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MS NAIDOO:   And 1994 should read 1996.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   1994 should read? 

MS NAIDOO:   1996.  

CHAIRPERSON:   1990? 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes i t  was two years that  I  d id… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   1996.  

CHAIRPERSON:   1996? 

MS NAIDOO:   Correct  yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes 96.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Does i t  affect  the next  – the 1995 in the 20 

next  l ine? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS NAIDOO:   Yes correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Does i t  affect  i t?  

MS NAIDOO:   Yes so that  should read High Court  in 1997 
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when I  was a … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Where is that  now the second – the next  

l ine? 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   1995 should be 1997? 

MS NAIDOO:   Should read 1997 yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    

MS NAIDOO:   And then the next  one I  would l ike to  draw the 

commission’s at tent ion to  is on page 2 paragraph 19.3.4 i t  

reads:  10 

“17 February.”  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry,  I  am sorry let  us get  to the 

page f i rst .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh.  

MS NAIDOO:   Oh i t  is my apologies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Use the… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Use the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Use the paginat ion on the top lef t  of  the 

page to tel l  us which page we should go to.  

MS NAIDOO:   So in your vers ion… 20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   B lack paginat ion.  

MS NAIDOO:   So i t  would read:   Eskom 14-269.9 and then 

U29D and 27.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   269.9? 

MS NAIDOO:   Correct .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay paragraph number? 

MS NAIDOO:   So i t  wi l l  read 19 – paragraph 19.34.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   19.34 17 February 2015? 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes so that  should actual ly be 16 February – 

ah no the 17 February i t  was not  a  board induct ion i t  was a 

meet ing – i t  was a board meet ing.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So what is the correct ion that  should be 

made there? 

MS NAIDOO:   You should delete induct ion and put  in  10 

meet ing.    

CHAIRPERSON:   You wi l l  have to do a supplementary 

aff idavi t  that  wi l l  … 

MS NAIDOO:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Conta in al l  these correct ions.   We are just  

making notes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you need to – your  Counsel  wi l l  or your  

Counsel  wi l l  ass is t  you to do a supplementary aff idavi t  which 

points out  the correct ions that  you have pointed out .  20 

MS NAIDOO:   Okay Chai r.  Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  have you pointed out  al l  of  them now? 

MS NAIDOO:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Thank you Ms Naidoo.   Chai rperson 



10 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 341 
 

Page 167 of 294 
 

Ms Naidoo is cal led mainly to deal  wi th the issue of  the 

t ransact ions but  as an int roduct ion to that  we could deal  wi th 

– could lead evidence on your background Ms Naidoo and 

your appointment to the board of  Eskom in December 2014 – 

15 – 14 or 15? 

MS NAIDOO:   14.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Ja.   P lease te l l  the Chai rperson 

your occupat ion br ief ly including your – the work you do yes.  

MS NAIDOO:   Chair  I  am an admit ted at torney.  I  d id ten 

years of  pr ivate pract ice thereaf ter I  moved to Johannesburg 10 

and I  jo ined corporate.   I  c l imbed the corporate ladder as 

they say.   I  worked for Telkom, Bytes Technology,  American 

Tower and Impact  Limited.   Around 2014 I  appl ied for the 

board posi t ion at  Eskom and I  was appointed I  th ink i t  is the 

12t h of  December 2014.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   11 wel l  I  do not  know in your case but… 

MS NAIDOO:   Oh no I  th ink i t  was 12 I  got  the date yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Was i t  12? 

MS NAIDOO:    Yes correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Were you – were you appointed to the 20 

board of  Eskom? 

MS NAIDOO:   Correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   On the 12t h of  December 2014? 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  – I  see f rom your aff idavi t  that  – ja page 
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269.2 – ja paragraph 3 that  you are an admit ted at torney 

indeed i f  you turn the page to 269.3 in paragraph 7 you 

ment ioned – wel l  6 in 2007 I  relocated to Johannesburg and 

jo ined Telkom SOC Telkom as a legal  advisor.   In 2008 I  lef t  

Telkom and jo ined Bytes Technology American Tower SA and 

Impac Limited as senior legal  counsel  and in the lat ter two I  

was Group Leader or counsel .   You go on to say in  2000 I  

establ ished the petroleum business which suppl ied fuel  to  

Transnet … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you not  – do you want to spend t ime on 10 

that  Mr Seleka? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No that  is al l  I  want  to read to you.   What  

I  want  to ask her is which pet roleum company is that? 

MS NAIDOO:   I  t ry – I  t raded for a very short  per iod of  t ime 

i t  was for a per iod of  about  two years.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I f  you could face the Chai rperson.  

MS NAIDOO:   Oh sorry Chai r.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:   I t  was for about  two years so i t  may have 

ended in 2002 ja.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja but  what is the name? 

MS NAIDOO:   Af r ica 00:14:18 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Afr ica.  Okay.   So I  went to your CV which 

is on page 269.58 – 269.58 i t  starts  there but  I  want  to refer 

to page 269.60 because you l ist  the companies that  you 
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have worked at  but  I  see in your aff idavi t  there is one 

company you did not  ment ion which is Albert ime Pty Ltd the 

per iod of  employment there being f rom 2015 to 2017 posi t ion 

held legal .  

MS NAIDOO:   Correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is there a reason why i t  is not  being 

ment ioned? 

MS NAIDOO:   I  th ink i t  was just  an error.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay what – which company is that? 

MS NAIDOO:   Wel l  perhaps your quest ion in terms of… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on one second.  Ms Naidoo I  th ink 

you are qui te fast .    

MS NAIDOO:   Sorry Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You speak qui te fast  and you speak qui te 

soon af ter or just  before he f in ishes.   Okay what is an error 

on page 269.60 I  seem to have understood that  there was 

something – something you were saying was an error.  

MS NAIDOO:   On page? 

CHAIRPERSON:   On page 269.60.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So let  me repeat the quest ion Chair  so 20 

that  the Chai r  – in her aff idavi t  she ment ions the companies 

that  she has worked for.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  there is one company which she did 

not  ment ion in the aff idavi t  but  i t  is found in her CV.  



10 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 341 
 

Page 170 of 294 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And the company’s name is Albert ime Pty 

Ltd.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And I  was asking her how is i t  that  i t  is  

not  ment ioned in her aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:   I  am – I  – i t  was probably an error  but  ei ther  i t  

could have also been in terms of  the quest ion that  … 10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Phased i t .  

MS NAIDOO:   So the quest ions that  the commission had 

sent  i t  was in terms of  what we had done pr ior to being 

appointed.   So maybe that  is  why I  speci f ied al l  the jobs that  

I  had.   This one I  was appointed 2015 when I  was al ready an 

Eskom board member.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay Ms Naidoo I  am sorry you wi l l  have 

to repeat  that .  

MS NAIDOO:   Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do not  know whether there is  something 20 

wrong with your microphone or wi th your voice or both but… 

MS NAIDOO:   My apologies Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  i t  is  how fast  you are when you speak.   

Ja wel l  – the quest ion was how come 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   You did not  ment ion Albert ime Pty Ltd in 

your aff idavi t .   Now what is the answer? 

MS NAIDOO:   Chair  I  th ink i t  was an error al ternat ively i t  

could have been my answer in terms of  the quest ions that  

were sent  to me by the commission in terms of  what roles I  

held pr ior to jo ining Eskom.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   So what is th is company? 

MS NAIDOO:   So Albert ime is  an investment company and a 

consul t ing business and I  jo ined… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  – wel l  maybe the – maybe the f i rst  10 

point  is not  f inal ised.   What is i t  in that  quest ion that  would 

have made you not  to include Albert ime? 

MS NAIDOO:   Nothing Chai r  I  th ink i t  was just  an error  

because I  am the one who inserted my CV with you know a l l  

my detai ls of  my employment.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay no I  thought  you said there may 

have been something in – how the quest ion f rom the 

commission was formulated and i t  is about  your role so I  was 

t ry ing to understand.  

MS NAIDOO:   I f  I   -  I  cannot recal l  the exact  quest ion but  I  20 

know the quest ions was in terms of  what posi t ions we had,  

what degrees and qual i f icat ions.   And maybe my 

understanding was before I  jo ined Eskom.  So that  is why I  

st ipulated the employment pr ior to jo ining Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  
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MS NAIDOO:   But  – but  as I  said i t  was just  an error 

because I  at tached my CV. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  Ms Seleka – Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   And – so the next  quest ion was 

what does the company do Albert ime or  d id  do at  the t ime 

you were there? 

MS NAIDOO:   I t  is an investment and a consul t ing company.   

I  was employed by Albert ime but  Albert ime had business 

re lat ions wi th a debt  col lect ion business in the intent ion of  

me jo in ing was to work wi th the debt  col lect ion business.   10 

But  I  d id not  work di rect ly  wi th Albert ime I  worked actual ly in  

the debt  col lect ion area of  the business.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Whose company is Albert ime? 

MS NAIDOO:   I t  is my husband’s company.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  have picked up f rom the Parl iamentary 

Port fo l io  Commit tee t ranscr ipt  of  your  test imony that  your 

husband is Mr Kuben Moodley.  

MS NAIDOO:   Correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And that  he was an advisor to Minister 

Zwane.  20 

MS NAIDOO:   Correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And this would have been f rom the 1s t  of  

October 2015 to 31 March 2016.  

MS NAIDOO:   Correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Did that  present  any problem for  you 
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serv ing on the board of  Eskom in 2015? 

MS NAIDOO:   Not  in 2015;  2016 yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Problem of  what sort?  

MS NAIDOO:   So in 2016 there were var ious art ic les in 

January concerning Mr Zwane and Tegeta and OCM and what  

you have addressed with Ms Klein the part icu lar v is i t  to 

Switzer land and therefore I  was very concerned and – sorry 

Chair  I  should be speaking to you.   I  then wrote to  Eskom 

and I  said that  my husband is an advisor  to  Minister Zwane 

and I  do not  th ink I  should be involved in any tenders where 10 

we award contracts to any min ing companies.   And so f rom 

that  per iod I  was excused.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes so what t ransact ion was being 

discussed? 

MS NAIDOO:   I t  was for OCM.   So are you asking what  

t ransact ions happened whi le I  was – dur ing that  per iod? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No this part icu lar one where you said. .  

MS NAIDOO:   In  January there was art ic les wi th Minister 

Zwane making his  t r ip to Switzer land.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes and you tel l  the board in which 20 

meet ing about which t ransact ion? 

MS NAIDOO:   I  d id not  te l l  them in a meet ing I  wrote to the 

company secretary around January and I  said I  – you know I 

th ink – at  f i rst  I  d id not  th ink that  there was a conf l ict  

because we are very di fferent  enterpr ises but  af ter  that  
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art ic le  and there was so much involvement I  fe l t  I  should not  

be involved in any t ransact ions leading to mining companies.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh I  see okay.  

MS NAIDOO:   So then the… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  understand now what you are saying.  

MS NAIDOO:   Yes so the f i rst  tender meet ing for February I  

excused mysel f  when they awarded cont racts for  mining 

companies and I  know one of  those speci f ic companies was 

OCM.  Then in March I  brought i t  to their  at tent ion again but  

they were not  appoint ing any tenders in the March meet ing 10 

they were only doing st rategies.   The board del iberated and 

said I  could at tend that  meet ing or  should I  say cont inue in  

al l  the t ransact ions which I  d id.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   What was the board ’s view when you say 

you did not  want to be involved in any t ransact ions involving 

mining companies? 

MS NAIDOO:   The board del iberated but  they respected my 

exclusion or want ing to be you know excluded f rom those 

meet ings so i t  was agreed that  I  wi l l  be al lowed to.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So – so why is i t  a problem only in 2016 20 

because he is  appointed on the 1s t  of  October 2015 and here 

you have a t ransact ion coming up on the – in December on 

the 9 t h of  December 2015 involving a mining company Tegeta 

or OCM? 

MS NAIDOO:   I  d id not  real ly  see a conf l ict  as such because 
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i t  is not  l ike we were discussing what we were both doing.   

There was no sort  of  interact ion or associat ion in terms what 

the Department of  Minerals and Energy was doing together 

wi th what Eskom was doing.   Even I  wi l l  be honest  wi th you 

when that  matter  for  the pre-purchase came to me I  d id not  

for one second bel ieve there could be a conf l ic t .   But  

however in  January when I  saw there were the art ic les about  

Minister Zwane being involved wi th the company that  you 

know was deal ing wi th Eskom I  was very uncomfortable and I  

fe l t  you know I  should actual ly excuse mysel f .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Wel l  and the art ic le was obviously 

report ing on what had al ready happened.  

MS NAIDOO:   Correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because Mr Zwane had gone to 

Switzer land on the 1s t  of  December.   He was there on the 2n d 

December and had made i t  possible for the deal  between 

Tegeta,  Oakbay and OCM Glencore to be concluded – struck 

– the deal  to be st ruck.   Insofar as you say the company 

Albert ime was an investment and consul t ing company you 

rendered investment consul t ing services did the company 20 

have anything to do wi th  Tegeta related ent i t ies? 

MS NAIDOO:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Not  Tegeta sorry the Gupta related 

ent i t ies.  

MS NAIDOO:   No.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Oakbay,  Tegeta.  

MS NAIDOO:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Nothing at  al l .   How did you get  

appointed to the board would you tel l  the Chai rperson – of  

Eskom? 

MS NAIDOO:   Chai r  around end of  2014 I  started applying 

for board posi t ions and I  appl ied for the Eskom board 

posi t ion and then I  was contacted by a Ms Rothnam who 

advised me that  you know I  had been nominated and do I  

accept  the posi t ion.   Af ter del iberat ion I  d id.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes were you – was this the f i rst  board 

you had to serve on? 

MS NAIDOO:   No I  have served on other corporate boards – 

commercia l  boards.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  never in SOE? 

MS NAIDOO:   No,  no.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   How did you come to know about i t?  

MS NAIDOO:   There was an art ic le in the newspaper.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh.   Was this  the f i rst  t ime you came 

across an art ic le that  indicates – or what is the effect  of  the 20 

art ic le that  they… 

MS NAIDOO:   I t  is apply ing for an Eskom board posi t ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Eskom’s… 

MS NAIDOO:   So there were qui te  a few I  had appl ied for  

qui te a few.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Ms… 

MS NAIDOO:   Accident  fund board.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Naidoo.   What is the art ic le that  you 

are talk ing about now? 

MS NAIDOO:   I t  was an advert isement for the board posi t ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Tel l  the Chairperson whether did 

you know any of  your board members pr ior to thei r  10 

appointment? 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:   I  knew Mr Mark Pamensky and I  knew of  Mr 

Zethembe Khoza because I  was at  Telkom and he was also 

at  Telkom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   How did you know Mr Mark Pamensky? 

MS NAIDOO:   From a social  perspect ive you know 

gather ings and … 

CHAIRPERSON:   From where? 20 

MS NAIDOO:   Social  perspect ive.   We at tended very simi lar  

funct ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   What should we consider him to have 

been a fami ly f r iend? 
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MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Fami ly f r iend.   So he – you and your  

husband would have known him.  

MS NAIDOO:   Correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Did you – oh – wel l  you say Mr Khoza 

you knew him but  did you know him personal ly? 

MS NAIDOO:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No.   So you knew of  h im? 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   From Telkom? 10 

MS NAIDOO:   Correct  he was an Execut ive at  Telkom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Other than that  you did not  know any? 

MS NAIDOO:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Of  the board members.   May – the Gupta 

brothers.  

MS NAIDOO:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Did you know them.  

MS NAIDOO:   No I  do not  know them and I  have never met 

them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ms Sal im Essa? 20 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.   I  know Mr Sal im Essa.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Did you know him before coming – before 

your appointment? 

MS NAIDOO:   Correct ,  yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And how did you know him? 
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CHAIRPERSON:   How wel l  d id you – did you know him? 

MS NAIDOO:   He is known to my husband.  I  do not  know 

him personal ly so I  would not  consider him my f r iend.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MS NAIDOO:   But  my husband knows him so that  is how I  

know him.  As I  said in my aff idavi t  and I  took the guidance 

f rom your aff idavi t  you know exact ly  t imes I  had met  h im.  Ja 

and the last  meet ing was in 2015 I  th ink i t  was at  a wedding 

and we sat  at  the same table.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm okay.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   So you came to know him as a resul t  of  

your husband knowing him.  

MS NAIDOO:   Correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   He is f r iends wi th your husband? 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Did they do any business together? 

MS NAIDOO:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Not  at  al l?  

MS NAIDOO:   Not  when I  was at  Eskom no they have not  

done any business together.   I  do not  th ink they have done 20 

any business together.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Before or af ter? 

MS NAIDOO:   No,  no.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So they know each other as what – 

f r iends? 
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MS NAIDOO:   Wel l  more l ike associates yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   And in that  process you came to 

know h im? 

MS NAIDOO:   Correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  th ink you have ment ioned occasions 

where you would have met wi th him? 

MS NAIDOO:   Mr Essa? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja Mr Essa where you would have met  

wi th Mr Essa.   Can you te l l  the Chairperson those occasions 

again? 10 

MS NAIDOO:   They were most ly at  gather ings.   I  th ink there 

were more than 100 people at  al l  three of  the gather ings – 

there were three gather ings.   I  have not  met him on a 

personal  basis to discuss any Eskom matters or my business 

re lat ions.   I  have never had coffee wi th him but  I  have never 

interacted wi th him on a social  basis one and one.   So he is 

known to my husband he is not  my f r iend.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   D id your husband play any role  in  your 

decision to apply to serve on the Eskom board? 

MS NAIDOO:   No.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   He d id not  advise you to apply? 

MS NAIDOO:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Or discourage f rom applying? 

MS NAIDOO:   No I  – I  have not  d iscussed my appointments 

or my job you know with my husband.  I  am very 
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independent.   I t  is qui te offensive when somebody says to 

you got  to your husband.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry.   Just  repeat  the sentence 

before th is last  one? 

MS NAIDOO:   I  have not  discussed with my husband you 

know my employment or where I  am planning to go i f  I  am 

applying for a new posi t ion.   I  have never done that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  not  st range? 

MS NAIDOO:   No why? 

CHAIRPERSON:   General ly ask between couples? 10 

MS NAIDOO:   No I… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  you want to change f rom one job to – 

f rom working f rom one company for  example to  working for  

another company would you not  ta lk to your partner,  spouse 

and say this is what I  am think ing? 

MS NAIDOO:   I f  I  got  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    What  do  you th ink?  I t  m igh t  have an 

impact  on  ce r ta in  mat te rs  in  the  fami ly.   You might  be 

coming back l a te  because i t  i s  fa r  in  te rms o f  the  no rms or  

tha t  i s  the  type o f  company tha t  you a re  go ing  to  work  fo r.   20 

Obv ious ly,  in  the  end you dec ide .  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  one,  I  wou ld  have thought  tha t  

coup les  wou ld  ta lk  about  those th ings.  

MS NAIDOO:    Wel l ,  what  I  was t ry ing  to  say to  you tha t  i f  I  
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wanted to  app ly  fo r  a  new job ,  I  wou ld  no t  go  to  h im and 

ask h im or  te l l  h im or  whatever.   I f  I  d id  ge t  a  new 

appo in tment ,  yes ,  o f  course ,  I  wou ld  te l l  h im tha t  I  go t  a  

new appo in tment  bu t  I  wou ld  have a l ready accepted i t .  

 I  never  rea l l y  addressed tha t  w i th  h im.   To  be 

honest ,  I  th ink  i t  was one o f  my  head o f  lega l  pos i t ions  

where  I  d id  ge t  accused by  one my g i r l f r iends who sa id :   

D id  my husband get  you th is  job?  

 So,  and I  was ve ry  de fens i ve .   No ,  Judge I  rea l l y  

d id  no t  go  and ask  h im:   You know what ,  I  am look ing  a t  10 

tak ing  a  new job .   Maybe i f  I  were  unhappy somewhere  I  

wou ld  have to ld  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS NAIDOO:    Bu t  in  te rms,  I  on l y  have an agent  and my 

agent  wou ld  normal ly  re fe r  me to  d i f fe ren t  jobs  and then I  

go  fo r  the  in te rv iew and th ings l i ke  tha t .   So i f  i t  means I  

go t  the  le t te r  o f  appo in tment ,  then I  wou ld  ca l l  and te l l  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  so  you wou ld  te l l  h im a f te r  you had 

been appo in ted?  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  yes .   But  I  no t  l i ke  I  wou ld  no t  ask  h im:   20 

Do you th ink  i t  is  a  good idea?  Or  whatever.   We are  in  

d i f fe ren t  p ro fess ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   Oh,  no ,  no .   I  unders tand.   The 

suggest ion  is  no t  tha t  you ask  fo r  permiss ion  bu t  i t  i s  jus t  

tha t  d iscuss ion  and cons idera t ion .  
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MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  o f  course .   Yes.   My job  towards –  you  

know as i t  i s  on  photo  2 ,  i t  was in  and around my ch i ld ren .   

As  my k ids  go t  o lde r,  I  s ta r ted  –  i f  you  have not iced,  I  

worked in  a  job  f rom Pre tor ia .   Then I  s ta r ted  mov ing  

c loser  to  my home.   And tha t  i s  why I  re f lec ted  on  tak ing  

board  pos i t ions  because I  d id  –  I  thought  i t  wou ld  a l low me 

to  have a  b i t  more  t ime as  opposed to  the  12-hour  job .   Ja .   

So.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Yes,  so  you –  you 10 

say your  husband d id  no t  p lay  any ro le  in  your  dec is ion  

mak ing .   You have sa id  –  I  jus t  saw someth ing .   You sa id  

you knew Mr  Pamensky soc ia l l y.    

 In  h is  a f f idav i t ,  Mr  Pamensky says he knew or  he  

knows Mr  Sa l im Essa.  I  have known h im fo r  the  past  11-

years .   A t  the  t ime when he was  depos ing  to  an  a f f idav i t .   

Have you and Mr  Pamensky ever  been w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa,  

a l l  together?  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  I  th ink  so .   A t  a  funct ion ,  a t  a  –  what  i s  

i t?   I t  was an ANN7 th ing .   My husband got  inv i t ed  and I  20 

th ink  m is te r. . .   I f  I  reca l l ,  Mr  Pamensky was a l so  there .   

But  th is  was wh i l e  I  was an Eskom board  member.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  th is  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS NAIDOO:    My husband was inv i ted  by  Mr  Zwane.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh.  
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MS NAIDOO:    Bu t  I  cou ld  be  mis taken.   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The ANN7 . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  i t  was the i r  award  funct ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  tha t  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS NAIDOO:    I t  was the  news channe l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  the  news channe l  tha t  was  owned  

by?  

MS NAIDOO:    Tegeta .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    One o f  those compan ies ,  yes .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  one o f  the  in te r rogated ent i t ies .   

Okay.   Now a t  the  Par l iamenta ry  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee ,  you  

were  a lso  asked about  A lber t yn  (P ty)  L td  hav ing  apparent ly  

o r  a l leged ly  made a  f inanc ia l  cont r ibu t ion  in  favour  o f  

Tegeta  fo r  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  OCM.   I  cannot  reca l l  what  

was your  response to  tha t  quest ion .  

MS NAIDOO:    I  was not  asked the  quest ion .   I  pu t  tha t  in  

my s ta tement  because tha t  was what  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  you d id .  

MS NAIDOO:    . . . in  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  repor t .   The  20 

Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  repor t  came ou t  in  November.   Ms Thu l i  

Madonse la ’s  las t  day,  i f  I  reca l l ,  was the  Fr iday,  the  

12 t h  o f  October.  

 The day befo re  tha t  I  was contac ted  by  Eskom at  

about  e igh t  o ’ c lock  a t  n igh t  to  say:   P lease look a t  you r  
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emai ls .   I t  i s  because they rep l ied  to  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  

repor t  and I  d id  no t  know what  they were  ta lk ing  about  

because I  had le f t  on  the  30 t h  o f  June 2016.  

 Then when I  looked –  opened the  document  –  I  

l i t e ra l l y  opened i t  on  my phone and I  rea l i sed tha t  the  

Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  had sent  them quest ions re la t ing  to  the 

Eskom board  members ,  spec i f i ca l l y  those o f  us  t ha t  had 

le f t .   

 And one o f  the  quest ions –  we l l ,  my quest ion  was  

not  there  about  whethe r  my husband ’s  company,  A lber tyn ,  10 

had cont r ibu ted .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   A l r igh t .   Okay le t  us  do  th is .   Let  

us  dea l  w i th  the  fac tua l  p remise  o f  the  quest ion ,  whethe r  

o r  no t  A lber t yn  d id  in  fac t  make a  cont r ibu t ion  to  Tegeta  fo r  

the  acqu is i t ion  o f  OCM and whethe r  you knew about  i t?  

MS NAIDOO:    My husband has  to ld  me no.   I  have met  

w i th  h is  accountant  and aud i to r  and they have p roven to  

me no.   I  have  done th is  numerous t imes to  numerous 

journa l i s ts .   I  have wr i t ten  to  the  press  about  tha t .   I  have 

t r ied  to  –  I  d id  wr i te  to  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  bu t  she had  20 

a l ready le f t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

MS NAIDOO:    And the  new one cou ld  no t  address the  

mat te r  because she sa id  the  mat te r  was c losed.   She cou ld  

no t  dea l  w i th  i t  anymore .   So yes I  have t r ied  to  dea l  w i th  
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th is  aspect  fo r  a  very  long t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    And I  have l i ved  w i th  four  years  now.   And 

Advocate  Se leka,  my husband ’s  company d id  no t  cont r ibu te  

to  Tegeta .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   I  mean,  he  has to ld  he  d id  no t .  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The company d id  no t .  

MS NAIDOO:    And I  have a l so  ver i f ied  by  v i s i t ing  h is  

accountants  and they have p rov ided me proof .    10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Good.   I  know the  invest iga tors  a re  

do ing  someth ing  about  i t  bu t  i f  we f ind  anyth ing  we w i l l  

share  i t  w i th  you.  

MS NAIDOO:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Le t  us  –  I  know tha t  your  

supp lementary  a f f idav i t  dea ls  ex tens ive ly  w i th  i ssues  o f  the  

suspens ions . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .   I  gave you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    . . .Mr  Tsots i .  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MS NAIDOO:    So i f  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Jus t  remember,  the  a r rangement  

because the  suspens ion  has been an issue we dea l t  w i th  

f i rs t  and fo remost  be fo re  the  t ransact ions  in  a 
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chrono log ica l  sequence because i t  comes f i rs t .  

 The peop le  are  moved out  o f  Eskom,  the  

execut ives  and they are  mak ing  a  way fo r  new peop le  to  

come in  and f rom there  we see how the  Corpora t ion  

Agreement  i s  dea l t  w i th  be tween Eskom and  OCM.   

U l t imate ly  the  prepayment  in  December  2015.   Dec is ion .   

The guarantee thereaf te r.    

 And then you have the  Apr i l  2016 prepayment  

dec is ion .   So wha t  I  am go ing  to  do  is ,  i s  to  pu t  as ide  fo r  a  

moment  the  suspens ion  issues inso far  as  they are  dea l t  10 

w i th  in  your  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  because we have not  –  

I  have not  even read i t .   We have not  even shared w i th  the  

peop le  who migh t  be  imp l ica ted .   We have to  make tha t  

de terminat ion .  

 So I  w i l l  go  in to  the  t ransact ions and s tar t ing  w i th  

the  Corpora t ion  Agreement .   That  agreement  reach – da tes  

back to  2014.   I t  comes to  the  BTC in  Apr i l  2016  on the 

15 t h .   The BTC does not  dec ide  the  mat te r.    

 I  unders tand tha t  f rom the  ev idence there  is  a  

quest ion  mark  there  because the  mat te r  fe l l  w i th in  the  20 

BTC’s  de legated author i t y.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t ,  yes .   Seven- f i f t y  to  a  b i l l i on  or  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  BTC.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  okay.   You are  fas t .  

MS NAIDOO:    My apo log ies .    
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Jus t  g ive  us  the  th resho ld  aga in .  

MS NAIDOO:    So  the  BTC thresho ld  i s  R 750 mi l l ion  to  a  

b i l l i on .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    R  750 mi l l ion  to  a  b i l l i on> 

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  w i l l  be  the  BTC.  

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .   And . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    So the  BTC can make dec i s ions on  

those?  

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .   And then f rom one b i l l i on  to  1 .5 ,  10 

i t s  board  and thereaf te r  i t  has  go t  to  the  Depar tment  o f  

Pub l ic  Ente rpr i ses .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So the  Corpora t ion  Agreement  

desp i te  fa l l ing  w i th in  the  BTC’s  de legated author i t y,  the 

BTC does not  make a  dec is ion  on .   I t  re fe rs  i t  to  the  board .   

The board  s i t s  in  Cape Town on the  23 r d  o f  Apr i l  2016.  

MS NAIDOO:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Were  you present  in  person?  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  I  was.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You were?  20 

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  we were .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You d id  no t  jo in  by  te lecom? 

MS NAIDOO:    No.   So i t  i s  impor tan t  to  unders tand why 

we were  in  Cape Town.   We were  p resent ing  to  the  

Par l iament  –  i t  was our  f i r s t  meet ing  where  the  board  was 
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p resent ing  to  Par l iament  and then we a l so  presented to  the 

Min is te rs .   

 So the  day a f te r  we had th is  board  meet ing .   I  

th ink  we were  the re  fo r  two days Cha i r.   So bas ica l l y  a l l  o f  

us  were  there .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  except  fo r  two.  

MS NAIDOO:    Sor ry.   We were  in  Cape Town fo r  two days.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   No,  I  am say ing ,  you are  say ing  

bas ica l l y  a l l  o f  you were  there  bu t  I  th ink  two jo ined by  

te leconference.  10 

MS NAIDOO:    Oh,  I  w i l l  be  cor rec ted  who they were .   I  am 

sor ry  bu t  I  assumed we were  a l l  there .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   Anyway.   But  they wou ld  have 

par t i c i pa ted  in  the  meet ing .   In  tha t  meet ing ,  i t  i s  unc lea r  

what  –  whether  th is  i tem is  p roper l y  on  the  board ’s  agenda.   

Can you reca l l?   The Corpora t ion  Agreement  and the  

addendum form? 

MS NAIDOO:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No?  You do not  have any independent  

reco l lec t ion?  20 

MS NAIDOO:    So  le t  me g ive  an  ins igh t  in to  what  

t ransp i red .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    I  know you have addressed th is  w i th  

Ms K le in .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    That  we had bas ica l l y  on  tha t  day ra t i f ied  

Mr  Mole fe ’s  secondment .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  approved i t .  

MS NAIDOO:    Sor ry?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  was not  ra t i f ied ,  approved i t .  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  cor rec t .   But  you must  remember.   

Even though we d id  tha t ,  tha t  was a  fo rmal i t y.   I t  ac tua l l y  

s ta r ted  a  few days be fore .   What  day –  do  you know what  

da te  –  what  k ind  o f  a  day was i t?   Was i t  a  Tuesday or  a  10 

Wednesday?   

 Because I  remember  we a l l  met  on  a  Sunday and  

we met  w i th  Mr  Mole fe  because  we were  prepar ing  fo r  

Par l iament .   I t  was the  f i rs t  we were  go ing .   He was very  

new and we a l l  had to  d iscuss the  quest ions  they were  

go ing  to  pu t  to  us .    

 And there  were  lo ts  o f  very  s t r ingent  quest ions.   

And i f  the  Commiss ion  wants ,  I  can te l l  the  quest ions 

together  w i th  the  answers  because one o f  the  quest ions 

Ms Mzo put  to  us  was the  issues concern ing  the  War  Room 20 

and the  fac t  tha t  incor rec t  in fo rmat ion  was go ing  to  the  

War  Room and in  tha t  m inutes  tha t  i s  be ing  re f lec ted .  

 So tha t  meet ing  then s topped.   We had th is  

par t i cu la r  day where  we were  p repar ing  on  the  Sunday.   

Then I  th ink  the  next  day or  the  day a f te r,  we f lew to  Cape  
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Town.   We spent  a t  Par l iament .   And then the  fo l low ing day 

we had a  board  meet ing .    

 And i t  was a  very  i n t roductory  one where  the  

Min is te r,  you know,  go t  to  meet  a l l  o f  us  proper ly  and then  

we met  Br ian  aga in  fo r  the  second t ime.   And then  

obv ious ly  –  i t  was so r t  o f  a  very  in fo rmal  board  mee t ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  i t  was  a  very  in fo rmal  board  

meet ing?  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.   I t  was not  l ike  we had a  l i s t  o f  i tems 

we read th rough i t  and whatever.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    I t  was very  in fo rmal .   I t  was very  las t  

m inute .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    H ’m.   Was i t  schedu led?  

MS NAIDOO:    Sor ry?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Was i t  a  schedu led  board  meet ing?  

MS NAIDOO:    Uhm . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  i f  i t  in fo rmal ,  maybe not .  

MS NAIDOO:    No,  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  was.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  in  tha t  meet ing ,  the  mat te r  o f  the  20 

Corpora t ion  Agreement  be tween  Eskom and OCM is  

re fe r red  to  by  Mr  Mole fe .   You reca l l  tha t /  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And you dea l  w i th  the  bas i s  on  wh ich  i t  

was re fe r red  to  h im.   You can te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson qu ick ly.  
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MS NAIDOO:    Okay.   So i t  was –  so  the  mat te r  came 

before  us .   I t  was fo r  the  ex tens ion  o f  the  –  no ,  i t  was fo r  

the  amendment  o f  the  agreement .   They cur ren t ly  had an  

agreement  bu t  they were  request ing  f rom Eskom an  

increase in  the  p r ice .    

 There  was a l so  a  c lause in  re la t ion  to  the  

ex tens ion .   That  was addressed w i th  us .  I t  was a  fa i r l y  

la rge  ex tens ion .   I t  was,  I  th ink ,  fo r  an  add i t iona l  20  years .  

 The cont rac t  was go ing  to  exp i re  in  2018 but  

Eskom was look ing  a t  another  20  years  fo r  the  l i fe  o f  the 10 

mine but  I  remember  the  submiss ion  sa id  tha t  the  l i fe  o f  

the  m ine was under  the  20-years  bu t  i t  cou ld  be  ex tended 

to  accommodate  the  OCM dea l .  

 The mat te r  was –  they were  pay ing  R 150,00 a  ton  

and i t  was go ing  to  increase to  R  442,00 unt i l  the  end o f  

2016 and f rom there  to  2018,  I  th ink  i t  was go ing  to  go  to  

R 472,00.   I  cou ld  be  mis taken bu t  a f te r  2018 i t  was go ing  

to  go  to  R 472.00 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  bu t  jus t  te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson the  

bas is  on  wh ich  i t  was re fe r red  to  Mr  Mole fe .  20 

MS NAIDOO:    So  when we s tar ted  –  because i t  was such a  

huge amount  in  the  sense tha t  i t  was a  b ig  jump.   I t  was an  

ex t ra  200% mark -up.   I  mean,  you were  go ing  f rom what?   

R 300 mi l l ion  a  year  to  R 3 .5  b i l l i on .   You are  look ing  a t  an  

R 60 b i l l i on  cont rac t .    
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 I t  k ind  o f  t r igge red –  i t  was –  we were  in  a  

f inanc ia l  s t ra in .   We were  no t  –  we were  a  growing  concern  

issue dur ing  th is  t ime and we were  no t  in  a  s i tua t ion  to  

commi t  ourse l ves .  

 I  do  a lso  remember  and I  know t r i ed  to  go  back to  

the  BTC minute .   I  was not  a  BTC member  a t  tha t  s tage.   

But  I  th ink  one o f  the  reasons they then pushed  to  the 

board  was because i t  was above the i r  th resho ld .   Oh,  no ,  

no .   Sor ry.   I t  was  out  o f  the i r  budget .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  was out  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MS NAIDOO:    Out  o f  the  budget .   So you must  remember,  

you have every  year  a  coa l  budget .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The budget  o f  BTC? 

MS NAIDOO:    No,  the  budget  w i th in  Eskom for  coa l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The budget  w i t h in  Eskom? 

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.   So tha t  was the  reason ing  why I  th ink  

i t  i s  ment ioned o f  the  m inutes  o f  the  BTC tha t  the  mat te r  

must  go  to  the  board .   So there  were  var ious quest i ons pu t  

to  management .    

 Remember,  Advocate  Se leka.   Every  mat te r  tha t  i s  20 

presented to  the  board  o r  the  Board  Tender  Commi t tee  is  

p resented by  CV ’s  or  the  leve l  o f  management .  

 So fo r  example ,  Eskom has got  a lmost  42  tender  

commi t tees be low the  board  leve l ,  Board  Tender  

Commi t tee .   D i rec t l y  be low us we have ESCOs wh ich  i s  an  
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execut ive  commi t tee  cons is t ing  o f  the  execut ives .  

 The i r  th resho ld  i s  R 300 mi l l ion  to  R 750 mi l l ion .   

They then w i l l  rec t i f y,  go  th rough the  submiss ion  and they 

submi t  i t  to  the  board  tender  and f rom there  or  

a l te rna t ive ly  e i ther  to  the  board .  

 So i t  i s  very  l i ke ly  tha t  we got  th is  f rom e i the r  

ESCOs or  sen io r  management  and there  were  l o ts  o f  

quest ions pu t  to  the  board .   I  mean,  pu t  by  the  board .   And 

there  were  very  few answers  tha t  cou ld  be  answered.  

 Mr  Br ian  Mole fe ,  on  the  Sunday I  reca l l  was ve ry  10 

impress ive .   I  mean,  he  was the re  two days bu t  he  was so  

we l l -g lued up on  the  bus iness.   Even i f  you go back and 

you look a t  the  m inutes  fo r  tha t  par l iamenta ry  t h ing ,  he  

answered most  o f  the  quest ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sor ry  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS NAIDOO:    So  we were  very  conf ident  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sor ry,  Ms Na idoo.   He what?  

MS NAIDOO:    He answered most  o f  the  quest ions tha t  the  

par l iamentar ians pu t  towards the  board .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  bu t  . . . [ in tervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  th is  Br ian  Mole fe?  

MS NAIDOO:    Mr  Br ian  Mole fe .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    So  on tha t  day,  on  the  23 r d  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  hang on.   We a re  ta lk ing  about  the  
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meet ing  o f  the  23 r d  o f  Apr i l  2015  and the  quest ions,  you 

say,  the  board  had.  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  I  am coming to  tha t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    On tha t  occas ion .   Ja ,  bu t  on  tha t  

occas ion .    

CHAIRPERSON:    He had been there  fo r  about  th ree  days  

or  what?  

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .   He was there  fo r  th ree  days.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  yes .   So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  a t  the  mee t ing  tha t  you ta lk  about  10 

when you he answered most  o f  the  quest ions.  

MS NAIDOO:    Maybe the  day be fore  when we went  to  

Par l iament .   Because you see,  on  the  Sunday be fore  we 

prepared,  we a l l  go t  togethe r,  together  w i th  h im and we  

went  obv ious l y  th rough the  f inanc ia ls ,  the  poss ib i l i t y  o f  

what  quest ions wou ld  be  put  to  us .    

 And the  th ing  is ,  you must  be  prepared i r respect ive  

o f  the  fac t  tha t  the  man is  there  every  job .   He knew he 

had  to  de l i ve r.   And he –  so  we a l l  p repared toge ther,  the  

board  members  and h im and we were  there  w i th  the  sen io r  20 

managers  as  we l l  as  the  execut ives .  

 Then the  next  –  when we ar r i ved in  Cape Town,  I  

th ink  our  f i rs t  th ing  –  we ar r i ved the  n igh t  be fore ,  the  next  

day we a l l  went  to  Par l iament .  

 The quest ions were  pu t  to  us .   We answered i t .   He  
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answered the  major i t y  o f  the  quest ions.   I  am sure  the  

m inutes  w i l l  re f lec t  tha t .   And then the  next  day we had a  

board  meet ing .    

 He came across  very  conf ident  and he was ve ry  

au thor i ta t i ve  in  the  sense tha t  he  knew what  he  was  do ing .   

So when we s ta r ted  pu t t ing  quest ions to  management ,  he 

cou ld  no t  answer  them,  obv ious ly,  because he was  a lso  –  

he  d id  no t  know much about  the  mat te r.  

 And then we sa id :   Wel l ,  we have got  now a  CEO,  

a  proper  –  a  rea l  l i f e  CEO.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MS NAIDOO:    Le t  us  g ive  h im to  address the  mat te r  and 

come back to  us .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   How d id  you put  the  quest ions  

to  management?  

MS NAIDOO:    The quest ions I  th ink  were  re la ted  in  te rms 

o f  what  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  how d id  you put  them to  

management?  

MS NAIDOO:    In  te rms o f  how d id  I  ask  the  quest ion?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  wh ich  way,  yes .   D id  you send an 

emai l ,  d id  you send a  le t te r?  

MS NAIDOO:    No,  no .   We had a  d iscuss ion  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Or  was management  there ,  p resent  

and you had done  put t ing  quest ion  to  them? 
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MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  yes ,  yes ,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And wh ich  wou ld  be  management  in  

th is  case.  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.   So w i th  due  –  Advocate  Se leka,  as  I  

have sa id  to  you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    There  is  a  fo rm o f  management  tha t  w i l l  

submi t  to  us ,  a  tender.   So there  wou ld  have been a  l ine  o f  

managers  or  an  execut ive .   Ac tua l l y,  an  execut ive  has to  

p resent  o r  be  p resent  on  a  par t i cu la r  tender  i f  i t  i s  in  10 

re la t ion  to  these  aspects .   So I  cannot  ve r i f y  exac t ly  who  

the  execut ive  was.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  there  was no execut ive .   We heard  

Ms K le in  sa id  the re  was no execut ive .   You are  meet ing  in  

Cape Town.   I t  is  an  in fo rmal  meet ing .   I t  seems not  to  

have a  prear ranged meet ing .   The  minutes  o f  the  meet ing  

are  he re .   A l l  we see is  a l l  o f  the  board  members  except  fo r  

two who are  jo in ing  in  by  te leconference.   Ms Khumalo  and 

Mr  Pamensky.   Then the re  is  Phukub je  the  Company  

Secre tary  and the  Commi t tee  Secre tary,  Mr  Wayne Ve l lo re .    20 

 Even Mr  Mole fe  i s  no t  l i s ted  he re  bu t  he  was the re  

in  tha t  meet ing .    

MS NAIDOO:    No,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Was i t  no t?    

MS NAIDOO:    I  reca l l  ask ing  quest ions.   We wou ld  no t  
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have asked i t  to  board  members .   That  does no t  seem 

r igh t .   Our  board  members . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  i t  was.  

MS NAIDOO:    . . .be  ab le  to  answer  on  a  par t i cu la r  mat te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    We cou ld  have addressed issues maybe to  

board  tender  bu t  management  wou ld  have def in i te ly  had to 

be  there  to  p resent  a  board  mat te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   That  you heard  when Ms K le in  

was tes t i f y ing .   I  a lso  sa id  to  he r,  on  th is  very  quest ion ,  10 

tha t . . .   Wel l ,  f i rs t l y  she conf i rmed management  was not  

there  and tha t  i t  was not  expected o f  management  to  

a t tend board  mee t ings.  

 But  now i t  i s  even –  what  i s  i t  –  I  d id  no t  want  to  

say –  i t  i s  even more  –  ja ,  te l l ing  tha t  i t  was an in fo rmal  

board  meet ing .  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  management  c lea r ly  was no t  there .   

But  the  second th ing  i s .   I  sa id  to  he r.   Mr  Johan  Bester  

who was on the  Negot ia t ing  Team on beha l f  o f  Eskom.   He  20 

says he  d id  no t  rece ive  quest ions f rom management .   I  

mean,  f rom the  board .    

 But  you –  I  th ink  you say what  you  know happened.  

I f  i t  d id  no t  happen . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    I f  management  was not  g iven  

quest ions,  f rom your  reco l lec t ion ,  i t  was not .   I f  i t  was,  

then say i t  was and then you w i l l  have to  say how i t  was  

g iven those quest ions so  tha t  we move fas te r.  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  I f  you  can reca l l .  

MS NAIDOO:    I  d isagree the  fac t  tha t  there  cou ld  have 

been no managers  a t  th is  meet ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MS NAIDOO:    Because they wou ld  have had to  jo in  us  10 

when we went  to  Par l iament  and we had ce r ta in  managers  

or  execut ives .   So the  execut ives  were  de f in i te ly  a l l  there .   

A re  you  ta lk ing  about  managers  l i ke  Mr  Johan Beste r  o r  

a re  you exc lud ing  execut ive  members?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.   The m inutes  o f  tha t  meet ing . . .   

Cha i rperson,  they are  in  Eskom Bund le  12 .   Eskom Bund le  

12  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS NAIDOO:    Am I  supposed to . . .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  she w i l l  he lp  you.  

MS NAIDOO:    Oh,  okay.    20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    The minutes  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you manage  to  go  there  o r. . .?  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  I  jus t  want  Ms  Na idoo 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MS NAIDOO:    Eskom Bund le  12?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Ja ,  okay.  

MS NAIDOO:    Ja .   What  page?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Eskom Bund le  12 ,  page 241.   That  i s  

the  Refe rence Bund le .    

CHAIRPERSON:    I  take  i t  you  a re  jus t  go ing  there  fo r  the  

names o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t .   The members  who were  

present  a t  the  meet ing .    10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS NAIDOO:    241?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    241.   I s  tha t  bund le . . .   Eskom Bund le  

12 .    

MS NAIDOO:    Oh,  yes  I  have got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  you see. . .    

[Background no ise  in te r rup t ion ]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You see who were  p resent  a t  tha t  20 

meet ing?  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  person and by  way o f  te lecom,  

te lephone.  

MS NAIDOO:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   



10 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 341 
 

Page 201 of 294 
 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you want  to  say  

execut ives  were  there  in  th is  meet ing ,  tha t  w i l l  be  

incons is ten t  w i th  what  Ms K le in  sa id .    

MS NAIDOO:    I  f ind  i t  very  d i f f i cu l t  to  unders tand .   Then 

who were  the  quest ions addressed to?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  you are  r igh t .  

MS NAIDOO:    You unders tand?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    I t  i s  very  l i ke l y  tha t  i t  cou ld  have been. . .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  10 

MS NAIDOO:    So,  I  –  honest ly,  we d id  have a  d iscuss ion  

on  the  Sunday.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MS NAIDOO:    We cou ld  no t  have made a  dec is ion  w i thout  

ask ing  quest ions,  you know.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Okay.  

MS NAIDOO:    Bu t  I  want  to  reverse  the  quest ion  to  

members  o f  the  execut ive  or  the  CEO tha t  was present  and  

tha t  i s  ve ry  l i ke l y  why we addressed the  mat te r  to  h im o r  

re fe r red  i t  to  h im.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   And. . .   Okay so ,  what  were  you  

expect ing  h im to  do?  

MS NAIDOO:    I  th ink  the  in ten t ion  was fo r  h im to  prov ide  

more  in fo rmat ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  
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MS NAIDOO:    That  was ve ry  c lea r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

MS NAIDOO:    I  remember  one o f  the  robust  th ings was 

tha t  dur ing  or  p r io r  to  th is  pa r t i cu la r  meet ing ,  we were  

constant ly  to ld  about  the  so-ca l l ed  cost  coa l  m ines and  

how we were  invest ing  a l l  th is  money.  

 And a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  every  year,  we wou ld  g i ve  

them the i r  budget  and thereaf te r  we wou ld  a lso  pay fo r  the  

coa l  wh ich  d id  no t  make sense because you d id  no t  own  

these mines,  they  were  owned by  o ther  par t ies  bu t  you l i ke  10 

bas ica l l y  runn ing  them.   I t  was l i ke  sor t  o f  a  neck lease.    

 And we had an  issue w i th  tha t .   So when th is  

mat te r  came to  us ,  i t  was l i ke  as  i f  we were  to ld  now you 

need to  increase th is ,  pay more  money,  you do not  have to  

budget .   So how you ca re  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    So  go and get  us  more  in fo rmat ion .   And 

one o f  the  th ings tha t  we d iscussed.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    Was i f  th is  company is  hav ing  d i f f i cu l t y,  can 20 

Eskom then not  take  a  shareho ld ing  in  the  company,  no t  

anybody e lse ,  Eskom so tha t  Eskom can use the  coa l  tha t  

i t  needs and thereaf te r  se l l  o r  expor t  the  coa l  tha t  i t  does 

not  need because you are  a l ready do ing  tha t  fo r  the  cost  

p lus  m ine.  
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 And i f  you look a t  the  m inutes  tha t  i s  re f lec ted  and  

i t  says  then the  mat te r  was re fer red  to  Mr  Mole fe  fo r  

fu r ther  in fo rmat ion .   That  was i t .   As  s imp le  as  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    There  was no  mal ice  or  there  were  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    No . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS NAIDOO:    . . .a  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  ind ica ted . . .  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

MS NAIDOO:    . . . l i ke  a  s t ra tegy.   You know as Dr  Ben sa id .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    That  was the  fu r thest  th ing  f rom our  m inds.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   No,  no  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS NAIDOO:    And in  the  submiss ion  i t se l f  was in tense.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Leave the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  as ide  

fo r  a  moment .   In  the i r  p roposa l  by  OCM was inc reas ing  

the  pr i ce  o f  coa l  f rom R 150,00 per  ton  to  R 442 ,00 per  

ton .   So tha t ,  you were  say ing ,  was too  much fo r  the  board .  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   So you re fer red  the  mat te r  to  20 

Mr  Mole fe .   From Mr Mole fe  to  come back w i th  th is  

in fo rmat ion .  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.   The minutes  is  c lea r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    Fo r  h im to  ge t  us  more  in fo rmat ion .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  more  in fo rmat ion .  

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And does he do tha t?  

MS NAIDOO:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    He d id  no t?  

MS NAIDOO:    Okay so  what  t ransp i red  is  tha t .   I  d id  no t  

know –  the  mat te r  never  came back to  the  board .   We had 

var ious board  meet ings thereaf te r.   When the  Commiss ion  

is  now send ing  me quest ions as  to  whether  Mr  Mole fe  

repor ted  th is  mat te r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  in  2020? 

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  in  November.   You guys sent  me  

quest ions fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  2020.  

MS NAIDOO:    . . .on  the  9 t h  o f  November.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja?  

MS NAIDOO:    So  I  then s ta r ted  go ing  th rough  a l l  the  

m inutes  aga in  and I  p icked up  on the  m inutes  o f  the 

10 t h  o f  September,  there  is  a  submiss ion  fo r  a  CEO’s  

repor t .   And in  the  CEO’s  repor t  he  ta lked about  th is  20 

par t i cu la r  t ransac t ion  and tha t  he  had,  I  th ink ,  cance l led  or  

I  do  no t  know the  exact  de ta i l s .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    Bu t  he  adv ises tha t  the  negot ia t i ons  had  

s topped or  someth ing  l i ke  tha t .    
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  we were  l ook ing  a t  ear l ie r  on .  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.   So le t  me exp la in  to  you what  

happened over  there .   The 10 t h  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    No.   No,  wa i t .   [ laughs]   You want  to  

exp la in  what  happened,  what?  

MS NAIDOO:    On the  9 t h  o f   -  o r  the  10 t h  o f  September  

where  I  p icked i t  up  tha t  there  was  ment ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  be fore  you do tha t .   Before  you do  

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  th is  i s  what  happens when you lead 10 

the  lawyer.   [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ laughs]  

MS NAIDOO:    Cha i r,  I  have wa i ted  fo r  yours  to  s i t  on  th is  

cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    To  come and tes t i f y.   [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]  

MS NAIDOO:    You unders tand?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Take i t  easy Ms Na idoo.   [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  Wel l ,  be fore  you go in to  tha t .   I t  i s  

because when I  read your  a f f idav i t  and I  am look ing  fo r  

where  you are  dea l ing  w i th  th is  p repayment  o r  ra ther  th is  

meet ing .   Ja ,  i t  is  on  page –  i t  s ta r ts  on  page 269 .35.   No,  
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tha t  i s  your  main  a f f idav i t .   Eskom Bund le  14 (A ) ,  page 

269.35 go ing  ove r  to  page 269.36.    

MS NAIDOO:    Sor ry,  what  page d id  you say?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    269.  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Po in t  35 .   269.36.   Ja ,  Eskom Bund le 

14 .   So paragraph 87,  i t  jus t  goes r igh t  in to  the  issue.    

MS NAIDOO:    Okay I  am here .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You are  he re?  

MS NAIDOO:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  i t  i s  a l r igh t .   But  the  parag raph 87 

reads:  

“The board  d id  no t  have enough in fo rmat ion  a t  

the  t ime to  make  a  dec i s ion  on  the  mat te r  and 

there  were  too  many unanswered quest ions.  

Eskom a lso  had growing concern  issues wh ich  

p layed a  ro le  in  me be ing  caut ious to  commi t .  

We s imply  request  Mr  Mole fe  to  come back 

w i th  more  in fo rmat ion .  

S ince we had been appo in ted  as  the  board  and 20 

we f ina l l y  had a  CEO who was more  present ,  i t  

seemed the  log i ca l  th ing  to  do . ”  

 So the  mat te r  i s  re fe r red  to  h im.   And i f  you tu rn  

the  page to  269.37.   Paragraph 92 says:  

“ I t  was expected fo r  the  CEO to  tab le  the  
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submiss ion  bu t  I  cannot  reca l l  tha t  i t  ac tua l l y  

was tab led  to  the  board .  

I  have rev iewed subsequent  m inutes  and cou ld  

no t  f ind  any d iscuss ion . ”  

 Paragraph 83:  

“The cur ren t  ag reement  was in  p lace  unt i l  

2018 and tha t  i s  the  agreement  be tween  

Eskom and OCM at  the  cur ren t  p r i ce .  

Eskom wou ld  con t inue rece iv ing  such a  supp ly  

un t i l  an  agreement  was conc luded .  10 

I  was not  aware  o f  the  fac t  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  

te rm inated d iscuss ions w i th  OCM but  on ly  

found out  much la te r  a f te r  my res ignat ion . ”  

 And your  res ignat ion  was 30 June 2016.  

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  on tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Na idoo,  tha t  second sentence in  

parag raph 93:    20 

“Eskom wou ld  cont inue rece iv ing  such a  

supp ly  un t i l  an  ag reement  was conc luded. ”  

 You mean a  new agreement?  

MS NAIDOO:    No,  the  cur ren t .   So the  agreement  was in  

2018.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   I t  had not . . .   Ja ,  bu t  there  was a  

cur ren t  agreement ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  cor rec t  there  was a  cur ren t  agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So what  d id  you mean unt i l  an  

agreement  was conc luded?  

MS NAIDOO:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You say:  

“Eskom wou ld  cont inue rece iv ing  such a  

supp ly  un t i l  an  ag reement  was conc luded. ”  

MS NAIDOO:    I t  wou ld  have mean t  a  new agreement .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    Because remember,  they come to  you fo r  an  

addendum.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja-no,  tha t  i s  what  I  am ta lk ing  about .  

MS NAIDOO:    Okay.   So perhaps . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    To  say,  d id  you mean a  new agreement?  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  the  amendment  on  the  increase.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no .  

MS NAIDOO:    Oh,  okay.   Oh,  sor ry.   You are  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  the  mean ing  o f  what  you say.  20 

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  you are  r igh t .   You are  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because i f  you are  –  i f  there  i s  a  cur ren t  

agreement  . . . [ in tervenes]   
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MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  you are  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .and you are  rece iv ing  a  coa l  supp ly  in  

te rms o f  tha t  document  Eskom wou ld  cont inue rece iv ing  

coa l  supp ly  un t i l  an  ag reement  was conc luded 

…[ in tervenes]  

MS NAIDOO:    You are  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Does not  make sense.  

MS NAIDOO:    No,  you a re  r igh t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS NAIDOO:    I  wou ld  mean a  new agreement ,  cor rec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  so  your  supp lementary  w i l l  a lso  

…[ in tervenes]  

MS NAIDOO:    Inc lude tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :   . . .need to  dea l  w i th  tha t .   Yes,  Mr  

Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Thank you,  Cha i r.   That  

sentence,  Ms Na idoo,  i s  impor tan t  fo r  a  d i f fe ren t  reason or  

another  impor tan t  reason.   I f  you  knew and are  s ta t ing 

here  tha t  the  cu r ren t  ag reement  and tha t  i s  the  ag reement  

be tween Eskom and OCM wou ld  cont inue o r  was in  p lace  20 

in to  2018 a t  the  cur ren t  p r ice ,  Eskom wou ld  cont inue  

rece iv ing  such a  supp ly  un t i l  an  agreement  was conc luded,  

wh ich  i s  a  new agreement .   In  o ther  words,  the  s ta tus  quo  

remains  un t i l  2018,  un t i l  you  conc lude another  ag reement .   

And hav ing  sa id  tha t ,  le t  us  see what  happens here  
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because the  board  then w i l l  have to  exp la in  g iven tha t  fac t  

how does i t  dea l  w i th  –  or  ra ther,  exp la in  how you –  the  

manner  in  wh ich  you dea l t  w i th  the  submiss ion  fo r  a  

p repayment  o f  R1.6  b i l l i on  in  December  2015.   So Mr  

Mole fe  has te rm inated the  coopera t ion  ag reement .   You 

say you d id  no t  know about  tha t .   He has g i ven  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  do  say no  so  tha t  tha t  goes  

in to  the  record .   When you shake your  head i t  w i l l  go  in to  

the  record .  10 

MS NAIDOO:    No,  no ,  so  bas ica l l y  I  do  no t  reca l l  the  

mat te r  coming back to  me to  say tha t  he  te rm inated  

because I  th ink  tha t  was the  quest ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    D id  he  come back to  say to  us  tha t  he  

te rm inated and no tha t   …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Not  even te rm inated but  he  has to  

come back to  you  to  g ive  feedback .  

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because he is  g i ven the  mat te r  to  go  20 

get  more  in fo rmat ion  and g i ve  to  the  board  because there  

are  unanswered  quest ions or  quest ions tha t  cannot  be  

answered by  the  team.  

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  so  –  now he has to  come back to  
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you  but  he  does not .  

MS NAIDOO:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  Ju ly  he  te rm inates  the  ag reement ,  

you come to  learn  about  i t  on ly  a f te r  your  res ignat ion  f rom 

the  board .    

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A f te r  30  June 2016.  

MS NAIDOO:    In  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s… 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  when read ing  the  Pub l ic  

Pro tec tor ’s  repor t .  10 

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Which  is  in  November.  

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    20 . .?  

MS NAIDOO:    ’16 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:  2016.   So tha t  m inute ,  what  i s  i t ,  tha t  

lega l  repor t  wh ich  Ms K le in  re fer red  us  to  i s  no t  par t  o f  

your  ev idence.    

MS NAIDOO:    Which  lega l?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  no t  the  lega l  repor t ,  the  CE repor t  20 

wh ich  has the  lega l  par t .  

MS NAIDOO:    Oh yes,  i t  i s  in  my submiss ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  i t  in  your  submiss ion?  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  i t  i s ,  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  the  very  next  page.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  bu t  you on ly  came to  know about  
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tha t  …[ in te rvenes ]  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    …now when we gave you the  request  

fo r  in fo rmat ion  .  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  so  on  your  quest ions,  when you asked  

me. . .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    I  had to  go  th rough  a l l  my minutes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    Because I  d id  no t  want  to  m iss  someth ing  10 

and then Advocate  Se leka cross-quest ions me.   So when I  

went  th rough every th ing  I  no t iced on the  10  September  

m inutes  there  was a  submiss ion  and the  CEO’s  repor t  had  

th is  repor t  about  OCM.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    So  I  went  –  tha t  was in  the  submiss ion  

papers ,  then I  went  to  look  a t  the  m inutes .   The minutes  

says the  CEO’s  repor t  i s  no ted ,  the  board  members  go t  i t  

la te ,  they have not  read i t -  I  am not  sure  exact ly  no t  read  

i t ,  bu t  the  impress ion  is  imp l ied . . .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  r igh t ,  yes .  

MS NAIDOO:    That  we have not  read i t .   We can go back,  

read i t  and then rever t  to  h im.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    To  be  honest  w i th  you,  Cha i r,  tha t  was a  two  
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day  breakaway.   I  d id  no t  go  back and read h is  repor ts ,  you  

know?  And le t  me te l l  you  how tha t  meet ing  or ig ina ted ,  the  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No.   No,  no .  

MS NAIDOO:    Sor ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Bar ry  sa id  I  shou ld  cont ro l  you.  

MS NAIDOO:    Sor ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  shou ld  do  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    We wi l l  ask  Mr  Roux to  in te rvene.  

MS NAIDOO:    To  c la r i f y,  you know,  I  was not  10 

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  he  sa id  i f  I  do  no t  he  w i l l  in te rvene 

and s top  you.   Ja ,  okay,  so  you came to  know about  the  

te rm inat ion  when  you read the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor ’s  repor t .   

But  the  quest ion  is  th is ,  wh ich  is  what  we asked Ms K le in ,  

we asked Dr  o r  P ro f  Na idoo,  how is  tha t  the  board  d id  no t  

fo l low up w i th  the  execut ive  a f te r  the  mat te r  i s  re fe r red  to  

h im,  wh ich  is  a   ser ious mat te r,  invo lves lo ts  o f  money,  and  

what  i s  genera l l y,  we have to ld ,  regarded as  a  key power  

s ta t ion ,  Hendr ina  power  s ta t ion ,  why does the  board  no t  20 

fo l low up?  

MS NAIDOO:    Adv Se leka,  a  very  t ransact iona l  mat te rs  

ac tua l l y  came to  the  board  and in  h inds igh t  –  I  ha te  us ing  

tha t  word  bu t  i t  i s  t ru th fu l  in  the  sense tha t  the  mat te rs  t ha t  

d id  go  to  the  board ,  even be low our  th resho ld ,  seems to  be 
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a l l  the  mat te rs  in  content ion  tha t  we are  s i t t ing  and  

d iscuss ing  now.   So what  happened on the  23  Apr i l ,  i t  

wou ld  have been an ac t ion  i tem and i t  shou ld  have 

inva r iab l y  been ca l led  up  a t  the  next  meet ing  because i t  

au tomat ica l l y  ge ts .   I  was not  the  Cha i r  o f  the  board  so  I  

can rea l l y  no t  exp la in  as  to  why th is  mat te r  was no t .   I  was 

the  Cha i r  o f  b i l l s  and recovery,  so  I  unders tood the  process 

tha t  i t  was my respons ib i l i t y  and duty  to  make sure  tha t  I  

go  th rough these  minutes ,  tabu la te  the  ac t ion  i tems and 

make sure  tha t  i t  goes to  the  next  meet ing .   I  rea l l y  cannot  10 

exp la in  th is  to  you.   

 Then I  th ink  somet ime in  about  June/Ju ly  I  go t  

appo in ted  to  BTC,  so  tha t  was the  ve ry  f i r s t  t ime 

t ransact iona l  mat te rs  s ta r t ing  coming to  me but  p r io r  to  

tha t  I  do  no t  reca l l  very  –  or  any  mat te rs  coming to  me,  

th is  may have been one iso la ted  mat te r  and f rom there ,  

be tween tha t  pe r iod  to  June/Ju l y  we were  dea l i ng  w i th  

Denton ’s ,  we were  dea l ing  w i th  the  execut ives ,  we were  

dea l ing  w i th  the  go ing-concern  cr i s is ,  the  las t  th ing  wou ld  

have been a  t ransact iona l  i ssue and I  wou ld  have had to  20 

have some sor t  o f  in te res t  in  th is  mat te r  fo r  me to  go  back  

and say bu t  I  am wai t ing  fo r  you to  come back w i th  a  rep ly,  

i t  i s  an  opera t iona l  mat te r,  we gave i t  to  the  CEO and we 

le f t  i t  w i th  h im.  

 I  do  even reca l l  the  September  meet ing ,  o r  I  cou ld  
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be  m is taken,  o r  August ,  where  i t  came to  the  board  tha t  we 

were  be ing  too  opera t iona l  and tha t  we need to  s tep  back  

and le t  the  execu t ives  do  the i r  job .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MS NAIDOO:    And tha t  i s  m inuted.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

MS NAIDOO:    And I  cor rec t  tha t  a t  par l iament .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  okay …[ in tervenes]  

MS NAIDOO:    So  I  can c lear l y  unders tand why i t  was –  bu t  

I  cannot  answer  fo r  Dr  Dan,  he  was the  Cha i r  a t  tha t  t ime.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   So the  shor t  answer  i s  you do not  

know why he d id  no t  come back.  

MS NAIDOO:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Or  why the  board  d id  no t  fo l low up.   

You do not  know why the  board  d id  no t  fo l low up.   

MS NAIDOO:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because the  p repayment  o f  R1.6  b i l l i on  

i s  a lso  a  t ransact iona l  mat te r,  i s  i t  no t?   

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And i t  came to  the  board .  20 

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:     And the  board  dec ided i t  overn igh t  

and by  round rob in .   

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wi thout  a  mee t ing .    
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MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wi thout  d iscuss ing  i t  amongst  

yourse l ves.   Yes,  the  Cha i r  was say ing  do  not  nod ,  speak  

to ;  the  m icrophone.    

MS NAIDOO:    Sor ry,  Cha i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So you say yes?  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Le t  us  dea l  w i th  th is  because –  

so  the  impress ion ,  as  I  sa id  to  Ms K le in ,  i s  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  

i s  coming there  on  a  p lacement ,  i f  you  l i ke ,  so  he  is  be ing  10 

sent  to  Eskom.   Mr  Sa l im Essa has spoken about  h im a t  a  

meet ing  in  2014 tha t  you w i l l  see  how power fu l  we are  and 

we have dec ided who is  go ing  to  be  the  CEO of  Eskom,  in  

2014,  to  one o f  the  w i tnesses who came here ,  Mr  Beste r,  

and he says Mr  Mole fe  i s  go ing  to  be .    

 When in  March 2015 Mr  Matona  is  on  suspens ion  

fo r  reasons tha t  the  board  members  who have come here  

have not  been ab le  to  exp la in  and Mr  Matona i s  f igh t ing  to  

come back and f igh t ing ,  mean ing  he is  tak ing  lega l  ac t ion  

to  come back …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka,  do  no t  fo rgo t  what  you  

wanted to  say.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  I  th ink  tha t  some o f  the  board  

members  have sa id  they be l ieve  tha t  the  suspens ions were  
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jus t i f ied  because there  was to  be  an  inqu i ry   I  th ink  some –  

I  do  no t  know i f  some might  no t  have gone a long w i th  tha t ,  

bu t  where  I  do  reca l l  qu i te  c lear l y  i s  tha t  many,  i f  no t  a l l  

the  board  members  who have tes t i f ied  he re ,  have s t rugg led  

to  exp la in  the  ex i t  o f  the  th ree  execut ives  tha t  have been  

suspended and I  th ink  the  re ten t ion  o f  one,  Mr  Koko.   So I  

jus t  thought  I  do  no t  want  any member  o f  the  board  who 

has tes t i f ied  to  say you made a  sweep ing  s ta tement  tha t  

they a l l  cou ld  no t  exp la in  the  suspens ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  thank you,  Cha i r.   So ja ,  they d id  10 

have reasons tha t  were  no t  re la ted  to  what  was s ta ted  in  

the  le t te rs  o f  suspens ion  and g iven to  the  members .  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  o f  course  you can say –  there  is  

no th ing  wrong i f  you say they have g iven exp lanat ions tha t  

in  you r  v iew are  no t  sus ta inab le  i f  tha t  i s  what  you th ink .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  jus t  wanted to  be  care fu l  tha t  we do not  

say  they have no t  been ab le  to  exp la in  suspens ions when  

a t  leas t  some o f  them have sa id  we l l ,  we though t  tha t  in  

te rms o f  the  fac t  tha t  there  was go ing  to  be  th is  inqu i ry,  we  20 

thought  tha t  i t  was an acceptab le  reason fo r  the  execut ives  

who headed those por t fo l ios ,  tha t  they shou ld  be  

suspended pend ing  the  f ina l i sa t ion  o f  the  inqu i ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  course  whether  o r  no t  tha t  i s  . . .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Sound.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Susta inab le  reason,  i s  another  ma t te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  thank you.   So tha t  c la r i f i ca t ion  

accepted,  Cha i r.   So wh i le  Mr  Matona is  on  suspens ion  and  

f igh t ing  to  come back and hav ing  taken lega l  s teps ,  tha t  i s  

what  i s  meant  by  f igh t ing  to  come back,  on  the  17  Apr i l  

2015 Min i s te r  Lynne B rown makes the  announcement  tha t  

she had dec ided –  she has taken a  dec is ion  to  second Mr  

Mole fe  w i th  immedia te  e f fec t  to  Eskom.   So there  is  no  

wa i t ing  o r  awa i t ing  o f  the  ou tcome o f  Mr  Matona ’s  i ssue 10 

and seek ing  to  reso lve  tha t  i ssue before  mak ing  tha t  

dec is ion  to  have Mr  Mole fe  come to  Eskom.   And when he 

comes th ree  days,  o r  whatever  days i t  i s ,  cer ta in l y  a t  the 

very  most  –  i f  he  s ta r ted  on  the  17  Apr i l  then a t  the  very  

most  on  the  23 r d  he  has s i x  days a t  Eskom,  he  is  g i ven th is  

mat te r.   He is  g iven th is  mat te r  wh ich  has been hand led  by  

the  ins ide  team a t  Eskom s ince 2014 and I  be l ieve  dat ing  

back to  2013.   But  he  is  new,  the  mat te r  does not  go  back 

to  the  team,  i t  goes to  h im wi th  the  ins t ruc t ion ,  i f  you  want ,  

o r  the  dec i s ion  by  the  board  tha t  he  shou ld  ge t  in fo rmat ion  20 

and come back.   But  he  does no t  do  tha t ,  he  does not  

come back to  the  board .  

MS NAIDOO:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    One.   Two,  he  te rm inates  what  was 

be ing  negot ia ted  and there ,  the  board  does not  fo l low up 
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w i th  h im,  p lease repor t  back,  because we have g i ven you  

th is  mat te r,  i t  i s  about  supp ly  o f  coa l  to  one o f  our  key  

power  s ta t ions .    

And I  sa id  th is  t o  Ms K le in ,  w i th  tha t  impress ion  i n  

m ind,  tha t  he  has been sent  to  Eskom,  the  inc identa l  

impress ion  wh ich  ar ises  on  the  par t  o f  the  board  is  t ha t  the  

board  may have ac ted  in  concer t  w i th  h is  conduct  i n  tha t  i t  

c rea ted  an env i ronment  to  enab le  h im to  do  what  he  d id  in  

fa i l ing  to  ca l l  h im up to  account  on  what  the  board  had 

dec ided he shou ld  do .   What  wou ld  be  your  comment?  10 

MS NAIDOO:    I  th ink  tha t  i s  such an unfa i r  comment  on  

the  bas is  tha t  when th is  mat te r  came to  us  on  the  23  Apr i l ,  

you  are  ask ing  me fo r  a  200% increase,  you are  ask ing  me 

to  wr i te  up  a  R2 .1  b i l l i on  pena l ty,  you are  ask ing  me to  

ex tend I  th ink  fo r  another  25  years  and I  was the  Cha i r  o f  – 

I  was not  the  Cha i r,  I  was member  o f  b i l l s  and recovery  

and I  remember  tha t  went  to  the  l i fe  o f  m ines wou ld  be ,  so  

I  unders tood tha t  you cou ld  never  en ter  in to  a  cont rac t  w i th  

a  par t i cu la r  company over  the  l i fe  o f  m ine and th is  

par t i cu la r  submiss ion  i t  says  tha t  you wou ld  need th is  ex t ra  20 

25 years  to  m ine,  I  th ink  i t  was f i ve  years  le f t ,  bu t  i t  i s  very  

l i ke ly  we can ex tend i t  bu t  there  i s  no  answer  te l l ing  me 

how you are  go ing  to  ex ten t  i f  the  m ine is  go ing  to  exp i re  

f i ve  years  ear l ie r.   So we made a  log ica l  [ ind is t inc t ]  f rom 

an economica l  pe rspect ive  to  say no ,  so r ry,  we need more  
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in fo rmat ion .   There  was abso lu te l y  no  mal ice  o r  in ten t ion  to  

push back  on  i t  and p lay  in to  the  hands o f  Mr  Essa or  Mr  

Mole fe  in  te rms o f  what  you have imp l ied .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Ja ,  we l l  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS NAIDOO:    Because,  Adv Se leka,  there  has been so  

many issues on the  pena l ty  w i th  Tegeta  and the  reduct ion  

and I  know ce r ta in  board  members  are  be ing  sued.   

Imag ine  i f  I  had  agreed to  wr i te  up  R2.1  b i l l i on  the  23  

Apr i l ,  I  wou ld  be  sued.   So le t  us  be  fa i r  to  th is  board .   On 

what  was p resented to  us  was not  fa i r,  i t  was not  the  r igh t  10 

submiss ion ,  i t  was not  the  r igh t  s i tua t ion  fo r  Eskom and I  

s t i l l  s tand by  tha t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  the  submiss ion  d id  no t  inc lude an  

ex tens ion  fo r  25  years ,  the  submiss ion  proposed tha t  you,  

as  Eskom,  shou ld  reserve  a  r igh t  …[ in tervenes]  

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  reserve  a  r igh t ,  i f  you  so  w ish ,  to  

ex tend i t .  

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    To  tha t  per iod .   That  was the  p roposed,  20 

tha t  you reserve  tha t .  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  bu t  I  take  tha t  va lue  o f  the  reserv ing  o f  

a  r igh t  ve ry  ser ious ly. ,   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    You know,  there  a re  lega l  imp l ica t ions.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Ms Na idoo,  what  i s  the  po in t  

you want  to  make  about  the  reserva t ion  o f  the  r igh t?  

MS NAIDOO:    For  me the re  were  ser ious lega l  

imp l ica t ions to  tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was?  

MS NAIDOO:    There  were  lega l  imp l ica t ions to  tha t  i f  

Eskom commi t ted  to  i t  in  advance  because then i t  wou ld  

have meant  tha t  Eskom wou ld  have had to  negot ia te  or  a t  

leas t  g i ve  them an oppor tun i ty  to  negot ia te  i n  te rms o f  

[ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    P lease look th i s  s ide .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  face  tha t  s ide .  

MS NAIDOO:    Oh,  sor ry,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   What  was wrong w i th  a  

proposa l  tha t  Eskom shou ld  rese rve  to  i t se l f  the  r igh t  to  

ex tend?  

MS NAIDOO:    The r i gh t  was re fer red  to  a  pr ice ,  i t  was 

l inked to  a  pr ice  and the  pr ice  was  s t i l l  R475 …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:   4  …[ in tervenes ]  

MS NAIDOO:    520.   So i t  was a  r igh t  tha t  went  fu r ther.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    What  was your  unders tand ing  o f  what  

…[ in tervenes]  

MS NAIDOO:    That  about  20  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  hang on,  hang on.   What  was  

your  unders tand ing  o f  what  wou ld  go  w i th  the  reserva t ion  
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o f  tha t  r igh t ,  you reserve  the  r i gh t  and then what?  

MS NAIDOO:    So  bas i ca l l y  Eskom had agreement  w i th  

them for  2018,  they were  negot ia t ing  or  look ing  a t  

ex tend ing  i t  fo r  another  10  years .   Cor rec t?   10  years .   But  

the  in ten t ion  was to  ac tua l l y  ge t  –  reserve  a  r i gh t  fo r  

another  25  years  bu t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Was tha t  the  r igh t  to  ex tend the  

cont rac t?  

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    R igh t ,  was there  a  cond i t ion  a t tached to  10 

tha t  o r  anyth ing?  

MS NAIDOO:     I  do  no t  remember  any …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  tha t  rese rva t ion  o f  the  r igh t?  

MS NAIDOO:    I  do  no t  remember  a l l  o f  i t  bu t  I  know there  

was a  pr i ce  a t tached to  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    The th ing  i s  normal ly  i f  you  reserve  a  

r igh t ,  on  the  face  o f  i t  tha t  i s  in  your  favour  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because you can dec ide  to  us  i t  o r  you 

can dec ide  no t  to  use i t  in  the  fu tu re .  20 

MS NAIDOO:    Bu t  then you are  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  un less  you say the re  was someth ing  

e lse  l inked to  the  rese rva t ion  o f  the  r igh t  tha t  wou ld  

pre jud ice  Eskom in  some way and tha t  i s  what  I  want  to  

unders tand.  
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MS NAIDOO:    So  the  rese rva t ion  o f  the  r igh t  had a t tached 

to  i t  a  p r ice ,  a  p r ice  tha t  was fa r  h igher  than the  150.   I t  

was even h igher  than the  442.   So fo r  me …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  d id  i t  say?  

MS NAIDOO:    I  do  no t  know the  exact  f igure .  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  was your  unders tand ing  o f  what  he  

sa id .  

MS NAIDOO:    So  my unders tand ing  wou ld  be  tha t  i f  I  

commi t  now,  a t  a  la te r  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  you rese rve  your  r igh t  as  Eskom.  10 

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    R igh t?  

MS NAIDOO:    A few years  la te r  down the  l ine  Eskom 

management  wou ld  take  tha t  r i gh t  on  and con t inue to  

supp ly  them a t  th is  increased  pr ice  as  opposed to  

benchmark ing  a t  tha t  s tage whe ther  tha t  was the  r igh t  

p r ice .   So I  was not  in  favour  o f  the  long te rm agreement  o r  

the  commi tment ,  as  such,  I  wou ld  have p re fer red  a  shor te r  

agreement  o f  10  years  or  shor te r  and then benchmark  in  

te rms o f  what  was the  cu r ren t  economic  s i tua t ion  a t  tha t  20 

s tage.  I  jus t  fe l t  i t  was too  much o f  a  commi tment  on  the  

l i kes  o f  the  m ine.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  am not  su re  o f  how much  

impor tance th is  par t i cu la r  po in t  m ight  be ,  Mr  Se leka,  we  

might  no t  need to  spend much t ime on i t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  no ,  cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  the  r igh t  to  reserve  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    We can move on,  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  the  r igh t  to  reserve  is  –  the  benef i t  

o f  the  one who reserves i t  can  exerc i se  i t  o r  no t  ex tend i t .   

Ms Na idoo,  then –  okay,  we have gone th rough tha t ,  le t  us  

look  a t  the  submiss ion  -  e igh t  months  la te r  the  board  is  

approached w i th  th is  submiss ion  fo r  a  p repayment  o f  R1.6  10 

b i l l i on .   The board  is  approached by  emai l  in  the  even ing  o f  

8  December  2015,  the  emai l  comes f rom Ms Suzanne 

Dan ie ls  in  wh ich  she is  ask ing  the  board  to  make a  

dec is ion  by  12  noon on the  9  December  2015.   

 The two members  o f  the  board  who tes t i f ied  be fore  

you have sa id  t ha t  they unders tood tha t  submiss ion  to  

requ i re  a  prepayment  to  be  made  in  respect  o f  o r  to  OCM 

owned by  G lencore .   Now th is  i s  a  dec is ion  tha t  wou ld  be  

made by  way o f  a  round rob in .   How d id  you unders tand  

tha t  submiss ion  to  requ i re  the  board  to  dec ide?  20 

MS NAIDOO:    I f  I  reca l l ,  the  submiss ion  was based  on the  

fac t  tha t  OCM was now in  bus iness rescue,  the  bus iness  

rescue …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Face… 

MS NAIDOO:    Sor ry,  Cha i r.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

MS NAIDOO:    The company was now in  bus iness rescue,  

there  were  d i scuss ions w i th  the  bus iness  rescue 

prac t i t ioner  and a t  the  t ime when the  submiss ion  had come 

to  us ,  by  tha t  s tage there  was no f ina l  dec i s ion  made by  

the  bus iness rescue prac t i t ione r  in  te rms o f  a  commi tment .   

I  th ink  there  was a  c lause tha t  sa id  tha t  the  bus iness  

rescue p rac t i t ioner  had a t  the  prev ious meet ing  sa id  tha t  

they wou ld  cont inue w i th  the  ag reement  o r  they  wou ld  

remove the  company out  o f  the  bus iness rescue process 10 

but  there  was no  commi tment .   Then the re  was ind ica t ion  

tha t  one o f  the  par t i cu la r  m ines,  I  th ink  i t  i s  

Koper fon te in (? )  tha t  was be ing  supp l ied  by  OCM,  tha t  

agreement  was coming to  an  end  in  January  2016 wh ich  

wou ld  have been the  fo l low ing month .   So there  was a  

sense o f  insecur i t y  in  te rms o f  coa l  fo r  the  par t i cu la r  power  

s ta t ion  and the re fore ,  th is  p re -purchase was coming to  us  

to  have a  commi tment  and a  secur i t y  o f  coa l .   So my 

unders tand ing  o f  Eskom’s  bus iness  is  tha t  one o f  ou r  bas ic  

assets  i s  our  coa l  s tockp i le .   Wi thout  tha t  you can never  –  20 

you cannot  p rac t ice ,  you cannot  de l i ver  on  your  s t ra tegy,  

so  you needed to  ensure  tha t  you had constant ly  su f f i c ien t  

coa l .   You do not  buy i t  on  an  ad hoc  bas i s  you buy i t  on  a  

long te rm p lan .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  



10 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 341 
 

Page 226 of 294 
 

MS NAIDOO:    So  the  unders tand ing  was a t  tha t  s tage  

there  was a  lack  o f  commi tment  f rom th is  company because 

o f  the i r  f inanc ia l  imp l ica t ions and  tha t  th is  pa r t i cu la r  p re-

purchase w i l l  g ive  you a  commi tment  where  we cou ld  now 

have the  coa l ,  because i t  i s  a l ready ava i lab le ,  i t  i s  on  

s tockp i le ,  by  pre -purchas ing  the  coa l  bas ica l l y  be  

[ ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    So  tha t  was my unders tand ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  so  wh ich  en t i t y  was go ing  to  10 

rece ive  the  prepayment?  

MS NAIDOO:    OCM.   I  have put  tha t  in  my a f f idav i t .   And,  

Judge,  to  the  quest ion  tha t  you  put  to  Ms K le in  about  

whethe r  we not iced the  proposed owner.   To  be  –  I  am 

go ing  to  be  very  honest  w i th  you,  I  d id  no t .   I  have  looked 

a t  i t  a  hundred t imes s ince  then as  to  who cou ld  I  have 

missed tha t  word  and I  can on ly  exp la in  the  reason ing  

beh ind  the  head ing  tha t  i t  sa id  a  pre-pu rchase to  OCM.   

Throughout  the  submiss ion  they ta lk  about  the  p roposed 

purchaser,  so  obv ious l y  my unders tand ing  is  the  proposed  20 

purchaser  i s  somebody tha t  w i l l  want  to  buy bu t  in  te rms –  

they never  re fe r red  to  a  proposed owner  th roughout  the  

submiss ion  where  they ta lk  about  i t .   So  I  am go ing  to  be  

abso lu te l y  honest  w i th  you,  I  d id  no t  no t ice .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  we l l  you probab ly  heard  what  I  sa id  
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to  Ms K le in  and maybe to  Dr  Na idoo in  the  morn ing  as  we l l  

tha t  –  we l l ,  what  i s  t roub l ing  me about  i t  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS NAIDOO:    I s  how i t  makes sense.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  t roub les  me more  in  regard  to  you,  

because you are  a  lawyer.  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  I  to ta l l y  accept  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  th ink  Ms K le in  i s  a  char te red 

accountant ,  there  wou ld  be  very  –  I  th ink  the  two  o f  you 

wou ld  be  more  o f  less  the  same in  te rms o f  –  surpr is ing ly.   

I  mean,  tha t  par t  wh ich  –  o f  the  submiss ion  tha t  requested  10 

the  board  to  au thor ise  i s  a  ve ry  impor tan t  po in t .  

MS NAIDOO:    O f  cou rse .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because before  you come to  the  meet ing 

or  to  d iscuss th is  by  way o f  –  o r  look  a t  th is  by  way o f  a  

round rob in ,  you wou ld  know tha t  the  management  i s  

ask ing  the  board  fo r  an  au tho r isa t ion  o f  someth ing ,  number 

one.  Number  two,  an  au tho r isa t ion  fo r  p repayment .   So 

obv ious ly  i f  you  are  be ing  approached as  a  board  to  

au thor ise  someth ing ,  you know there  a re  ve ry  impor tan t  

per t inent  quest ions,  what  must  I  au thor ise?  Why  must  I  20 

au thor ise  i t .   How is  au thor is ing  i t  in  the  in te res ts  o f  

Eskom?  I f  i t  i s  a  payment  obv ious l y  you want  to  know to  

whom?  Are  they  en t i t led  i t?   A re  there  grounds tha t  they 

shou ld  be  –  we shou ld  au thor i se  payment  to  tha t  pa r t i cu la r  

en t i t y.   Those quest ions are  pe r t inent  quest ions tha t  shou ld  
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a r i se  in  your  m ind and when you read the  submiss ion  you 

are  look ing  fo r  answers  to  those quest ions.   So I  cer ta in ly  

wou ld  have expec ted tha t  you wou ld  p ick  tha t  up .   

 Dr  Na idoo sa id  he  d id  see but  he  d id  no t  –  I  th ink  

the  e f fec t  o f  h is  ev idence may we l l  be  tha t  he  d id  no t  th ink  

tha t  –  he  d id  no t  apprec ia te  i t s  s ign i f i cance,  I  am not  sure ,  

I  do  no t  want  m isrepresent  what  he  sa id ,  bu t  he  sa id  he  

saw tha t  the  paragraph 2 .1 .2  o f  the  submiss ion  re fers  to  

the  ag reement  fo r  p repayment  be ing  conc luded w i th  the  

proposed owners  o f  OCM.  10 

 Ms K le in  d id  no t  say  she d id  no t  see i t ,  I  th ink  she  

sa id  she probab ly  saw i t .   I  th ink  she cou ld  no t  remember  

bu t  she d id  no t  say  I  d id  no t  see i t ,  she  sa id  I  p robab ly  saw 

i t  and i t  may we l l  be  tha t  –  I  th ink  she sa id  tha t  the  focus  

fo r  her  was on the  fac t  tha t  OCM was in  a  bus iness rescue  

s i tua t ion  and then they wanted to  secure  the  supp ly  o f  

coa l .    

Dr  Ngubane was  here ,  I  am not  sure  whether  we  

asked h im how he cou ld  have missed i t  bu t  he  sa id  a lso  as  

fa r  as  he  was concerned he in tended – he  was author i s ing  20 

a  prepayment  to  go  to  OCM under  G lencore ,  no t  Tegeta .   

So you have a  p ro fessor,  P ro f  Na idoo,  you have a  

char te red accountant ,  you have  a  med ica l  doc tor,  Dr  

Ngubane,  you have an a t to rney,  they a l l  –  some maybe se  

th is ,  these two words,  p roposed owners ,  bu t  do  no t  a t tach  
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to  them the  s ign i f i cance they shou ld  a t tach  to  them.   

Maybe o the rs  do  not  see them.   So i t  i s  –  and ye t  you are  

dea l ing  w i th  a  very  la rge  amount .   I  th ink  Ms K le in  may  

have suggested ind i rec t l y  tha t  in  the  contex t  o f  Eskom 

maybe R1,6  b i l l i on  i s  no t  so  la rge  and amount ,  you know,  

bu t  I  th ink  most  peop le  w i l l  agree  tha t  i t  i s  a  la rge  amount  

tha t  you are  dea l ing  w i th .   The la rger  the  amount  you are  

be ing  asked to  au thor i se ,  the  greater  the  du ty  on  you to  

doub le-check tha t  th is  money w i l l  go  to  the  r igh t  en t i t y,  the  

r igh t  person.   You do not  want  to  au thor ise  money tha t  10 

shou ld  go  to  A ,  you author ise  i t  to  go  to  B .   You 

unders tand?  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So tha t  i s  par t  o f  what  i s  t roub l i ng  me,  

how i t  i s  poss ib le  tha t  in  a  board  o f  –  I  th ink  I  was to ld  

about  12 .  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And tha t  i s  apar t  f rom the  investment  

and f inance commi t tee .   Of  course  the i r  members  wou ld  be  

members  o f  the  board  as  we l l .  20 

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i t  wou ld  mean tha t  they go t  two 

chances o f  look ing  a t  the  same th ing ,  f i rs t l y  a t  the  l eve l  o f  

the  commi t tee  and second ly  a t  the  leve l  o f  the  board  and  

nobody sa id  hang on,  hang on,  hang on,  we are  be ing  



10 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 341 
 

Page 230 of 294 
 

asked he re  to  au thor i se  a  p repayment  to  p roposed owners ,  

no t  cu r ren t  owners ,  why is  tha t?   What  i s  go ing  on? 

MS NAIDOO:    Cha i r,  i f  I  had  not iced tha t ,  the  f i rs t  

quest ion  wou ld  have been who are  the  p roposed owner,  so  

I  can def in i te ly  t e l l  you  because o f  the  head ing  sa id  pre-

purchase to  OCM,  tha t  s tuck  in  my  head,  no t  tha t  I  am not  

t ry ing  to  f ind  an  excuse fo r  wha t  I  d id  in  te rms  o f  not  

rea l i s i ng  p roposed orde r,  bu t  I  d id  send quest ions  to  Ms  

Dan ie ls  on  th is  mat te r,  she d id  no t  ment ion  my quest ions,  

she d id  ment ion  tha t  I ’d  you know s igned o f f  on  the  mat te r  10 

and then I  sa id  re fer  i t  to  IFC.   I  d id  ask  her  t he  two 

quest ions was f rom the  cu r ren t  ag reement  –  can I  re fe r  you 

to  the  o ther?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Maybe fo r  the  Cha i rperson you can,  o r  

fo r  the  record .     

MS NAIDOO:   Yes,  f rom the  cur ren t  documents ,  does not  

mean we buy ing  coa l  a t  the  pr ice  in  te rms o f  our  cur ren t  

agreement  and the  person tha t  has app l ied  was e i ther  Mr  

Matshe la  Koko or  Ano j  S ingh…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  come c loser  to  the  m ic .  20 

MS NAIDOO:    Oh,  so  the  e i ther  two execut ives  tha t  

rep l ied  was Mr  Ano j  S ingh or  Matshe la  Koko because she  

has got  tha t  on  the  emai l ,  she has go t  Ano j /  Matshe la  and 

they say conf i rmed.   The coa l  p r i ce  i s  asked to  the  cur ren t  

coa l  supp ly  agreement  w i th  OCM.   



10 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 341 
 

Page 231 of 294 
 

So  I  am be ing  to ld  th is ,  then I  sa id  fu r ther  adv ice  i f  

there  i s  any o ther  means o f  ge t t ing  coa l  e l sewhere  and th is  

i s  no  o the r  means o f  ge t t ing  coa l  fo r  h im a t  a  p r ice  o f  

R150,00 pe r  ton ,  the  open inqu i ry  fo r  the  smoke coa l  

qua l i t ies  fo r  A rnot  power  s ta t ion  has no t  y ie lded  pos i t i ve  

resu l ts .   So I  th ink  when I  go t  th is ,  you know,  the  f i rs t  

impress ion  was tha t  th is  i s  coming f rom OCM.   So i t  has  to  

be  OCM.   The pr i ce  i s  now R150,00 as  opposed to  t he  442  

they were  ask ing  in  Apr i l  and tha t  was what  I  thought  was 

the  r igh t  dec i s ion  fo r  Eskom and tha t  i s  why I  do  no t  come 10 

back on  tha t  bu t  i t  s t i l l  does not  take  away tha t  I  d id  

no t…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Except  tha t  i t  is  remarkab le  to  say the  

least .  

MS NAIDOO:    Bu t  w i th  due respect  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  hang on.   You accept  tha t  i t  i s  

qu i te  remarkab le  tha t  f rom the  ent i re  Board  does not  look  

l i ke  anybody 's  says anyth ing  abou t  there  i s  someth ing  tha t  

needs c la r i f i ca t ion  he re ,  on  the  po in t  o f  who is  go ing  to  

benef i t ,  who a re  we author is ing  payment  to  p re-payment  20 

to?  

MS NAIDOO:    Bu t  I  th ink  we were  a l l  th ink ing  on  the  same 

l ine .   That  i s  why  I  eventua l l y,  I  th ink  they were  a l l  th ink ing  

on  the  same l ines .   That  i s  why I  see…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    How is  i t  poss ib le  so  many  peop le ,  
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h igh l y…[ in te rvene]  

MS NAIDOO:    Because i t  i s  seen as  a  round rob in  the  

n igh t  be fo re  you are  g i ven a  few hours .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  hang on Ms Na idoo,  h igh l y  

qua l i f ied  peop le  and I  th ink  some o f  them qu i te  

exper ienced.  

MS NAIDOO:    I t  i s  the  urgency o f  the  mat te r  and the  fac t  

tha t  i t  was not  a t  a  meet ing ,  so  i t  was no d iscuss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  even tha t  u rgency they  d id  no t  

quest ion  d id  they? 10 

MS NAIDOO:    No because -  we l l ,  I  can  te l l  you  I  d id  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i ssue cou ld  have wa i ted  even  

another  week f rom what  I  can see.   So why d id  they no t  

say  hang on,  we need more  t ime,  th is  th ing  can wa i t .   Why  

do you rush us  to  make a  dec is ion  on  th is ,  they d id  no t  do 

tha t .   They do no t  –  i t  i s  in  b lack  and wh i te ,  i t  i s  in  f ron t  o f  

them.  a l l  o f  them do not  say  hang on what  i s  go ing  on  

here?  

MS NAIDOO:    I  cannot  answer  fo r  o ther  members  bu t  fo r  

me persona l ly  because I  was a l ready in  tenure  fo r  about  20 

four  months ,  eve ry th ing  a t  Eskom was very  urgent  and i t  

had to  be  dea l t  w i th  immedia te ly.   I  mean you wou ld  see  

f rom my a f f idav i t ,  I  gave you lo t s  o f  examples  where  we 

had round rob ins  fo r  hundreds o f  m i l l i ons  o f  rands,  and 

they had to  be  dea l t  w i th  overn igh t  o r  as  a  round rob in .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you were  the  Board ,  you were  fo r  a l l  

in ten ts  and purposes the  u l t imate  au tho r i t y  a t  Eskom.  

Nobody shou ld  rush you to  mak ing  dec is ions,  where  you  

are  no t  sa t is f ied  tha t  there  is  reason to  make a  dec is ion  

now,  now,  now.  

MS NAIDOO:    The percept ion  is  tha t  i t  i s  t rue .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  you  need more  t ime,  you can get  more  

t ime.  

MS NAIDOO:    I t  was not  p layed out  tha t  way.   You were  

to ld  tha t  i f  you  do  not  do  th is ,  we go in to  load shedd ing .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  who te l l s  the  Board?  

MS NAIDOO:    Management ,  management  i s  opera t iona l  

we a re  no t  opera t iona l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  because you are  no t  ask ing  

quest ions.  You a re  no t  say ing  to  them,  what  i s  go ing  to  

happen i f  we on ly  dec ide  th i s  in  a  week?  You do  not  ask  

those quest ions.   

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  we dea l t  w i th  u rgent  mat te rs  u rgent ly,  

we d id  no t  push  back tha t  i s  t rue .   But  w i th  due  respect  

Judge th is  was never  s igned o f f  to  OCM,  I  mean to  Tegeta .  20 

Th is  was s igned o f f  to  OCM,  IFC s igned th is  to  OCM.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  th is ,  th is  submiss ion  tha t  you  

author ised says proposed owners  o f  OCM,  i t  does  not  say  

cur ren t  owners  o f  OCM.  

MS NAIDOO:    Bu t  eventua l l y  IFC he ld  a  meet ing  and i t  
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was ag reed OCM.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  tha t  does not  jus t i f y  th is  fa i lu re  on  

the  par t  o f  th is  Board  to  apprec ia te  tha t  they were  be ing  

asked to  au tho r ise  payment  to  p roposed owners  as  

opposed to  cur ren t  owners .   I t  was the re  in  f ron t  o f  them,  i t  

was b lack  and wh i te .   You cannot  b lame management  and  

say they d id  no t  te l l  you  tha t  they were  ask ing  you to  

au thor ise  pre-payment  to  Tegeta .  

MS NAIDOO:    Wi th  due respect  Judge I  am not  b laming 

them,  I  th ink  was  the  dra f te r  was very  c leve r.   The  dra f te r  10 

was ex t remely  c lever  to  make the  head ing  OCM.  ta lk  about  

OCM,  ta lk  about  p roposed purchaser  and then in  one  

c lause ta lk  about  the  proposed order,  bu t  yes  I  do  accept .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  in  a  c lause tha t  h is  en t i t led  o r  she is  

en t i t led  whoever  i t  was,  i s  en t i t led  to  expect  you to  look  a t  

because i t  i s  about  what  you a re  asked to  do .   

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .   I  do  accept  tha t  was an overs igh t  

on  my par t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay a l r igh t .   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  thank you Cha i r.   Ja ,  Ms Na idoo  20 

on the  one hand  those quest ions  ar ise  tha t  why urgency 

and the  convo lu t ion  be tween the  two ent i t ies  wh ich  one 

ac tua l l y  was go ing  to  ge t  payment  bu t  i f  the  Board  

unders tood i t  to  be  OCM as under  G lencore ,  tha t  s ta tement  

in  tha t  parag raph  93 o f  your  a f f idav i t ,  becomes even more  
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s ign i f i can t .   I t  says :  

“The cur ren t  agreement  was in  p lace  unt i l  2018. ”  

And you are  ta lk ing  about  th is  in  the  contex t  o f  the  

coopera t ion  agreement ,  the  mat te r  be ing  re fer red  to  Mr 

Mole fe  and he was go ing  to  come back to  the  Board ,  he  d id  

no t .   And then you go to  the  pa rag raph:  

“The cur ren t  agreement  was in  p lace  unt i l  2018 a t  a  

cur ren t  p r ice ,  Eskom wou ld  cont inue rece iv ing  such 

a  supp ly  un t i l  an  agreement  was conc luded. ”  

I f  tha t  was the  case as  we know f rom the  ev idence tha t  i t  10 

was in  fac t  the  case.   I t  even makes a  mockery  o f  the  

a l legat ion  o f  u rgency because the  s ta tus  quo remain  un t i l  

the  new cont rac t  w i l l  be  conc luded .   Do you see tha t?  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  bu t  th ings changed in  December  they  

were  in  bus iness rescue,  they were  no t  in  bus iness  rescue 

on the  23 r d  o f  Apr i l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  bu t  bus iness rescue s tar ted  in  

August  2015.  

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t ,  be fore  the  submiss ion  in  

December.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Way before .  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  i f  there  was any urgency,  you say 

the  urgency was tha t ,  there  w i l l  be  load shedd ing? 

MS NAIDOO:    So  what  my unders tand ing  was tha t  there  
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was a  lack  o f  commi tment  on  the  coa l  supp ly.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    And fo r  me they needed a  commi tment  f rom 

th is  par t i cu la r  company tha t  they were  go ing  to  supp ly  so  

much o f  coa l  a t  a  cer ta in  p r i ce .   And w i th  due respect ,  

Advocate  Se leka bus iness rescue i s  no t  the  idea l  s i tua t ion  

fo r  any company.   So when I  am be ing  to ld  tha t  th is  

company is  bus iness rescue,  they have agreed tha t  they  

w i l l  con t inue w i th  the  agreement  bu t  as  o f  the  da te  o f  the 

submiss ion ,  there  is  no  f ina l  commi tment .   But  here  is  a  10 

proposa l  be ing  pu t  fo rward  by  the  bus iness  rescue 

prac t i t ioner  on  the  pre-purchase fo r  R150 a  ton ,  as 

opposed to  the  442mi l l ion ,  I  de f in i te ly  saw i t  as  a  be t te r  

dea l  fo r  Eskom.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  I  ge t  los t  in  your  exp lanat ion .  

MS NAIDOO:    Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  fas t  and you know wi thout  b reaks,  

bu t  le t  me –  le t  us  say th is  to  you,  you make the  dec is ion  

fo r  th is  p re-payment .   You be l iev ing  i t  to  be  go ing  to  OCM 

for  bus iness rescue.   You are  mak ing  a  dec is ion  fo r  a  p re-20 

payment  o f  1 .6  b i l l i on  whereas e igh t  months  ear l ie r  you  

re fuse to  increase R150,00 pe r  ton .    

The pr i ce  o f  a  R150,00 to  442,  four,  four  two wh ich  

wou ld  have been a  month l y  payment ,  as  opposed to  a  pre-

payment  o f  a  huge amount  a l l  a t  once.   How d id  you dea l  
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w i th  th is?  

MS NAIDOO:    There  is  the  d i f fe rence Cha i r  because in  

Apr i l  23 r d  when i t  came,  there  was  an increase.   Yeah,  i t  i s  

a  cont inuat ion  o f  an  ex is t ing  agreement  a t  the  same pr i ce  

and you have been to ld  tha t  you w i l l  now save I  th ink  i t  

was l i ke  R215mi l l ion  on  the  bas i s  tha t  you a re  ge t t ing  i t  a t  

the  same pr ice  because you wou ld  address,  I  th ink  i t  was  

the  work ing  cap i t a l .   

So my unders tand ing  was tha t  i f  you  budgeted 

R100,00 per  month  go ing  fo rward ,  i f  you  pre-pa id  tha t  10 

same R100,00 or  R20,00 out  o f  tha t  R100,00 in  December  

the  fo l low ing month  you w i l l  on l y  be  incu r r ing  R80,00.   So 

i t  i s  no t  l i ke  you are  tak ing  money out  o f  your  budget  

because you have a l ready commi t ted  to  th is  par t i cu la r  

budget  a t  th is  p r i ce  bu t  I  thought  i t  was a  good dea l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  in  add i t ion  to  tha t  by  th is  t ime in  

December  2015,  G lencore  had a l ready made a  dec is ion  

tha t  i t  i s  tak ing  OCM out  o f  bus iness rescue,  i t  w i l l  fund 

OCM and OCM w i l l  comply  w i th  the  agreement  to  the  very  

end.   20 

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  bu t  then the  submiss ion  says as  o f  the  

da te  o f  the  submiss ion  they had not  go t  a  commi tment .   So 

i t  does g ive  you these two c lauses,  g iv ing  you the  

impress ion  tha t  they have made these promises bu t  they  

have not  commi t ted  to  i t  and we are  now in  the  s i tua t ion .   
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So  my unders tand ing  a t  the  t ime was tha t  there  i s  no  f ina l  

commi tment  and th is  i s  what  now they are  commi t t ing  to 

and yes s ign  a  dea l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The commi tment  was made on the  -   

conveyed in  the  meet ing  o f  the  24 t h  o f  November  2015 and  

f ina l l y  reso lved by  the  end o f  t ha t  month  and cer ta in ly  

g iven to  Mr  Koko  on the  1s t  o f  December  2015.   D id  you  

know o f  tha t  fac t?   

MS NAIDOO:    No,  there  i s  no  da te ,  the  way i t  i s  dra f ted  i t  

g ives  you the  impress ion  tha t  you had these in i t ia l  10 

meet ings and then noth ing  t ransp i red .   And then you  are  a t  

the  s i tua t ion  now where  you have not  heard  f rom them and  

everybody 's  qu ie t .   So I  am hear ing  obv ious l y  the  da tes  fo r  

the  f i rs t  t ime.   I  can  on ly  te l l  you  what  was  in  the  

submiss ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  see ,  so  on  the  1 s t  o f  December  2015  

there  is  a  meet ing  tak ing  p lace in  Swi tze r land convened by 

Min is te r  Zwane w i th  Mr  G lasenberg  and Min i s te r  Zwane i s  

there  w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa.   You  wou ld  no t  have  known 

about  tha t  meet ing?  20 

MS NAIDOO:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  meet ing  dea ls  w i th  the  

t ransact ion  o f  Tegeta  acqu i r ing  OCM.   The mee t ing  is  

conc luded on the  2n d  o f  December  when Mr  Tony Gupta  is  

p resent  and they  have ca l led  Mr  Ephron the  CEO of  OCM 



10 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 341 
 

Page 239 of 294 
 

South  A f r i ca  to  come and jo in  them.   The dea l  i s  verba l l y  

conc luded;  d id  you know tha t?   

MS NAIDOO:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    For  the  pr ice  o f  R2.1b i l l i on  purchase 

pr ice  by  Tegeta  o f  OCM.   And what  we see he re  i t  i s  a  

para l le l  p rocess,  what  i s  happen ing  w i th in  Eskom and what  

i s  happen ing  outs ide  o f  Eskom.   And i t  seems to  have been 

tha t  Eskom is  tak ing ,  the  Board  o f  Eskom is  tak ing  

dec is ions tha t  were  in tended to  ass is t ,  f inanc ia l l y  ass is t  

Tegeta  in  the i r  acqu is i t ion  o f  OCM.   Your  comment?  10 

MS NAIDOO:    The Board  d id  no t  do  tha t ,  i f  tha t  was the  

in ten t ion  o f  management  o r  execut ive  i t  was not  the  

in ten t ion  o f  the  Board .   Cha i r,  Advocate  Se leka lead  

ev idence w i th  Ms Dan ie l ,  I  th ink  i t  was w i th  Ms  Dan ie l  

concern ing  cor respondence between Mr  S ingh and I  th ink  i t  

i s  E r ic  Wood.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  r igh t .  

MS NAIDOO:    Concern ing…[ in tervene]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And Mr  A tu l  Gupta .  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  i t  was concern ing  the  submiss ion  20 

document .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  r igh t .  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes and they d id  no t  want  the  submiss ion  to  

go  to  IFC,  they d id  no t  want  i t  go  to  the  DPE.   Advocate  

Se leka my le t te r  to  Ms Dan ie ls  on  the  9 t h  o r  the  8 t h  o f  
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September  was exact ly  in  cont rad ic t ion  o f  what  Mr  Essa so  

ca l led  Mr  Gupta ,  Mr  Er ic  Wood was say ing ,  I  asked  tha t  i t  

goes to  IFC,  I  sa id  tha t  we need DPE approva l  and I  sa id  

we need PFMA approva l .   

So I  f ind  tha t  ac tua l l y,  i t  i s  to ta l l y  a  cont rad ic t ion  o f  

what  I  d id .   I  ac ted  aga ins t  what  they were  want ing  to  

happen and there  is  no  way I  cou ld  have known tha t  th is  

agreement  was s igned.   And i f  th is  agreement  was  s igned 

between these two compan ies ,  why wou ld  they br ing ing  the  

submiss ion  to  us  and say ing  tha t  the  bus iness  rescue  10 

prac t i t ioner  wants  to  save OCM.   The submiss ion  in  i t se l f  

i s  inco r rec t  o r  i s  uneth ica l  i f  there  was an agreement  as  

you sa id  now fo r  the  sa le  o f  th is  par t i cu la r  company.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka I  th ink  you have a  quest ion ,  

so  I  w i l l  ho ld  back.   I  thought  you  might  want  to  fo l low up 

on tha t  answer.   Okay,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ask  the  quest ion ,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    How wou ld  you  know i f  the  Board  was  

fac i l i ta t ing  th is  dea l  i f  they  d id  no t  say  so  in  the  meet ing?   

You say the  Board  d id  no t  do  tha t .  20 

MS NAIDOO:    Okay,  when I  say  the  Board  okay I  cannot  

speak fo r  everybody.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you speak fo r  yourse l f ,  ja  

MS NAIDOO:    My apo log ies ,  le t  me speak fo r  myse l f .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  on ly  way we are  go ing  to  f ind  ou t  

about  everybody is  to  ask  everyone.   Nobody 's  asked me 

fo r  four  years ,  what  I  d id .   I  d id  no t  know about  the  so  

ca l led  cor respondence tha t  was  happen ing  between a l l  

these pa r t ies .   I  found out  about  i t  th ree  weeks before  -  a  

few weeks ago.   So i t  i s  -  I  f ind  i t  very  ha rd  to  accuse  

peop le  o f  th ings  when there  is  ev idence out  there  and  

peop le  a re  jus t  ignor ing  i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  you see Ms Na idoo and you may 

have heard  me say th is  in  the  past  i f  you  l i s tened o r  10 

watched when some o f  the  members  o f  the  Board  o r  o the r  

fo rmer  members  o f  the  Board  o f  Eskom of f i c ia l s  who had  

tes t i f ied .   There  i s  someth ing  tha t  seems to  suggest  tha t  a t  

leas t  some o f  the  members  o f  th is  Board ,  th is  Eskom Board  

may have been work ing  in  cahoo ts  w i th  peop le  who were  

ou ts ide  o f  Eskom,  or  may have known o f  some agenda on  

the  par t  o f  peop le  who were  ou ts ide  o f  Eskom and who 

were  a l low ing themse lves to  advance tha t  agenda,  and i t  

may be tha t  some members  o f  the  Board  d idn ’ t  know about  

those agendas bu t  may have dea l t  w i th  ce r ta in  dec is ions o f  20 

them hav ing  –  ce r ta in  dec is ions wh ich  enab led  an agenda,  

o r  some agenda tha t  be longed to  peop le  who were  ou ts ide  

o f  Eskom.  

 So some might  have known what  was go ing  on and  

o thers  m ight  have been go ing  on  w i th  what  they be l ieved 
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was the i r  normal  du ty.     

MS NAIDOO:   Can I  say  someth ing?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Not  now.    You have th is  s i tua t ion  Mr  

Se leka po in ted  out  to  you,  in  2014 Mr  Sa l im Essa,  

acco rd ing  to  Mr  Johan Bester  –  i s  i t  Johan Bester?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Hank.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hank Bester  who gave ev idence here ,  in  

2014 a l ready te l l s  Mr  Hank Beste r  tha t  the  next  boss fo r  

Eskom wi l l  be  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe .   A t  tha t  t ime Mr  Br ian  

Mole fe  i s  Group CEO at  Transnet  and he has no t  app l ied  10 

fo r  any job  a t  Eskom and somebody is  appo in ted  as  Group  

CEO of  Eskom,  tha t  i s  Mr  Matona,  I  th ink  a t  the  end o f  –  a t  

the  beg inn ing  o f  October.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    1  October  2014.  

CHAIRPERSON:    1  October  2014 ,  be fore  tha t  he  was DG 

o f  the  Depar tmen t  o f  Minera l  Resources i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    He was a t  the  DPE.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  a t  DPE ja ,  bu t  he  was DG.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    DG at  DPE.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  a t  DPE,  so  he  is  fami l ia r  w i t h  Eskom 20 

a lso .   So w i th in  a  few months wh i le  he  was s t i l l  t ry ing  to  

p resent  h is  tu rnaround p lan  fo r  Eskom he is  suspended 

together  w i th  o ther  execut ives  under  c i r cumstances tha t  

ra ise  quest ions and he goes to  the  Labour  Cour t ,  t r ies  to  

f igh t  to  come back and accord ing  to  h im he is  to ld  by  one 
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o f  the  members  o f  the  Board  tha t  go ing  back to  Eskom is  

ou t  o f  the  quest i on  fo r  h im,  they can ta lk  about  money but  

no t  go ing  back.  

 The execut ives  concerned as  suspended they ge t  –  

i t  i s  sa id  tha t  they have done noth ing  wrong  and a  l o t  those 

execut ives  you know sa id  we were  pushed out  and they are  

g iven a  lo t  o f  money and I  asked Board  members  who have 

tes t i f ied  he re  why d id  you g i ve  them such a  lo t  o f  money to  

leave i f  as  fa r  as  you were  concerned they cou ld  s t i l l  come 

back,  you had no prob lem wi th  them.   They cou ldn ’ t  g ive  10 

me any sa t is fac to ry  exp lanat ion .     

 And then o f  course  on the  17 t h  o f  Apr i l  2015  

Min is te r  Brown announces,  as  a  med ia  conference,  

announces tha t  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  w i l l  be  seconded to  Eskom 

as Act ing  Group CEO.    I  th ink  Mr  Mole fe  i s  hard l y  th ree  

months  there ,  o r  two months / th ree  months ,  then accord ing  

I  th ink  one w i tness o r  some a f f idav i t  I  may have read he  

then recommends  to  the  Eskom Board  tha t  Mr  Ano j  S ingh 

who was a t  Transnet  as  the  CFO must  a l so  be  brought  to  

Eskom,  and there  is  a  huge quest ion  as  to  how Ms Mole fe ,  20 

Tsho lo fe lo  Mole fe ,  who was F inanc ia l  D i rec tor  in  March 

2015 a t  Eskom,  there fore  CFO of  Eskom,  how she got  to  be 

inc luded in  the  l i s t  o f  execut ives  to  be  suspended because 

a t  the  meet ing  o f  the  8 t h  o f  March 2015 a t  Mr  Zuma’s  

o f f i c ia l  res idence in  Durban where  the  i ssue  o f  the  
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suspens ion  o f  the  Eskom execut ives  was d iscussed and Mr  

Zuma i s  sa id  to  have been there  as  we l l  in  the  d i scuss ion ,  

Ms Tsho lo fe lo  o r  her  por t fo l io  was not  inc luded,  and then  

Ms Dan ie l s  and Mr  –  what  i s  the  name Abraham,  Masago,  

say  tha t  on  the  10 t h  o f  March,  one day before  the  day on  

wh ich  the  Board  suspended these execut ives  they bo th  say 

separa te ly  t hey were  ca l led  by  Mr  Koko to  a  meet ing  a t  

Me l rose  Arch  where  they met  w i th  Mr  Koko and Mr  Sa l im 

Essa,  separa te  meet ings,  and they  were  to ld  the  names o f  

the  execut ives  who were  go ing  to  be  suspended and fo r  the 10 

f i rs t  t ime Ms Mo le fe ’s  name was  inc luded and when the  

Min is te r  –  Min is te r  Brown,  a r r i ved  and came to  speak to  t  

he  Board  on  the  morn ing  o f  the  11 t h ,  she a lso  –  when she  

spoke about  the  suspens ions,  she  inc luded Ms Mo le fe  in  

te rms o f  he r  por t fo l io ,  she had not  been inc luded  in  the 

or ig ina l ,  and then  she when there  were  d iscuss ions  fo r  her  

to  leave between members  o f  the  Board  who were  

mandated by  the  Board  to  ta lk  to  he r,  the  Board  had g iven 

a  mandate  th rough those Board  members  who were  ta lk ing  

to  these execut ives  tha t  in  te rms o f  money i t  shou ld  be  I  20 

th ink  12  months ,  12  months  remunera t ion ,  no t  more  than  

tha t ,  she was not  p repared to  take  tha t ,  she res i s ted  

leav ing ,  bu t  ins tead o f  them say ing  okay come back 

because a f te r  a l l  they  were  no t  say ing  she had done  

anyth ing  wrong,  they inc reased the  o f fe r  to  her  I  th ink  to  
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1 .8 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    18 months Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  18  months,  ja ,  no t  1 .8 ,  18  months ’ 

sa la ry  and you ask the  quest ion  bu t  why,  why d id  you have 

to  pay so  much i f  you had no prob lem wi th  these  

execut ives  coming back,  and i t  becomes d i f f i cu l t  no t  to  say  

we l l  cou ld  i t  be  tha t  th is  who le  th ing  was p lanned,  tha t  Mr  

Mole fe  shou ld  be  brought  to  Eskom and maybe Mr  Ano j  

S ingh shou ld  be  brought  to  Eskom as we l l ,  bu t  o f  course  

they cou ldn ’ t  be  brought  there  i f  there  were  peop le  in  those  10 

pos i t ions ,  those peop le  needed to  leave and then  you go  

back to  Mr  Hank Bester ’s  ev idence tha t  a l ready in  2014 Mr  

Sa l im Essa to ld  h im tha t  you w i l l  see  how power fu l  we are ,  

Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  i s  go ing  to  be  the  next  boss o f  Eskom.  

 So –  and then you th ink  about  emai ls ,  ev idence tha t  

has been led  he re ,  emai ls  tha t  seems to  come f rom peop le  

ou ts ide  o f  Eskom and outs ide  o f  government ,  send ing  

messages,  send ing  emai ls  to  Eskom inc lud ing  an  emai l  tha t  

went  to  Dr  Ngubane who was Cha i rperson o f  the  Eskom 

Board ,  wh ich  was in  e f fec t  d ic ta t ing  to  the  Board  what  20 

dec is ion  they shou ld  take  about  cer ta in  newspapers  wh ich  

had pub l i shed ce r ta in  a r t i c l es  about  Eskom and Transnet ,  I  

can ’ t  remember  who e lse ,  and Dr  Ngubane has conf i rmed  

here  tha t  he  took  tha t  emai l  and went  th rough to  the  Board  

and the  Board  made exact ly  those dec is ions.  
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 So  I  am jus t  say ing  when you say the  Board  d id  no t  

in tend to  f ac i l i ta te  anyth ing  fo r  –  about  the  dea l  o f  Tegeta  

and Eskom,  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  some members  o f  the  Board  

knew o f  some agenda.  

MS NAIDOO:    Cha i r  I  can on ly  ask  tha t  you look a t  the  

ev idence and you  t rea t  a l l  o f  us  fa i r l y.   I t  has  been a  he l l  o f  

a  four  years  fo r  me,  I  am not  go ing  to  ge t  emot iona l  on  TV,  

bu t  we d id  no t  want  an  inqu i ry,  the  inqu i ry  was put  to  us  by  

the  Pres ident  and the  Min is te r.   We d id  no t  ask  fo r  the 

suspens ions,  tha t  was put  to  us  by  the  Min i s te r  and Mr  10 

Tsots i   On the  issues o f  the  suspens ions I  have addressed 

i t  in  my supp lement ,  you rea l l y  need to  l i s ten  to  t he  19 t h  

record ing ,  the  19 t h  o f  March record ing  se ts  the  p la t fo rm in  

te rms o f  how Mr  Tsots i  go t  the  m isdemeanours  and  I  th ink  

tha t  c rea ted a  p la t fo rm wh ich  sca red the  Board  members  

tha t  the  Execut ives  wou ld  have fa r  b igger  c la ims  aga ins t  

Eskom,  and I  know tha t  w i l l  be  dea l t  w i th  la te r,  bu t  i t  i s  in  

my supp lementa ry  a f f idav i t .  

 On the  issue o f  the  t ransact ions you can see now 

fo r  the  very  f i rs t  t ime on the  ev idence tha t  some o f  us 20 

pushed back and we were  work ing  in  favour  o f  Eskom,  so  I  

can on ly  p lead w i th  you to  look  a t  the  ev idence fo r  the  f i rs t  

t ime,  take  cogn isance o f  tha t  fac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    You know there ’s  numerous peop le  tha t  i t  
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repor ts  in  te rms o f  the  GAP ana lys i s  tha t  i s  p resented to  

you,  no t  a  s ing le  one o f  those peop le   have contac ted  me,  

ye t  I  t r ied  to  contac t  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You see par t  o f  the  reason why I  am 

te l l ing  you what  I  am te l l ing  you is  exact ly  to  be  fa i r  to  you,  

to  say th i s  i s  what  i s  go ing  on  in  my mind,  what  can you 

te l l  me,  you see tha t  i s  par t  o f  be ing  fa i r  to  members  o f  the  

Board ,  to  say I  am not  h id ing  f rom you what  i s  go ing  on  in  

my mind,  I  want  you to  in f luence my th ink ing ,  th is  i s  what  I  

am th ink ing .  10 

MS NAIDOO:    No,  I  do  respect  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  no t  f ina l .  

MS NAIDOO:   I  do  respect  tha t ,  and tha t  i s  why I  t r ied  to  

g ive  the  Commiss ion  as  much tang ib le  ev idence.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    I  am not  here  s i t t ing  on  th is  cha i r  accus ing  

peop le  o f  S ta te  Capture  o f  do ing  anyth ing ,  un less  I  have  

a t tached a  tang ib le  document ,  so  I  hope you w i l l  take 

cogn isance o f  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   Mr  Se leka we 20 

are  a t  quar te r  t o  s ix .    Le t  us  t a lk  about  how long we –  you 

s t i l l  need to  be  and we might  need to  take  a  shor t  

ad journment .    I  am not  necessar i l y  say ing  f in ish  now,  I  

jus t  want  tha t  we  a l l  have an idea  o f  how much longer  you 

w i l l  s t i l l  need.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  can  s t i l l  s i t  longer,  I  jus t  want  to  have  

an idea.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  don ’ t  want  to  s i t  un t i l  seven.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes espec ia l l y  some o f  the  mat te rs  

wh ich  have been dea l t  w i th  you know there  m ight  no t  be  a  

need to  go  a l l  over  th rough them aga in  bu t  a t  the  same 

t ime in  te rms o f  f a i rness i t  i s  impor tan t  to  g i ve  Ms Na idoo  a  

chance to  say someth ing ,  bu t  on  some o f  the  mat te rs  I  

guess I  mean she cou ld  even f in ish  a  response on  cer ta in  10 

po in ts  even by  way o f  a f f idav i t s ,  bu t  wh i le  we are  here ,  i f  

we can,  le t ’s  use  the  t ime as  much as  poss ib le .  

 So we have to  do  jus t i ce  to  the  issues even w i th  

whatever  t ime const ra in ts .  

MR SELEKA SC:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  what  i s  your  assessment?  

MR SELEKA SC:    I f  we don ’ t  s top  now . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  don ’ t  th ink  we shou ld  s top  now.   

MR SELEKA SC:    Then we cou ld  poss ib ly  f in ish  be fore  

ha l f  past  s ix .  20 

MS NAIDOO:   I  am f ine ,  bu t  my counse l  w i l l  need 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  le t  us  check w i th  you f i rs t  then we 

check w i th  your  counse l ,  a re  you f ine?  

MS NAIDOO:   Oh abso lu te l y.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay Mr  Roux?  

ADV ROUX:   I  am f ine .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  f ine  w i th  tha t ,  okay,  no ,  no  tha t  

i s  f ine ,  le t ’s  take  a  ten  m inutes  ad journment  now.  

ADVOCATE SELEKA SC:    Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then we come back and then we  

cont inue and t ry  and see i f  we a re  ab le  to  f in ish  by  ha l f  

past  s ix .  

ADVOCATE SELEKA SC:    Ja,  bu t  Cha i r  my es t ima t ion  is  i f  

we don ’ t  take  a  b reak.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  no ,  no  I  th ink  le t ’s  take  a  

break,  the  w i tness m ight  w ish  a  b reak.  

MS NAIDOO:   I  am f ine  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay we w i l l  take  a  ten  m inutes  break,  

we w i l l  bear  in  m ind what  you sa id ,  yes .  

 We ad journ .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes thank you Chai rperson.   Yes Ms 

Naidoo I  was paying at tent ion as you were using the word 

you pushed back.  I  do not  know is  i t  you as the board 

members or you in part icu lar please remember to put  on your  
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microphone that  you pushed back and I  am trying to see 

whether did you in fact  push back in regard to th is pre-

payment we are deal ing wi th because I  recal l  seeing your  

emai l  saying yes you approve but  s imply saying let  the 

matter go to IFC and … 

MS NAIDOO:   PFMA approval .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   PFMA approval .  

MS NAIDOO:   Yes and then whether  th is needs to go to the 

DPE because i t  was over the R1.5 bi l l ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Yeah but  where is the pushback?  10 

Because I  understand pushback to  be that  you would have 

been opposed to the decision being made.  

MS NAIDOO:   I  d id … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is that  r ight? 

MS NAIDOO:   No I  was not  pushed – I  was not  pushing back 

on the decision.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

MS NAIDOO:   I  d id support  the money to go to OCM. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:   But  I  pushed back in  terms of  you led 20 

evidence that  the part icular person that  was communicat ing 

wi th Eskom in terms of  the submission did what – wanted to 

avoid the matter  going up for discussion.   Wanted to avoid 

the matter going to IFC and in that  respect  I  had brought al l  

those scenarios back into the – into the si tuat ion and that  is 
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how this matter ended up going to IFC.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes just  face… 

MS NAIDOO:   Sorry Chai r  but  I  d id support  the t ransact ion.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:   I  d id bel ieve the money should go to OCM. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   Can I  just  interpose to complete 

an issue we discussed ear l ier on which should have been 

discussed I  was ment ioning because I  do not  want to forget .   

P lease do not  forget  your next  quest ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Were you present  or do you recal l  the 

meet ing that  I  was talk ing about ear l ier where Dr Ngubane 

as I  understand his evidence asked the board to consider  

making – taking the resolut ions that  were set  out  in some 

let ter or memo that  had come f rom outside of  Eskom? 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.   So. . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  was in relat ion to  the Mai l  and 

Guardian,  Ci ty Press.  

MS NAIDOO:   Correct .   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do not  know which other paper yes.  20 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you recal l  that? 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes I  do.   So we had a meet ing a week before 

in September where we had a d iscussion on the – in fact  the 

journal ist  were wr i t ing the wrong in format ion and g iv ing the 
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wrong informat ion out  and in  those minutes i t  is c lear ly 

ref lected for us to approach the journal ist .   I  th ink we even 

spoke about a gent leman cal led Mr Yel land because he was 

very proact ive on Eskom and we wanted to l ia ise wi th  him so 

that  he would g ive out  the r ight  in format ion and the whole 

intent ion was to get  South Afr ica on board of  understanding 

what was happening at  Eskom with the load shedding and 

whatever.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no,  no.  

MS NAIDOO:   That  happened a week before … 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Do not  – do not  into the contents of  the 

art ic les.  

MS NAIDOO:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   I  just  want to  – so you were present  –  

you at tended that  meet ing? 

MS NAIDOO:   That  meet ing… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Where the resolut ion was taken? 

MS NAIDOO:   No,  no.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh that  is what I  am interested in.  

MS NAIDOO:   The resolut ion was done via a Round Robin.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay but  you – you had… 

MS NAIDOO:   And why I  remember i t  is because i t  was on 

my daughter ’s bi r thday and we were in the US.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay thank you.  

MS NAIDOO:   So I  do not  remember us signing off  on i t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:   So I  do not  understand how a resolut ion was 

taken because about f ive of  us were in the US.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  are you saying that  you did not  take 

part  in that  Round Robin? 

MS NAIDOO:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MS NAIDOO:   No because we were away – we were 

overseas.   I  th ink i t  was something that  was you know going 

to happen or a resolut ion – but  we did not  s ign off  because 10 

as I  said we were overseas.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   Mr Seleka.  

MS NAIDOO:   And I  th ink Mr Koko has also said i t  was never 

implemented or something l ike that  I  heard in his evidence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja he said so ja.  

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chair.   The – yes Ms Naidoo 

perhaps – wel l  for what i t  is worth you know the emai l  of  20 

your  reply to Ms Daniels i t  is  on the 8t h of  December 2015 at  

hal f  past  seven where i t  says:  

“Hi  I  conf i rm my support  a Round Robin 

kindly ensure a l l  governance issues is  

compl ied wi th in terms of  PFMA and others 
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that  to  the regulat ions.   Does the value 

requi re i ts consent f rom DPE. The IFC 

commit tee has approved the purchase.   

Session contracts are in place for  the coal .   

Do you st i l l  need me to sign the document?  I  

do not  have access to a pr inter  just  now.   

Regards Viroshni . ”  

So there is no… 

MS NAIDOO:   There was no pushback on the t ransact ion but  

in terms of  what the impl icat ion was.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

MS NAIDOO:   Yes there was a pushback.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   In terms of? 

MS NAIDOO:   You led evidence that  th is  part icular  inter-

portal  person did not  want… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

MS NAIDOO:   So i t  was pret ty obvious f rom your evidence 

that  whoever was l ia is ing wi th Eskom did not  want th is  

matter d iscussed openly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  20 

MS NAIDOO:   They wanted to avoid a discussion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    And that  is why they insisted that  the matter 

does not  go to IFP. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes what Ms Naidoo is ta lk ing about are 
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those emai ls exchanged with Mr Anoj  Singh and Eric Wood 

and… 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  th ink they go – did they go to 

infoportal?  

MS NAIDOO:    I  do not  remember but  you put  i t  wi th Ms 

Daniels.   The person that  was… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No but  we talk ing the outside person.  

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Who was … 10 

MS NAIDOO:   Was emai l ing and advising that  th is  matter 

must  never – take out  the IFC submission i t  must  not  go to 

the DPE.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja but  i f  you talk ing pushback in that  

context  are you t ry ing to say to the Chairperson that  you 

knew that  th is was going on and you were pushing back on 

that? 

MS NAIDOO:   No I  only found out  about  i t  when you led 

evidence wi th Ms Daniels that  th is had t ranspi red and then I  

… 20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  – ja but  then pushback is a misnomer 

because you did not  know what th is (speaking over one 

another).  

MS NAIDOO:   No correct  yes.   But  you must  also remember 

the impl icat ion is that  th is board was helping in a part icular 
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company l ike Tegeta and we were not  and there is the 

evidence.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No but  you are not  asking for the matter  

to go to IFC you say that ;  that  IFC commit tee has approved 

purchase.  

MS NAIDOO:   Correct  which meant  they would have had to 

have a meet ing or  would have had to approve i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja and Ms Klein is also saying… 

MS NAIDOO:   Semat ic.   Semant ic.   At  the end of  the day I  

wanted IFC to approve i t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   Ms Klein also says that  is what  

she wanted.  

MS NAIDOO:   And that  is what happened.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No but  the… 

MS NAIDOO:   I t  d id go to IFC.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No but  were you aware that  she wanted 

i t?  

MS NAIDOO:   So – no I  do not  know she gave her ev idence.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

MS NAIDOO:   I  know Ms Daniels conf i rmed my emai l .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No your emai l  is  here.   Your – so the 

board then wi th al l  the quest ions the Chairperson has asked 

you,  I  have asked you has made this pre-payment decision 

R1.6 bi l l ion you say in your understanding i t  was going to 

OCM.  The next  day the 10t h of  December 2015 something 
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a larming takes place which is a conversion of  that  decision 

into a guarantee not  in favour of  OCM but in favour of  

Tegeta.   Was the board aware of  that? 

MS NAIDOO:   Absolute ly not .   We found out  about  i t  – there 

was a media br ief ing – i t  was a couple of  months af ter I  had 

even lef t .   There was a media br ief ing I  th ink i t  was Dr 

Ngubane and Mr Singh were si t t ing and one of  the journal ists  

asked Dr Ngubane I  th ink i t  was about the guarantee and he 

was taken aback and then I  saw f rom the media br ief ing Mr 

Singh explaining to him and then he explained what i t  was.   10 

No so none of  us knew about i t .   And i f  you see that  v ideo 

you can see he was l ike shocked.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You say you had already lef t?  

MS NAIDOO:   Yes I… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   You lef t .  

MS NAIDOO:   I  th ink I  def in i te ly lef t .   I  lef t  on the 30t h of  

June.   I  th ink this was af ter.   I  th ink i t  was even – i t  could 

have been af ter the Publ ic Protectors Report .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    

MS NAIDOO:   Because she did not  deal  wi th i t  in her report .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   I  have a faint  recol lect ion of  

something said in  Mr Pamensky’s aff idavi t  but  I  do not  have 

i t  here.   So I  wi l l  not  ment ion i t  because I  might  be confusing 

the two pre-payments.   Because he quest ioned – he said i t  

came out  in the newspaper – he read i t  somewhere and he 
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quest ioned sending an emai l  to the board members that  we 

should not  be rubber stamping – I  just  do not  recal l  where 

was his emai l .   I  hope we can check when the emai l  was 

sent .   My impression was that  emai l  was sent  before you 

res igned as a board member.  

MS NAIDOO:   So I  at tached in my aff idavi t  an annexure f rom 

Mr Pamensky which was sent  in I  th ink i t  was around 

June/July 205 where he addresses Mr Anoj  Singh 

appointment.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay not  that  one.  10 

MS NAIDOO:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No not  that  one.  

MS NAIDOO:   And he ment ions I  th ink rubber stamping there 

also because we were not  made aware of  Mr Singh – ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh the board was not  made aware of  his  

appointment.  

MS NAIDOO:   No not  at  that  stage.   We – that  – yes.   So 

that  emai l  was dated 24t h of  June 2015 we were made aware 

on the 25t h of  June.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   So Tegeta… 20 

MS NAIDOO:   But  by then i t  a l ready happened.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   Tegeta – Tegeta needed funds – 

needed funds to pay the R2.1 bi l l ion for the acquis i t ion of  

OCM and you have this guarantee issued in i ts favour on the 

10t h of  December which is the same date when they signing 
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the agreement for the sale of  shares of  OCM – in  fact  of 

OCH on the same date.   According to the evidence of  Mr 

Pearce Marsden Tegeta needed to show that  i t  has the funds 

to do the purchase and i t  needed to show the bank of  

consort iums – the consort ium of  banks because the 

consort ium of  banks was loaning money to OCH – OCM.  So 

when you look at  what was happening i t  would seem that  

ei ther the pre-payment decision or  the guarantee i tsel f  was 

meant to assist  Tegeta in showing that  i t  has the necessary 

funds to do the purchase.   Do you have any comment on 10 

that? 

MS NAIDOO:   On the basis Chair  of  that  submission 

proposed owner yes that  is the thing here.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  thank God IFC held a meet ing the 

next  day and the ir  minutes were absolutely clear that  the 

money goes to OCM.  So how they then faci l i tated a 

guarantee in the favour of  another  ent i ty that  is nowhere in 

th is t ransact ion is  beyond me.  But  that  was not  the intent ion 

of  the board and that  was not  what we signed off .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Did the board make a fol low up on 

the decision i t  had made? 

MS NAIDOO:   No so what happens wi th a Round Robin i t  

gets rat i f ied at  a  later  stage.   Af ter  the 8 t h of  September 

when I  sent  that  emai l  I  never heard back f rom Ms Daniels 
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so I  d id  not  know that  th is matter eventual ly went to IFC and 

that  th is happened. As I  said on that  part icular  media 

br ief ing I  found out  about  i t .   I  went  back and I  looked at  the 

submission I  found i t  and then when I  went to Parl iament I  

advised them that  you know I  had never been told or nobody 

came back to me and said even there was an IFC meet ing 

and this is what happened.  When I  was preparing for IFC – 

for Parl iament Ms Klein told me yes there was an IFC 

meet ing.  She sent  me the minutes and the one wi th  Dr Pat  

and that  is how I  knew about i t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes but  th is goes back… 

MS NAIDOO:   So i t  is  my understanding the matter  ended on 

the 8 t h of  December.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes let  us go back to December because 

the decision is made on the 9 t h of  – yours is actual ly given – 

your approval  is given on the 8 t h of  December.   So you did 

not  wai t  for twelve on the 9 t h to f ind out  i f  you made this IFC 

requi rement a prerequisi te for your decision you did not  wai t  

for i t  to be ful f i l led you gave your consent and then you say 

– you say semant ics that  IFC commit tee has approved the 20 

purchase.   From December 2015 to June 2016 when you 

ul t imately resigned is a per iod of  seven months.   What did 

you do in that  per iod to f ind out  what happened with th is 

massive amount of  a decision that  was made by the board by 

way of  a Round Robin? 
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MS NAIDOO:   So in my emai l  to be clear Advocate Seleka I  

said kindly ensure – ensure means you need to come back 

and val idate wi th  me that  these things had happened.  I  

know Ms Daniels  has argued in Parl iament that  the word 

ensure is not  subject  to.   But  i f  you google i t  i t  comes to you 

have val idate and come back to that  person.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:   So as a board member I  am te l l ing her to do 

this.  The r ight  th ing would have been for  her to come back to 

me and the fact  that  she fai led or did not  come back I  10 

assumed that  the matter had ended there.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes that  is r ight .  

MS NAIDOO:   And you must understand we get  so many 

t ransact ions i t  is not  – I  do not  always go back and fol low up 

and say what you know what happened here or whatever.  

Normal ly i t  w i l l  come back as an agenda i tem at  my next  

meet ing or i t  is re f lected in the minutes and then you enqui re 

what t ranspired on the matter.   I  mean I  showed you a 

screen shot  of  our meet ing for  two months there were over 

twenty meet ings.   So i t  is  – you know i t  is phenomenal how 20 

many meet ings we had which is – I  d id not  fo l low up.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So – oh he is busy I  am sorry.   Ja 

because I  was going to ask you what is the answer to the 

quest ion.   Nei ther  did the board fol low up.   But  why? 

MS NAIDOO:   Because… 
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ADV SELEKA SC:   But  why because… 

MS NAIDOO:   Because we assumed that  the matter  – as I  

said to you – I  said I  thought the matter had ended there and 

then.   But  the matter was never approved.   Remember i t  

would have to then go to DPE approval  and things l ike that .   

And i t  becomes an operat ional  issue.   I t  fa l ls back into an 

operat ional  issue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So are you saying i t  should not  in the 

f i rst  p lace have come to the board? 

MS NAIDOO:   The 1.6 had to come to the board because of  10 

… 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes and the board makes the decision 

because – on an urgent  basis.  

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   For reasons of  the r isk of  supply and I  

th ink you did say there might  be load shedding i f  you do not  

make the decision but  I  mean i t  is a  – i t  is an explanat ion in  

the submission also talk ing about business rescue.   Ja 

somewhat confusing.  

MS NAIDOO:   So what would have t ranspired i t  would have 20 

been in  terms of  a Round Robin i t  gets rat i f ied.   Ms Daniels 

in her aff idavi t  says that  th is was rat i f ied on the 19t h  Apri l .   I  

went  and I  looked at  the minutes.   There is a submission on 

the 19t h Apri l  for a  rat i f icat ion.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is that  2016? 
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MS NAIDOO:   2016 but  there is  no record of  i t  in the 

minutes.   So this was never – no sorry there is a record of  i t  

in the minutes.   But  to be honest  wi th you I  do not  ever 

remember that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So what did you rat i fy because the… 

 

MS NAIDOO:   But  the rat i f icat ion – according to Ms Daniels 

… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  no.  why – no I  am asking you.  What 

did you rat i fy? 10 

MS NAIDOO:   I  do not  remember i t  being rat i f ied but  when I  

go back now and I  look at  the minutes the minutes is  saying 

a pre-purchase of  coal  f rom OCM is rat i f ied on the 19t h of  

Apri l  2016.   So even four months later knowing fu l l  wel l  that  

the pre-purchase never  happened and instead a guarantee 

happened company secretar ies rat i fy ing a pre-purchase and 

i t  is not  rat i f ied I  th ink the word says noted i f  I  am not  

mistaken.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So you did not  know about the 

guarantee? 20 

MS NAIDOO:   No not  at  al l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Did you know that  the guarantee the 

terms of  the guarantee came about  – came from an emai l  of  

infoportal  to Mr Koko f rom Mr Koko to Ms Daniels  and Ms 

Daniels instruct ing the at torneys CDH to draf t  the terms of  
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the pre-purchase agreement.  

MS NAIDOO:   No I  d id not  know that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You heard the evidence we led.  

MS NAIDOO:   Yes I  d id yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   A l l  the more to the Chairperson’s point  

about  how outside people were inf luencing what was 

happening inside Eskom.  I  mean in that  t ra i l  of  emai ls i t  

leaves one wi th  no doubt that  that  guarantee does not  come 

from within Eskom.  I t  is a decis ion f rom somebody outside 

of  Eskom because he provides the terms of  what should be 10 

in the guarantee.  

MS NAIDOO:   And further  to that  i t  is a total  v io lat ion of  

what the board ru l ing was on the meet ing of  the 10t h or the 

9 t h the IFC minutes where the – Mr Singh I  have read his  

aff idavi t  he says he was on that  cal l  and I  th ink Ms K lein 

also conf i rmed i t  that  he was on the IFC cal l  when they said 

that  the – they approve a pre-purchase of  coal  to OCM.  So 

these are two di fferent  legal  ent i t ies I  do not  understand how 

they took the – and they were guaranteed to a thi rd  party  

that  has no relat ion to th is part icular t ransact ion.  And further  20 

in terms of  our de legat ion a guarantee for  the board is R250 

mi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you coming to the real isat ion that  

indeed maybe there is t ruth in  the suggest ion that  th is board 

of  Eskom or at  least  maybe some members of  i t  may have 
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been party to some agenda by people who were outside of  

Eskom and inf luencing what decisions were being taken 

inside Eskom both by the board and by off ic ia ls? 

MS NAIDOO:   Chai r  I  am going to  be very carefu l  wi th my 

words.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:   I  do not  bel ieve i t  is the board because on the 

basis of  the evidence and what happened with OCM on the 

9t h of  December there was no author isat ion towards Tegeta.   

So wi th  due respect  I  leave out  peoples’ l ives and I  am not  10 

going to make the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Look – look – have you looked at  the 

resolut ion in the minutes of  the board? 

MS NAIDOO:   For?  For the IFC? 

CHAIRPERSON:   The resolut ion of  – that  was passed by the 

board at  the meet ing where – is i t  on the 9 t h of  December? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   On the 9t h of  December.  

CHAIRPERSON:   On the 9 t h of  December 2015 with  regard 

to the pre-payment.   Have you looked at  those minutes? 

MS NAIDOO:   I  have looked at  the minutes of  the IFC yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Have you looked the resolut ion is at  the 

end of  the minutes.   Have you looked at  them? 

MS NAIDOO:   I  am sure I  have I  just  do not  recal l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   They – that  resolut ion is qui te clear.   

I t  quotes verbat im clause or paragraph 2.1.2 that  we talked 
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about  ear l ier which had proposed owners.  

MS NAIDOO:   Has i t  been signed? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry.  

MS NAIDOO:   Was that  s igned by the IFC Chair  or the 

Chairman? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  do not  – I  cannot remember whether  

i t  is s igned but  that  is what i t  says and i t  is not  – i t  is not  

surpr is ing because that  is what has been – been the – the 

Execut ives had asked the board to author ise and what  

seems to have been done is to  take that  out  f rom the 10 

submission and put  i t  in the resolut ion.   As – were the 

minutes signed that  we are talk ing about? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   These minutes are not  s igned Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   They indicate a Round Robin decision.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  there may be signed ones I  do not  

know but  there would have been I  would imagine af ter  a 

meet ing there would ci rculate minutes the t ime to sign might  

be another t ime but  at  some stage they would be ci rculated,  

would they not?  And I  would imagine i f  they did not  c i rculate 20 

them the secretary – company secretary,  members of  the 

board would want  – would demand that  they be ci rculated so 

that  they see whether what they decided is correct ly  

captured in the minutes and the resolut ion.  

MS NAIDOO:   Dr Naidoo’s minutes were signed.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes that  is the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is the commit tee? 

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am talk ing about  the board.  

MS NAIDOO:   And the resolut ion would have been – have to  

be in draf ted f rom those minutes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:   But  I  do not  know what t ranspired af ter  that .   I  

have only got  these minutes that  he signed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  the board you were part  of  the 10 

meet ing of  the board and the resolut ion might  not  be – the 

minutes might  not  be signed but  they ref lect  basical ly what 

was in paragraph 2.1.2 which you had seen.   

MS NAIDOO:   Yes but  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   And they are qui te – they are qui te clear.   

That  paragraph was clear – that  one you – you … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  have conceded. 

MS NAIDOO:   You might  not  have seen but  i t  was qui te  

clear.   So i t  seems to me that  even i f  we might  not  be having 

this signed minutes and i f  they ex ist  somewhere I  suspect  20 

they ref lect  exact ly what was wri t ten in paragraph 2.1.2 

which is in the unsigned minutes and i f  they are qui te clear  

the board author ised the conclusion of  pre-purchase of  coal  

agreement wi th the proposed owners.   So you cannot say the 

board author ised pre-payment to Glencore OCM because i t  
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is there.   

MS NAIDOO:   But  Chair… 

CHAIRPERSON:   In terms of  what  they were asked al l  you 

can say or some members of  the board may say is I  never 

intended to author ise pre-payment to the proposed owners of   

OCM and then we can talk about  how probable that  is but  in 

terms of  what you intended that  is one l ine.  

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  in terms of  what you object ively  

author ised that  is what you author ised.  10 

MS NAIDOO:   But  Chair  those – that  resolut ion that  is  

s igned – that  resolut ion in terms of  what you make reference 

to is an unethical  document because i t  is not  what the board 

decided on.   So somebody at  a  later stage signed the 

resolut ion are not  what I  see agreed they were being 

unethical .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  – but  you do not  dispute that  the 

document that  was placed before you the submission or the 

execut ive summary asked you to author ise pre-pay – a pre-

payment to Tegeta.   You – you say you did not  see that  other 20 

members say or one member says he saw i t  but  did not  

appreciate i ts s igni f icance because he knew that  the exist ing 

contract  was wi th OCM Glencore and so – so I  am 

suggest ing to you that  i f  there are any – i f  there are exist ing 

minutes that  are signed in al l  probabi l i ty they wi l l  be along 
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the l ines of  paragraph 2.1.2.  

MS NAIDOO:   And Chair  that  is then… 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  do not  know i f  the record … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   There can be minutes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   There can be minutes for a Round Robin.  

MS NAIDOO:  Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh by the way i t  was a Round Robin.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay but  the fact  of  the matter is – but  

in the Round Robin.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Where is the document that  has – is i t  –  

where is the document that  they were – the resolut ion that  

they were asked to sign – to approve? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:   The submission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  i t  is the submission then you autho – you 

author ised pre-payment.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Pre-payment to OCM – to Tegeta then.  

MS NAIDOO:   But  i t  was overwri t ten by the IFC minutes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MS NAIDOO:   I t  was overwri t ten by the IFC minutes.   
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I r respect ive what happened on the 8t h of  December.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No.   No.   No Ms Naidoo you know that  

what you are saying is – cannot be r ight  I  mean you cannot  

have a lower body – the minutes of  a lower body overr id ing 

the minutes of  a higher body.   The higher body makes the 

f inal  decision.  

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  is c lear f rom that  submission.  

MS NAIDOO:   Chai r  wi th due respect  the matter went  to IFC 

the next  day and – because the board requested that .   And 10 

they made the f inal  decision.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  Dr Naidoo was here and he was 

chair ing that  meet ing.  

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You heard – you heard what he said.  

MS NAIDOO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He could not  – he could not  defend the 

proposi t ion as – that  was my assessment – this as  -  the 

proposi t ion that  they author ised anything other than pre-

payment to Tegeta but  what he did say was in his mind and 20 

in the mind of  the commit tee that  is what he said they 

thought they were author is ing pre-payment to Glencore OCM 

but  the quest ions that  I  have asked you know and he kept  on 

advancing as his  reasons to just i fy his evidence that  they 

intended to author ise pre-payment  to Glencore OCM.  The 
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reason he kept  on advancing is a reason that  actual ly goes 

against  him.  

MS NAIDOO:   But  Chair  h is minute which he signed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MS NAIDOO:   His minute of  IFC which he signed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  I  recal l  correct ly we looked at  them in 

the morning to say the favourable interpretat ion of  those 

minutes favourable to you would be that  i t  could go ei ther  

way.  

MS NAIDOO:   No i t  does not  ta lk of  any proposed owner.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no,  no have you looked at  those 

minutes?  When d id you last  look at  them? 

MS NAIDOO:   I  have got  i t  in my submission.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And – ja… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  draw his at tent ion – her at tent ion to 

them.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  least  what we looked at  in the morning 

seemed to me to say the least  that  i t  was neut ral .  

MS NAIDOO:   No i t  is not  – i t  is c lear OCM. 20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   A dist inct ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  you see OCM – OCM does not  have.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:   Right .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Saying OCM does not  have because for  
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the owners of  OCM before Tegeta came into the picture was 

Glencore.   The owners as I  understand i t  of  OCM af ter 

Glencore got  out  of  the picture were Tegeta.   So i f  you say 

pre-payment to OCM i t  does not  necessari ly mean you mean 

Glencore or you mean Tegeta.   But  when you say pre-

payment to the proposed owners of  OCM i t  is c lear that  you 

are not  ta lk ing about Glencore you are talk ing about Tegeta.  

MS NAIDOO:   But  the IFC meet ing was absolutely  b lack and 

whi te OCM. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  – ja  but  that  is the point  we are 10 

talk ing about to say that  does not  help you ei ther way that  is 

why I  am saying to say the least  that  could be neut ral  

because OCM – is i t  OCM under Tegeta or OCM under 

Glencore?  The submission that  was placed before the board 

talked about OCM the proposed owners of  OCM. 

MS NAIDOO:   But  Chai r  I  d id not  know OCM on the 9 t h o f  

December  was owned by  Tegeta?  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  no .   Otherwise ,  the  submiss ion  

wou ld  no t  say  proposed owners .    

MS NAIDOO:    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  the . . . the  m inutes .   I  w i l l  re fe r  you 

to  the  s igned minutes .   They are  in  Eskom Bund le  18 ,  page 

584.    

MS NAIDOO:    Sor ry,  wh ich  page?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 584,  Eskom Bund le  18 ,  one  

e igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  I  m ight  no t  need to  see i f  you  jus t  

read.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Because we looked a t  them in  the  

morn ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    B racket  A .  

MS NAIDOO:    I s  i t  18(A)  o r  18 (B)?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    18(A) . .  10 

MS NAIDOO:    Ja? 

ADV SELEKA SC:    18(A) .   So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS NAIDOO:    Page?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 854,  f i ve  e igh t  fou r.   So there  i s  

on ly  i tem on the  agenda.   

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  I  have got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  paragraph 5 .    

“Noted tha t  the re  was on ly  one  i tem on the  

agenda wh ich  as  d iscussed around a  Round-

rob in  reso lu t ion  fo r  the  urgent  request  to  20 

approve the  p re-purchase o f  coa l  f rom 

Opt imum Coa l  (P ty)  L td . ”  

 Then 6 .1 :  

“The Round- rob in  reso lu t ion  and suppor t ing  

documents  c i r cu la ted  to  members .  
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The urgent  request  to  approve the  pre-

purchase o f  coa l  f rom OCM (P ty )  L td ,  OCM 

was d iscussed,  de ta i l s  o f  wh ich  were  

c i rcu la ted  to  board  members  on  8  December  

2015. ”  

 On the  next  page ,  585:  

“The reso lu t ion .   I t  i s  recommended tha t  the  

board  approve the  t ransact ion  as  se t  ou t  in  the 

submiss ion  to  the  board  re la t ing  to  the  pre-

purchase o f  coa l  f rom Opt imum (P ty)  L td . ”  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    So i t  s t i l l  says  in  the  submiss ion? 

MS NAIDOO:    Bu t  i t  says  f rom Opt imum.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  what  i s  in  the  submiss ion?  

MS NAIDOO:    P roposed owners .  

CHAIRPERSON:    P roposed owners .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    Bu t  then we are  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you cannot  say  when the  reso lu t ion  

makes the  bas i s  o f  you r  dec i s ion ,  the  submiss ion ,  

inco rpora tes  i t  and the  submiss ion  is  qu i te  c lea r.   I t  does  20 

not  look  l i ke  to  me you can . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS NAIDOO:    A lawyer  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . run  away.   I t  does not  seem tha t  you 

can run  away f rom say ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS NAIDOO:    No,  the  lawyer  and  he i s  go ing  to  a rgue  the  
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in ten t ion  o f  the  par t ies  was . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]  I  th ink  you might  w ish  to  leave  

tha t  to  Mr  Roux.   [ laughs]  

MS NAIDOO:    [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  I  have jus t  gone past  ha l f -past  f i ve  10 

–  ha l f -past  s i x .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ha l f -past  s ix ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    F ina l i se .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Le t  me f ina l i se .   Indeed .   So 

Ms Na idoo,  you  see the  sequence o f  events .   In  

December  2015,  t he  board  does no t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  say.   And 

four  months  la te r  o r  less  than four  months  la te r,  in  Apr i l  

2016 the  dea l  has been conc luded .  

 The dea l  i s  sub jec t  to  suspens ive  cond i t ions ,  the  

purchase o f  sha res in  OCM.   That  wou ld  exp i re  on  the  20 

31 s t  o f  March  2016.   The fu l l  payment  has to  be  made on  

13 or  15  Apr i l  2016.  

 On the  11 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016,  the  Bus iness Rescue  

Pract i t ioner,  Mr  P iers  Marsden is  approached by  

Mr  Nazeem Howa.   And he says  to  h im,  Tegeta  has a  
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shor t fa l l .   He is  Tegeta ’s  CEO.    

 Tegeta  has a  shor t fa l l  o f  R 600 mi l l ion .   We 

cannot .   We are  s t rugg l ing  to  do  –  to  serv i ce  the  ba lance.   

And cou ld  you approach the  consor t ium o f  banks fo r  a  

b r idg ing  loan o f  them to  de fe r  the  amount .  

 11  Apr i l  2016,  a  response is  g iven to  Mr  Howa 

around 15:00 on tha t  day tha t  the  banks have dec l i ned tha t  

request .   So Tegeta  is  hav ing  i t s  back open.   And  tha t  i s  

what  i s  happen ing  on the  one s ide .  

 Someth ing  e l se  is  happen ing  w i th in  Eskom.   10 

Tegeta  wh ich  has  been g iv ing  coa l  to  Eskom pursuant  to  an  

in te r im agreements  da t ing  back  to  January  2016,  now 

comes to  Eskom in  Apr i l .  

 Roundabout  the  8 t h  o f  Apr i l ,  Ms Nte ta  sa id  even  

before  the  8 t h  o f  Apr i l  she  is  approached by  Mr  Nath  w i th  

an  unso l i c i ted  o f fe r  to  supp ly  coa l  bu t  tha t  o f fe r  i s  no t  p la in  

and s imp le .   I t  incorpo ra tes  a  prepayment  request  a l l  o f  a  

sudden.  

 There  has been the  shor t - te rm agreements  where  

prepayment  was  not  g iven but  now th is  one,  when they  20 

want  to  en ter  i n to  the  f i rs t  in te r im cont rac t ,  they  a re  ask ing  

fo r  a  p repayment  and a  prepayment  o f  s ix  hundred-and. . .  

 Wel l ,  f i rs t l y,  i t  is  unc lea r  how much they want .   

Dr  Nte ta  –  you wou ld  have heard  her  i f  you  watched.   She 

came up w i th  an  amount  o f  R 500 mi l l ion  wh ich  u l t imate ly  
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ge ts  up  to  R 659 mi l l ion .  

 Someth ing  tha t  she was dea l ing  w i th  fo r  the  f i rs t  

t ime,  she says,  p repayment .   And the  board  aga in . . .   Oh,  

and th is  t ime i t  is  the  BTC.   I  beg your  pardon.   The BTC 

aga in ,  th is  t ime around,  i s  to ld  and asked to  ac t  on  an  

urgent  bas i s  in  o rder  to  approve the  p repayment  o f  

R 659 mi l l ion .  

 They dra f t  a  submiss ion  document  over  the  

weekend w i thout  a  wr i t ten  o f fe r  f rom Tegeta .   They get  the  

wr i t ten  o f fe r  on ly  on  the  11 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016 a f te r  ha l f -past  10 

four.   Mr  Nazeem Howa by th is  t ime knows tha t  he  is  no t  

ge t t ing  the  ass i s tance f rom the  consor t ium o f  banks .  

 The BTC i s  u rged to  meet  a f te r -hours ,  la te  a t  

n igh t ,  a t  n ine  o ’c lock  to  make a  dec is ion  on  the  

prepayment  by  way o f  a  te lephone  confe rence.    

 And they do  so  desp i te  the  meet ing  o f  the  BTC 

be ing  schedu led  beforehand fo r  the  13 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016 and 

the  dec is ion  is  made to  prepay Tegeta .   

 The dec is ion  is  f ina l i sed on the  13 t h  o f  Apr i l .   So 

the  BTC meet ing  does take  p lace and they f ina l i se  the  20 

payment ,  the  dec is ion  on  the  payment  and the  payment  i s  

made desp i te  i ssues tha t  Tegeta  had growing concern  

prob lems.    

 The banks have  c losed Tegeta ’s  bank – we l l ,  

f rozen the i r  bank accounts  because o f  S ta te  Capture  
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a l legat ions.    

 So you see a  con t inuat ion  o f  e f fo r ts  on  the  par t  o f  

Eskom to  ass i s t  Tegeta  in  th is  acqu is i t ion  o f  OCM at  leas t  

on  the  fac ts  tha t  what  i t  appears  to  be .   D id  you know o f  

these fac ts?  

MS NAIDOO:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you have any comment?  

MS NAIDOO:    So  we . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  sor ry  jus t  be fore  tha t  because I  

know tha t  you served on BTC.  10 

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A t  th is  s tage.   Okay so  you went ,  i f  I  

reca l l ,  th is  request  fo r  BTC to  meet  by  way o f  a  

te leconference wou ld  have come to  you as  we l l .  

MS NAIDOO:    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Why was i t  so  urgent?  

MS NAIDOO:    Wel l ,  acco rd ing  to  what  I  was to ld  tha t  th is  

cont rac t  i s  about  to  exp i re .   I  th ink  the  cover ing  le t te r  says  

in  two days or  t h ree  days wh ich  maybe cou ld  have been  

the  day o f  the  par t i cu la r  BTC meet ing  and they cou ld  no t  20 

wa i t  fo r  tha t  day to  negot ia te  or  f ina l i se  th is  mat te r.  

 And i f  they  do  not  dea l  w i th  th is  mat te r  on  tha t  

par t i cu la r  day,  there  wou ld  have been no coa l  fo r  A rnot  and  

as  a  resu l t  we wou ld  have to  go  in to  load shedd ing .  

 So when I  go t  the  ca l l  f rom Ms Dan ie l s  –  I  th ink  
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she  e i the r  ca l led  us  o r  SMS’d  us  and then I  expressed to  

her  my concern .   She sa id  no  i t  i s  very  urgent  bu t  they w i l l  

add ress i t  on  the  ca l l .    

 And tha t  i s  when  she sent  me the  submiss ion  or  

she cou ld  have sent  me the  submiss ion  f i rs t  and then she 

sent  me a  message to  say:   Go read your  emai l .   And then 

I  had th is  conversa t ion  w i th  he r.   I  do  no t  know whether  i t  

was v ia  SMS o r  a  ca l l  bu t  we d id  d iscuss i t .  

 And then we went  on  the  ca l l .   We got  –  I  th ink  the  

ca l l  was se t  fo r  n ine  o ’c lock  and a l l  o f  th is  happened  10 

between quar te r  past  e igh t  and n ine  o ’c lock  a t  n igh t .  

 She sa id  i t  was very  urgent  and tha t  we needed to  

do  th is .   So because o f  the  u rgency,  I  d id  no t  ob jec t  to  i t  

and the  fac t  tha t  the  submiss ion  was a l ready put  to  me,  I  

had to  dea l  w i th  i t .  

 Bu t  be tween tha t  t ime,  then I  s ta r ted  emai l ing  her  

quest ions and she sa id  i t  w i l l  be  dea l t  w i th  on  the  ca l l .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    So. . .   Yes,  I . . .   I f  you fo l lowed the  

tes t imony o f  Dr  Nte ta .   She sa id  and repeat ing  what  i s  in  

her  a f f idav i t .   That  she d id  no t  see a  reason why the  20 

meet ing  shou ld  be  convened on  the  11 t h  because the  

dec is ion  cou ld  comfo r tab le  be  made  on the  

13 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016 .   What  do  you say to  tha t?  

MS NAIDOO:    I  have l i s tened to  her  ev idence and I  was  

very  surpr i sed because why wou ld  I  agree to  have a  
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meet ing  a t  n ine  o ’c lock  a t  n igh t  on  a  Monday?  I  have got  

smal l  k ids .   Th is  was a l ready annoy ing  me enough.    

 So they de f in i te ly  exp ressed to  the  urgency or  we  

wou ld  have never  eve r  he ld  tha t  meet ing .    Even i f  you look  

a t  my quest ions.   My quest ions re la te  to  why th is  was  

be ing  so  la te .    

 I  have even sent  doctor  –  Mr  Zethembe Khoza an  

emai l  a f te r  the  te lecon to  say:   You need to  s top  ca l l ing  

these meet ings so  la te .   Who was the  execut ive  on  the  

ca l l?   I  was very  upset .    10 

 I  was very  angry  about  i t .   And the  i rony is  tha t ,  

tha t  ca l l  i s  no t  recorded as  usua l .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  the  te leconference  is  no t  

recorded.   You say as  usua l .    

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  because the  l i fe l ine  o f  th is  board  r igh t  

now are  the  record ings o f  the  m inu tes  tha t  we have.   But  i t  

seems the  23 r d  o f  Apr i l  reco rd ing ,  i t  was never  recorded.   

On the  11 t h  o f  March,  the  record ing  s ta r ts  a t  twen ty  past  

twe lve  ins tead o f  twe lve  o ’c lock .  

 The record ing  fo r  th is  par t i cu la r  one is  no t  20 

recorded ye t  on  the  ca l l  I  remember  ask ing  spec i f i ca l l y  i f  i t  

i s  recorded.   I  even sent  an  emai l  to  say  send me the  

m inutes .   So I  on ly  f ind  ou t  la te r  tha t  there  is  no  record ing  

be ing  he ld .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   The o ther  th ing  tha t  I  want  to  pu t  
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to  you f rom Dr  Nte ta .   I  asked  her  whethe r  cou ld  th is  

supp ly  p lan  o f  Apr i l  2018,  wh ich  is  re l ied  upon  in  the 

submiss ion ,  be  used to  jus t i f y  the  a l leged urgency.   And 

her  answer  was no.   She sa id  I  know where  you are  go ing .   

My answer  i s  no .   Because I  know where  you are  go ing .  

MS NAIDOO:    In  her  ev idence she sa id  tha t  there  was no 

urgency.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    So  why wou ld  was she par t y  to  a  meet ing  a t  

n ine  o ’ c lock  a t  n igh t  i f  she  fe l t  tha t  there  was no urgency?   10 

Why was she then respond ing  on quest ions tha t  we  asked?   

No board  member  in  the i r  r igh t  m ind w i l l  ho ld  an  urgent  

meet ing  a t  tha t  na ture  and be so  upset  about  i t  when you 

have got  the  BTC two days la te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   D id  the  BTC member  no t  ask  th is  

quest ion?  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  we d id .   We even asked why th is  was  

coming to  us  because i t  was be low our  th resho ld .   I  th ink 

the  f igure  was 659.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  r igh t .  20 

MS NAIDOO:    Our  th resho ld  i s  750.   The answer  g iven,  

and i t  i s  in  the  m inutes  to  say:   Wel l ,  the  BTC had s igned  

o f f  on  a  prev ious agreement  so  there fore  i t  i s  a  

cont inuat ion .   Now when I  went  back and I  looked .   The 

BTC never  s igned o f f  on  the  Tege ta  shor t - te rm addendum.   
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I t  s igned o f f  on  a  s t ra tegy,  I  th ink  in  February  or  March.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You are  r igh t .   The mandate?  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    So  we were  so  caught  up  w i th  a l l  these  

th ings tha t  they a re  te l l ing  us ,  tha t  you have so  much t rus t  

and fa i th  in  them.   Why wou ld  you fo r  a  second be l ieve  tha t  

somebody is  be ing  uneth ica l?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  asked the  quest ion  whether  d id  they  

m is lead the  BTC.   Shou ld  I  ask  you tha t  quest ion  whethe r  10 

you fee l  tha t  you had been mis led?  

MS NAIDOO:    O f  course ,  I  was  mis led .   When I  heard  

Ms Nte ta . . .   You know,  Judge.   When the  Pub l i c  Pro tec tor ’s  

repor t  came out ,  I  was so  conf iden t  because I  be l ieved the  

peop le  tha t  I  worked w i th  l i ke  Br ian  and Mat j i la  and a l l  o f  

them,  wh ich  w i l l  come back and defend a l l  o f  tha t .   And 

some o f  them d id .    

 So hear ing  ev idence now,  i t  g ives  me – i t  i s  

abso lu te l y  shock ing .   Peop le  a re  no t  tak ing  respons ib i l i t y  

fo r  the i r  ac t ions.    20 

 I  know tha t  mat te r  came before  me.   I  accepted to  

dea l  w i th  the  mat te r  a t  n ine  o ’c lock  a t  n igh t  because I  am 

to ld  i t  i s  u rgent .    

 You can see f rom the  quest ions tha t  I  sent  tha t  I  

was not  happy.   I  was i r r i ta ted  and annoyed.   Then I  sa id  to  
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the  cha i rpe rson why are  you ca l l i ng  th is  meet ing  because I  

was not  happy.  

 So i t  was a  re f lec t ion  o f  what  I  was go ing  th rough  

a t  tha t  par t i cu la r  n igh t  bu t  I  be l ieved them in  te rms o f  the  

urgency and the  fac t  tha t  when Br ian  came in  August .   So 

a t  tha t  s tage there  was no load shedd ing .  

 I  unders tood the  imp l ica t ions o f  load shedd ing  on  

South  A f r i ca  and  the  economy and I  was a  proud board  

member  tha t  t ime to say bu t  I  s topped load shedd ing .   So 

o f  cou rse  the  in ten t ion  was to  do  whatever  i s  necessary  to  10 

make th is  company run .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  the  o ther  th ing  is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wai t .   We are  a t  quar te r  to  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am jus t  a le r t ing  you to  the  t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.   The las t  th ing  i s .   D id  I  

say  the  las t?   The o ther  th ing .   The o ther  th ing  is .   A t  that  

t ime,  Tegeta  d id  no t  have a  cont rac t  w i th  OCM.   I t  had not  

conc luded the  cont rac t  w i th  OCM to  procu re  the  coa l  wh ich  

i t  was o f fe r ing  to  Eskom.   I t  d id  no t  have the  cont rac t .  20 

 In  fac t ,  the  wr i t ten  o f fe r  exp l i c i t l y  says to  Eskom  

tha t  they w i l l  be  buy ing  th is  coa l  f rom OCM and se l l ing  i t  to  

Eskom.   I  am paraphras ing .   But  they w i l l  purchase f rom 

OCM to  se l l  to  you.  

 So there  are  two  th ings.   The one is ,  they  do  not  
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have.   The second th ing  is .   Why d id  you not  dea l  d i rec t l y  

w i th  OCM?  Why th is  m idd leman,  th is  in te rmed iary?  

MS NAIDOO:    I t  i s  i ron ic  you ask  me tha t  quest ion  

because Advocate  Banaras(? )  ca l led  me to  ask  me the  

same quest ion .   And he kept  go ing  on  and on and on.    

 And I  cou ld  no t  unders tand what  he  was t ry ing  to  

say because one  o f  the  quest ions  tha t  I  pu t  –  I  sent  about  

n ine  quest ions why the  RFP was la te ,  why a re  we dea l ing  

w i th  these compan ies ,  can we jus t i f y  to  the  DPE tha t  we 

are  do ing  the  best  dea l  fo r  Eskom before  th is  ma t te r  i s  in  10 

the  pub l i c  domain .  

 And one o f  the  quest ions was.   I s  th is  company the  

company tha t  Tegeta  bought?   I s  OCM the  company Tegeta  

bought?   A re  they now be ing  run  by  the  Bus iness Rescue 

Pract i t ioner?    

 And is  one o f  the  issues tha t  i f  i t  i s  run  by  the  

Bus iness Rescue  Pract i t ioner,  we  do th is  dea l  w i th  them.   

I s  there  a  poss ib i l i t y  Eskom cou ld  lose  i t s  money?  The  

answer  i s :   Yes.   The answer  I  am to ld  i s  yes .    

 I  am g iven the  impress ion  tha t  OCM – tha t  Tegeta  20 

owns OCM.   But  I  reca l led  in  February  when I  –  when my 

husband was an  adv isor  and I  sa id  I  do  no t  be  par t  o f  any 

m in ing  t ransact ions bu t  there  was  a  submiss ion  pu t  to  us  

and I  excused myse l f  f rom i t .  

 The submiss ion  was the  sess ion  o f  cont rac ts  f rom 
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Eskom. . .   No,  sor ry.   F rom OCM to  Tegeta .   But  in  my mind 

–  and tha t  i s  why  I  asked tha t  quest ion  –  i s  Tegeta  tak ing  

over  OCM and they own tha t  par t i cu la r  company.  

 So I  d id  no t  unders tand why Vigna le(?)  they kept  

push ing  tha t  quest ion .   I  on ly  found i t  la te r  on  in  

Par l iament  when the  ev idence was  led  tha t  the  t ransact ion ,  

i t  on ly  f ina l i sed i n  August  2016.  

 But  to  answer  you even fu r ther.   On the  

13 t h  o f  Apr i l ,  when we had ca l led  Mr  Ano j  S ingh to  come 

and g ive  us  a  ver i f i ca t ion  on  the  guarantee,  Mr  S ingh 10 

s ta r ted  h is  conversa t ion  by  say ing :   Yes,  I  have looked a t  

the  submiss ion .   Which  means the  submiss ion  went  to  

h imse l f .  

 He was happy w i th  i t .   He apo log ised to  us  fo r  

oversee ing  the  g rowing concern  i ssue.   He sa id  thank you 

to  us  fo r  b r ing ing  i t  to  h is  a t ten t ion .   Because in i t ia l l y  the  

guarantee he had was the  cess ion  o f  the  revenue  and the  

coa l .    

 Bu t  now the  fac t  tha t  th is  may be a  growing  

concern ,  he  d id  no t  fo resee in  s ix  months  what  w i l l  be  20 

happen ing .   There fore ,  he  has now gone back to  Tegeta 

and now they w i l l  g ive  us  a  p ledge o f  the  shares  o f  the 

m ine.  

 We wi l l  now own the  m ine.   I t  w i l l  be  

unencumbered.   Why then must  I  doubt  tha t  I  am not  
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su f f i c ien t ly  covered in  te rms o f  my 659?  He is  te l l ing  me 

tha t  I  w i l l  own i t ,  he  sa id  i t  w i l l  be  unencumbered.    

 And he says I  w i l l  then a lso  ge t  a  copy o f  the i r  

f inanc ia ls  and I  wou ld  see what  i s  unencumbered and what  

i s  an  encumbered  asset .  

 And then he goes fu r ther  by  say ing :   No,  I  

unders tand we a re  no t  in  the  bus iness o f  own ing  mines.   

We wi l l  g ive  them th is  temporary  fo r  14 -days and  then we  

w i l l  ge t  a  be t te r  guarantee.  

 So I  am abso lu te l y  conf ident  f i rs t l y  and I  am do ing  10 

i t  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  Eskom.   I  am he lp ing .   And so  by  th is  

ca l l ,  c rea te  the  s tockp i le ,  ge t  the  d iscount  and then fu r ther  

my money is . . .  

 So  I  wou ld  have  had. . .   Why i f  I  know tha t  th is  

company had no t  taken over  th is  pa r t i cu la r  m ine,  why  

wou ld  I  ask  fo r  a  company tha t  has go t  no th ing  fo r  a  

guarantee?  I  am unencumbered . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you get  tha t  in fo rmat ion?  

MS NAIDOO:    I  have been to ld  by  my CFO.   Yes,  th is  i s  

what  Tegeta  w i l l  g ive  us .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  d id  you get  tha t  in fo rmat ion?  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  we got  i t  on  the  13 t h  o f  Apr i l .   The 

record ing  is  abso lu te ly  c lear.   I t  i s  in  my submiss ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Unencumbered  assets?  

MS NAIDOO:    Unencumbered assets .   I  have quoted i t  
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verbat im.   And we have,  you know,  quoted i t  -  I  may have  

missed out  a  l ine  or  two.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

MS NAIDOO:    Bu t  you can do the  par t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  you are  say ing  to  the  Cha i rperson.   

You gave th is  company R 659 m i l l ion  repayment  desp i te  

knowing tha t  i t  had growing concern  issues?  

MS NAIDOO:    The growing concern  issues is  no t  w i th  – 

no th ing  about  whether  i t  had money or  i t  was a  revenue  

issue.   I t  was whether  they wou ld  have a  bank account .   10 

And tha t  i s  why I  needed –  and i t  was not  a  se t  th ing .   I t  

was a  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  a f te r  f i ve  months  tha t  wou ld  be  the  

scenar io .   And tha t  the  expense was by  the  CFO on the 

13 t h .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  the  banks had f rozen the i r  

account .  

MS NAIDOO:    Okay I  th ink  the . . .   Wel l ,  the  adv i ce  tha t  I  

was g i ven by  the  CFO tha t  i t  was a  four  month  or  a  s i x  

month .   I t  i s  ac tua l ly  in  the  record ing ,  the  s i tua t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r,  I  am go ing  to  f in ish  w i th  th is .   20 

One is  tha t .   Why d id  you not  ask :   But  we hav ing  been  

in te r im agreements  w i th  th is  company,  shor t - te rm  

agreements?   Why d id  they know what  a  prepayment?  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  one o f  the  quest ions were :   Why is  th is  

d i f fe ren t  to  what  our  normal  t ransact ions were?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  no .   Not  a  normal  t ransact ion .   

Tegeta  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS NAIDOO:    Wi th  th is  par t i cu la r  company.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  w i th  th is  company and the  submiss ion  

even says i t .   You are  ge t t ing  be t te r  qua l i t y  coa l  f rom a  

s tockp i le .   My in te rpre ta t ion  o f  a  s tockp i le  i s  the  coa l  i s  

there .   I t  i s  ready to  go  and take  i t .   I t  i s  in  you r  

submiss ion .   I t  i s  on  the  second page o f  the  submiss ion  to  

say th is  i s  coming f rom the  OCM s tockp i le .    10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay but  now the  reason g iven  in  tha t  

very  submiss ion  is  tha t  Tege ta  have requested a  

prepayment  in  o rder  –  and I  paraphrase –  to  reopen the  

expor t  component  o f  the  m ine.    

MS NAIDOO:    I  do  no t  th ink  they sa id  reopen.   I  th ink  they  

sa id  someth ing  about  p roduct ion  o r  whatever.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  in  the  submiss ion  i t se l f ,  no t  the  

wr i t ten  o f fe r  made by  Tegeta  on  the  11 t h .   Because  

Dr  Nte ta  sa id  tha t  one was not  p laced before  the  board .    

MS NAIDOO:    I . . .   Sor ry.   A re  you ta lk ing  about  the  20 

submiss ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  the  submiss ion  i t se l f .  

MS NAIDOO:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  ta lks  about  the  expor t  component  o f  

the  m ine.    
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MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  i t  ta lks  about  tha t .   The Tegeta /OCM is  

go ing  to  g ive  you the  coa l  f rom the  expor t  component  o f  

OCM Mine . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  i t  does not  say  i t  i s  go ing  to  g ive  

you coa l  f rom the re .  

MS NAIDOO:    Your  very  f i rs t  paragraph on the  top  o f  the  

second page.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  le t  me. . .   That  submiss ion ,  when i t  

ta lks  about  the  prepayments ,  i t  says :  

“Both  supp l ie rs  have ind ica ted  the  w i l l i ngness 10 

to  ex tend cur ren t  cont rac ts . ”  

 And th is  i s  the  on ly  paragraph ta lk ing  about  tha t  

e f fec t .  

“However,  Tegeta  has requested  tha t  Eskom 

cons ider  some fo rm o f  p repayment  to  enab le  i t  

to  meet  the  product ion  requ i rements  f rom the  

expor t  component  o f  the  m ine. ”  

MS NAIDOO:    Okay now read the  paragraph r igh t  a t  the  

top .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  a  long,  long paragraph.  20 

MS NAIDOO:    The f i rs t  two l ines  above the  s ix  hundred 

thousand tha t  i t  is  coming f rom OCM expor t  s tockp i le .   So 

even on the . . .    

 Wel l ,  they  to ld  us  tha t  th is  i s  a  good,  be t te r  qua l i t y  

and the  reason ing  beh ind  i t  i s  tha t  th is  company cou ld  
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expor t  i s  and the re fore  i t  now says i f  you  want  us  to  keep i t  

fo r  you,  you w i l l  have to  pay a  prepayment .   

 And the  who le  i dea was to  ge t  th is  and to  commi t  

to  i t  because Arnot  wou ld  no t  have coa l  and as  a  resu l t  we 

were  load shedd ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  i f  you  are  say ing  to  the 

Cha i rperson the  coa l  tha t  was go ing  to  be  supp l ied  was  

f rom the  s tockp i le .   Why d id  you le t  them to  make a  

prepayment?  

MS NAIDOO:    Because they wou ld  have expor ted  i t  10 

because i t  was expor t  qua l i t y  and  there  was no reason fo r  

them to  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  they  cou ld  se l l  i t  to  somebody e lse .   

That  i s  what  I  have been to ld  to  say you need i t .   You are  

in  a  s i tua t ion .   You p repay me fo r  i t .   Th i s  i s  now yours .   

You commi t ted  to  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  bu t  tha t  i s  no t  Dr  Nte ta ’s  ev idence.  

MS NAIDOO:    Yes,  Dr  Nte ta ’s  ev idence is  now a  to ta l l y  

d i f fe ren t  scenar io  as  to  what  was to ld  to  us  on  tha t  

meet ing .   She i s  even say ing  now tha t  th is  was not  an  

urgent  mat te r.    20 

 Why wou ld  I  s i t  down a t  n ine  o ’ c lock  a t  n igh t  fo r  a  

meet ing?  For  my  conven ience?  Abso lu te ly  no t .   And then 

ins is t  on  an  unencumbered guaran tee f rom a  company tha t  

everyone is  a l leg ing  d id  no t  have money.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Cha i r,  I  w i l l  b r ing  i t  to  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Obv ious ly,  Ms Na idoo shou ld  come back.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  we w i l l . . .  [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    [ laughs]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  in  regard  to  the  supp lementa ry  

a f f idav i t ,  a lso  to  f ina l i se .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because she is  go ing  to  come back.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Then to  f ina l i se  some o f  these  issues.   

But  I  see f rom her  a f f idav i t  tha t  there  may be some issues  

in  re la t ions  –  the re  may be some issues on her  vers ion  in  

re la t ion  to  the  meet ings o f  the  11 t h  o f  March.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And the  suspens ions and so  on .   I  th ink  

cer ta in  th ings need to  be  ra i sed w i th  her.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  th ink  le t  us  s top  here  fo r  now and  

we w i l l  jus t  have  to  f ind  anothe r  –  probab ly  in  the  even ing  20 

aga in .   I f  Mr  Roux,  i f  we are  look ing  a t  a  da te  w i th in  two 

weeks,  we w i l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV LE ROUX :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You. . .   Okay no tha t  i s  f ine .   That  i s  f ine .   

So le t  us  leave i t  a t  tha t  fo r  now.   Thank you to  everybody 
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fo r  be ing  ab le  to  work  un t i l  th is  t ime.   We wi l l  f ind  anothe r  

da te .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hopefu l l y  w i th in  the  next  two weeks.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And make i t  an  even ing  sess ion .   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i r,  tomorrow? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Tomorrow,  who are  your  w i tnesses?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    There  are  two  w i tnesses schedu led  fo r  

tomorrow Cha i rperson.   We wi l l  –  the  f i rs t  one is  Mr  Mark  10 

Pamensky.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The second who is  oversees i s  

Ms Suzanne Dan ie ls .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And I  know tha t  there  m ight  a  s l igh t  

change in  regard  to  tha t . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   A l r igh t .  We 

are  go ing  to  ad journ .   Or  we shou ld  s ta r t  ear ly  i f  poss ib le  

tomorrow,  i s  i t  no t?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    We shou ld  be  ab le  to  f in ish  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    We shou ld  be  ab le  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    . . .w i th  Mr  Mark  Pamensky.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   You th ink  he  might  be  how long?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    He might  be  –  based on what  we need 

to  have h im cover,  about  th ree  hours  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    About  th ree  hours?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  so  we might  no t  be  ab le  to  ge t  to  

Ms Dan ie ls  tomor row.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  m igh t .   I t  m igh t  no t  be  poss ib le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  I  thought  Mr  Pamensky was go ing  to  

be  much shor te r  f rom what  you have sa id  be fore .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  he  has g i ven us  a  supp lementa ry  10 

a f f idav i t  wh ich  I  am yet  to  read.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.   I t  cou ld  imp l ica te  o ther  peop le?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  we may have to  dea l  w i th  i t  a long 

the  l ines  w i th  Ms Na idoo.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   So maybe we shou ld  ra ther  s ta r t ,  a t  

leas t ,  a t  ha l f -past  n ine .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because remember  I  am not  s i t t ing  fo r  

the  who le  day tomorrow.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   I  am s i t t ing  on ly  fo r  ha l f  o f  the  day.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   We s tar t  a t  ha l f -past  n ine  

tomorrow.   Okay we are  go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  the  day.   We 

ad journ .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.    

INQUIRY ADJOURNS UNTIL 11  FEBRUARY 2021  

 

 

 

 

  


